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»a Financial Highlights
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BrEEEMARAR ((F28) RENEBAT
(Wi A EE) MASH T BREE

Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are pleased to
announce the following financial highlights:

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2022 2021 Change
== T —fF 28
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARHEF T
Revenue & 12,845,859 11,303,125 +13.6%
Gross profit EF 1,594,774 1,509,706 +5.6%
Profit for the year REERF] 464,441 166,729 +178.6%
Profit attributable to owners of ISYNSTEZ 2= PN
the parent v ) 442,772 136,126 +225.3%
Basic earnings per share, G EARRF
in RVIB (ANERHTT) 0.33 0.10
Proposed final dividend per share EEESRABERE
(HK cents) CBA) 10.0 Nil £
Profit attributable to
Revenue Gross profit Profit for the year owners of the parent
& EF IR R F BRAEA AEIEER
15,000,000 ARRTE 1,800,000 ARETL 500,000 AT 500,000 ARITR
464,441
1,594,774 442,772
210,809 1,500,706
1,500,000
12,000,000 11,303,125 400,000 400,000
1,200,000
9,000,000 300,000 300,000
900,000
6,000,000 200,000 200,000
166,729
600,000 136,126
3,000,000 100,000 100,000
300,000
0 0 0 0
2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022
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Financial Highlights BA1 758 &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Period”), the
Group’s audited profit attributable to owners of the parent
amounted to approximately RMB442.8 million.

Basic earnings per share was RMBO0.33 (2021: RMBO0.10),
the calculation of such basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
parent and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 1,357,854,935 (2021: 1,357,821,402) in issue during the
year.

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
recommend the payment of a final dividend of 10 cents for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). The Company
had not declared and paid any interim dividend or special
dividend during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The register of members of the Company will be closed:

()  from Monday, 22 May 2023, to Thursday, 25 May
2023, (both days inclusive) for the purpose of
determining Shareholders’ entitiement to attend and
vote at the AGM, during which period no transfer of
Shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attending and vote at the AGM, Shareholders should
ensure that all transfer documents, accompanied by
the relevant share certificates, are lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration by no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 19 May 2023; and

(i)  from Wednesday, 7 June 2023 to Friday, 9 June 2023
(both days inclusive), for the purpose of determining
Shareholders’ entitlement to receive the final dividend,
during which period no transfer of Shares will be
registered.
dividend, Shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited. at 17/
F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 6 June 2023.

In order to qualify for receiving the final
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WORDS FROM THE CHAIRMAN

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Leoch
International Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group” or “Leoch”), | hereby
present Leoch’s audited report on its annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Period”) for
shareholders’ review.

2022 Review

The year of 2022 is a challenging year and also an
opportunistic year. Despite of the adverse factors in the
overseas market in 2022, Leoch managed to further expand
our market share in Americas region from annual turnover
of RMB1,022 million in 2020 to RMB2,199 million in 2022,
marking an increase by more than 115% within 2 years. In
Asia Pacific region other than the PRC, annual turnover result
in record high of RMB1,204 million compare to RMB893
million in 2020, representing a growth rate of close to 35%.
This was partly contributed by Leoch’s strong and cost-
efficient production base in China which provided high quality
products at highly competitive price.

During the Period, China had some strict lockdowns
including in Shanghai during April-May which led to severe
disruptions in both industrial and services activity. Leoch
China team is doing their best to overcome all the difficulties
and in 2022 Leoch achieved more than 20% growth rate for
its core business comparing with the corresponding period in
2021 and lithium battery export business for network power
application also enjoyed satisfying growth. This improvement
helped Leoch combat the temporary reduction in demand of
other categories of battery in the PRC market.

During the Period, Leoch continued pulling in resources
working on new models of lead-acid and lithium-ion
batteries. Production volume of Leoch was stable in the
PRC and overseas production bases. We are well prepared
for capturing any new business to support our continuous
growth.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement T EIRSE

PROSPECT & CHALLENGES

In 2023, we will expand the business with key accounts
to improve Leoch’s battery market position, strengthen the
distribution sales network in network power battery, SLI
battery and motive power battery. In the short and medium
term, the aftermarket will be one of the driving engines for
both sales and profit. Another driving engine will be Lithium
battery and Energy Storage System applications.

Technology and product development capability is our
primary productive force, Leoch has the largest R&D team
including 500 product engineers and another 500 factory
engineers, the team developed flooded battery technology,
AGM battery technology, GEL battery technology, tubular
plate technology, pure lead battery technology, carbon
battery technology, High temperature battery technology,
Lithium battery technology, BMS technology and Sodium
battery technology. Leoch can make more than 3000
different battery models with more than 900 different patents,
that enables Leoch to have the broadest product lines in
battery industry. Leoch is investing more in technology and
product development to maintain the sustainability for the
growth and competitiveness.

Leoch global professional sales and marketing teams in
different region including, EMEA, North America, APAC
and also China are putting their best effort aiming at higher
achievement in 2023. More than 1,000 external and internal
sales force is an important asset for Leoch.

8 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2022
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COMMITMENT &
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Our aim is to supply energy to the world. Efforts have been
recognised and reflected in our sales growth over the last
decade. As usual and consistent as before, we will continue
to increase our customer’s satisfaction level to further
enhance and solidify our world-class status.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank
our shareholders, customers and business partners for
their long-term support and trust. | wish to express my
deep appreciation to our management team and our staff
members for their diligent work, and members of the Board
of Directors for their significant contributions. We will continue
to work diligently with dedicated efforts in the energy platform
to achieve more step by step.

Chairman’s Statement T [EIRE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERwm RO

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Period”),
the Group’s revenue amounted to RMB12,845.9 million,
representing an increase of 13.6% from RMB11,303.1 million
for the corresponding period in 2021.

During the Period, revenue from batteries (and related items)
business amounted to RMB10,432.8 million, representing
an increase of 12.8% from RMB9,249.2 million for the
corresponding period in 2021.
from batteries was contributed by the 25.8% growth rate
in the overseas market and 1.9% in the PRC market.
The volume delivered in terms of ton for lead-acid battery
was flat when comparing with corresponding period last
year. This reflected that the per ton selling price of lead-
acid battery had increased during the Period and most
importantly, contribution from lithium-ion battery sales
started to kick in and could become one of the major growth
drivers in the future. Revenue from recycled lead business
amounted to RMB2,413.0 million, representing an increase
of approximately 17.5% from RMB2,053.9 million for the
corresponding period in 2021.

The increase in revenue

Compared to 2021, overseas business continued to be the
major contributor in the growth of battery business providing
double digit growth rate in two consecutive years supported
by the Group’s strong PRC manufacturing capacity
and capability with highly competitive price and service.
Meanwhile, the Chinese market recorded double digit growth
in the third quarter of the Period yet the upward trend was
interrupted by the unexpected government decision to relax
stringent COVID-19 measures. The Group managed to
maintain more than 20% growth rate in the reserve power
battery business, resulting in a slight growth rate in 2022.
Nevertheless, three categories of battery business had
different degrees of performance during the Period.

10 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2022

EZ e

BE_T_"_F+RA=1t—HILFE (TH#

Al > REBENRGEARIE12,845.088 T
BROE”—FREFM AR 11,303 1HETIEM
13.6%©

RHEAR R B MR HAERE REBI W R E
ARH10432 858 T BR_E-—FRHPENAR
#0,049.2 5 B T N112.8% o 2% B BB th AU U & 12 1
ERINH25.8% MY /8N 151G R E K 1.9%8I A E T
BIEREE - HBEEMNCERZ CUED REF
EHARF T - E R MR E S NN EMEHEEE
WA LR REENR B8 FE NS
7 BRAERAFEE RS — o ClUEhE

B EAARE2 413088 TT RIE_—F[F
EARY A\ R 52,053 98 & T N4917.5% ©
M AL BN ER S A B R

ENTESEHE ZEMFEREMUMMNIERE
HAREEP PR REEURIBERE HNE
BRRIFENNZEREARA D B PETHES
RAME S =FEEEmUBE & AT L1778
SLABAT T BRI R E I B IECOVID- 1948 1
M P o AN E B R B B ERNMERFEGE
0% RE > BN T FRAER EEW
It B = $E B OB R RIEEMNRIR



s

Management Discussion and Analysis &I2/E&

Reserve power batteries

The Group’s sales of reserve power batteries during the
Period amounted to RMB6,006.1 million (2021: RMB4,758.9
million), representing an increase of 26.2% as compared
to the same period of last year. This accounted for
approximately 57.6% of the total revenue from batteries sales
for the Period as compared to 51.5% in 2021. The increment
in sales revenue of reserve power batteries amounted to
RMB1,247.2 million (2021: RMB571.8 million increment)
during the Period.

The strong demand for reserve power batteries in 5G
applications for communication networks and data centers
continued in the PRC market throughout the whole year in
2022, accomplishing more than 20% growth rate year-to-
year. Overseas market maintained low single digit growth
due to the significantly unstable global economy after the
outbreak of Russia-Ukraine war followed by inflation and
rising price of energy during the Period. The downturn
affected the overseas demand for the Group’s reserve
power batteries as the focus on developing 5G projects was
diverted by the global economic crisis. Nevertheless, with
the huge resources deployed in the PRC on research and
development for new 5G battery products including lithium-
ion battery during the last few years, the Group will definitely
be able to capture opportunities continuously from the rising
5@ life cycle onward.

SLI batteries

Sales of SLI batteries for the Group during the Period
amounted to RMB2,860.1 million (2021: RMB3,006.0
million), representing decrease of 4.9% as compared to the
same period last year. This accounted for approximately
27.4% of the total revenue for the Period from batteries sales
as compared to 32.5% in 2021. The decrement in sales
revenue of SLI batteries amounted to RMB145.9 million
(2021: RMB122.9 million increment) during the Period.

am K A

BREM

REBHRANERESHWNHEESEAARE
6,006 1 BB (ZTEZ—F . AR¥#4,758.988
7o) ?%EHHH1‘3D262%O,HJ£HHW$mﬁh’%u&
T ABREAS7.6% 0 M —Z ——FH){H51.5%  HER »
{%ﬁ MBYSHE U i‘ﬂu}\ﬁmﬁ 24728 & T (T
T—F I IEINARKSTISEHETT) ©

RIBZZF2% PEHSBEMNBEREET
DBYSGHE ¥ 8 A B R R R IFE R T FIELIE
RXiBiE20% - AN H S B FIRE B ENEE R
BARE I LN E SRR SEREBRET > B
SNHIZERT —UBEBREER AR ENEER
WS ROGIER BVRDE T ZAEE TTH
REBEBREMBEBINEREELE iMZZDJH:’
ARAERRNBERFETEBBREET RET
HISGE MM E m (B FEIERE T Et) E’JEH?’“IJH:
K%l%ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁé’ﬁﬁ%ﬁ% H _ERI5GHE 8p

P BRI

EEE M

REBE PR EAREE EMEE 284S AR 52,860.1
BET(CE—%F: AEMSOOGOE%E) YBE
FRIFAR14.9% o (G HAR B EH E IR AR ZBAY
27.4% > M & ——F8){532.5% 259 » t@)ﬁ/ﬂj
RSN E W D ARIE14508 8T (CE_—4F .
#EINARKE12298587T) ©

S CFFR - BTEBRRMERAS 11



Management Discussion and Analysis BI2fE st R

The export growth of SLI batteries came to a halt due to
the worsening global political and economical environment
during the second half of the Period. Although in the second
half of 2022, shipment in the PRC market improved by more
than 25% when comparing to first half, overseas shipment
in terms of ton was reduced by more than 27% resulting in
a small decrease in sales amount for the Period. Being one
of the major suppliers of domestic new energy automobile
lead-acid batteries, the Group has confidence to enlarge
our market share in the PRC, extend our customer bases in
car manufacturers and expand after-market sales volume in
the future. The Group will continue to deploy resources to
capture the opportunity in the era of autonomous driving of
smart cars.

Motive power batteries

During the Period, motive power batteries business (which
includes but is not limited to applications in electric vehicles,
electric forklifts and other battery-driven products) of the
Group recorded sales revenue of RMB1,258.3 million (2021:
RMB1,223.1 million), representing an increase of 2.9% as
compared to last year. This accounted for approximately
12.1% of the total revenue from batteries sales for the Period
as compared to 13.2% in 2021. The increment in sales
revenue of motive power batteries amounted to RMB35.2
million (2021: RMB108.5 million increment) during the Period.

Overseas growth rate in terms of ton increased by 45% year-
to-year and such growth was contributed by the Group’s
stable production, high quality products and competitive
pricing while overseas manufacturers were suffering from
high inflation rate and energy cost. On the other hand, the
PRC market demand remains sluggish and this offsets the
growth from overseas market, resulting in a slight growth rate
during the Period. To enhance future growth, the Group will
continue to deploy sufficient resource in the development
of various battery including lithium-ion models for enlarging
applications and market share.

12 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis &I2/E&

Recycled lead

Revenue from the sales of recycled lead products amounted
to RMB2,413.0 million (2021: RMB2,053.9 million) during the
Period, representing an increase of 17.5% as compared to
last year. Although production was in full capacity during the
Period, high demand for wasted battery inflated the collection
cost, resulting in a lower profit contribution when compared
with last year.

Sales network

The Group maintained its widespread sales network to
distribute its products to more than 100 countries and
regions across the World and has established regional
sales offices in Beijing, Shenzhen, Zhaoging, Nanjing, Hong
Kong, Singapore, Malaysia, Australia and other Association
of Southeast Asian Nations (“ASEAN”) countries, India,
Sri Lanka, the United States (the “US”), the European
Union (“EU”) countries and the United Kingdom (the “UK?”).
Together with the domestic sales centers in the PRC, the
Group has more than 80 sales offices and centers around
the world. As at 31 December 2022, the Group has over
700 dedicated sales and marketing and related supporting
employees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis BI2fE st R

Research and development (“R&D”)

During the Period, the Group continued to work on new
models of lead-acid and lithium-ion batteries and roll out
new products tailor-made for applications in each of the
network power and motive market segments. In addition to
5G related application and auxiliary lead-acid battery used
in EV, green energy storage is becoming a topical issue.
Besides our comprehensive and traditionally strong lead-
acid R&D capability in various models used in areas likes
network energy, automobile and motive power, our advanced
and sophisticated lithium-ion battery R&D center located
in Anhui concentrating on and contributing to all kinds of
projects will be the key to the Group’s future growth. These
lithium-ion battery are used in application areas and system
like large energy storage, small household energy storage,
commercial energy storage system, electric energy storage,
communication energy storage and motive power storage
etc. The Group will continue to work closely with international
and domestic battery experts and research institutions to
perform research on new technologies in different battery
products.

Resources have been pulled in and the Group will continue
boosting model yield and increasing overall running
efficiency in view of achieving higher cost competitiveness.
As at 31 December 2022, our battery R&D team of the
Group consists of more than 350 researchers and related
development and sampling technicians.
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Production Base

In 2022, the Group had no expansion plan in the production
capacity for lead-acid batteries but continued gradually on
expanding lithium-ion batteries according to our strategic
plan. In 2022, export business on lithium-ion batteries
recorded satisfactory growth and our next target will be
sharply increasing PRC shipment in 2023. Following the
Group’s tremendous effort in marketing, R&D and production
capacity expansion during the last few years, the Group
will enter into a fast growing stage on lithium-ion batteries
shipment in the PRC and to the overseas market for the next
few years. Resources for expanding production capacity will
continue to be pulled into the PRC production base in 2023.

After our careful studies during the Period, in 2023, the
Group will launch the first stage of investment in Mexico
to establish a battery assembly plant to further strengthen
the Company’s competitiveness in the Americas which
has been dominated by the US. Due to Mexico’s unique
geographical location and related export policy advantages, it
is a good choice for us to invest in Mexico for enhancing our
competitive advantage in the US market and to better serve
our target customers in the Americas.

Trend of lead price

Lead is the main raw material of lead-acid batteries and
accounts for a major part of the production cost for the
Group’s battery production. According to Shanghai Metals
Market (“SMM”), the monthly average lead price per ton
fluctuated within the range of RMB14,876 to RMB15,566
during the Period, representing a change within the range of
-2.5% 10 2.0% as compared with SMM monthly average of
RMB15,263 per ton in December 2021.
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The monthly average SMM lead price per ton from January
2022 to June 2022 was RMB15,190 which has decreased
by 0.5% as compared with SMM monthly average in
December 2021, reflecting a stable demand for domestic
and export battery products in the PRC. The monthly
average SMM lead price per ton from July to December 2022
was RMB15,143, representing a modest decrease of 0.8%
as compared with SMM monthly average in December 2021,
reflecting that the pace of stability continued in the second
half of 2022. This was in line with China’s stable economic
performance with 3% growth achieved in 2022 with GDP
reaching RMB121.02 trillion while consumer prices and
employment remained stable.

To cope with the potential pricing risk associated with the
fluctuation in future lead price, the Group has adopted
a price-linked pricing mechanism to minimise lead price
fluctuation exposure. In addition, the Group’s centralised
procurement of raw materials enables it to trim down costs
of raw materials through favorable negotiations on bulk
purchase contracts.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

According to the National Bureau of Statistics, China’s
gross domestic product (GDP) exceeded RMB121 trillion in
2022, with a year-on-year increase of 3.0%, exceeding the
expected 2.7%. China achieved steady economic growth,
consumer prices and employment on top of the nation’s well-
ensured grain and energy security. Behind this achievement,
China attained major economic targets in different aspects in
terms of high-quality development, covering R&D investment,
green energy consumption to high-quality opening-up and
maintaining labor market stability. Despite the downward
pressure in 2022, overall economic and social development
was stable and healthy. In 2023, China set the GDP growth
target at around 5%, revealing that the government is
expecting overall recovery and improvement ahead.
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The January 2023 World Economic Outlook Update projects
that global economic growth will fall to 2.9 percent in 2023
but rise to 3.1 percent in 2024. The 2023 forecast is 0.2
percentage point higher than predicted in the October 2022
World Economic Outlook but below the historical average
of 3.8 percent. Rising interest rates and the war in Ukraine
continue to weigh on economic activities. China’s recent
reopening has paved the way for a faster-than-expected
recovery. Global inflation is expected to fall to 6.6 percent
in 2023 and 4.3 percent in 2024, which are still above pre-
pandemic levels.

Global economic activity is experiencing a broad-based and
sharper-than-expected slowdown, with inflation higher than
ever in the past several decades. Compared to the economic
outlook of the rest of the world, China and ASEAN countries
are in a relatively strong position. The Group believes that
opportunities and challenges are intertwined in 2023 but
opportunities are dominant in Asia especially in China. We
will pay extra attention to the changing macro and micro
situations and revise our strategies as and when situation
calls for.

5G and Reserve Power Products

The Ministry of Industry and Information Technology (the
“MIIT”) recently released a plan for the development of the
country’s information and communications industry during
the 14th Five-Year Plan period. Development priorities
include building advanced digital infrastructure facilities,
expanding the development space for digitalisation, and
building new business management systems, an accelerated
plan aiming at constructing a cyber power and digital
China in the next five years. By 2025, the overall scale of
the information and communication industry will be further
expanded, and the quality of development will be significantly
improved with full coverage of townships, basic coverage of
administrative villages, and deep coverage of key application
scenarios.
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According to the MIIT, as of January 2023, China has built
and opened more than 2.3 million 5G base stations, and the
construction of new data centers has achieved remarkable
results. It also pointed out that in 2023, more policies
and measures will encourage the deep integration of the
digital economy and the real economy. The coordinated
development of new information infrastructure construction
will speed up the construction of 5G and gigabit optical
networks. The construction of “broadband frontier” will start
and comprehensively promote the research and development
of 6G technology. Other policies and plans include improving
the industrial Internet technology system and standard,
application system, construction of virtual private network
in the 5G industry, enhancing the development policy of the
telecom business market, strengthening the entire process
and chain management of App, strengthening the protection
of personal information and user rights and interests,
enhancing network and data security capabilities, and
accelerating security industry innovation development.

The communication market in various regions of the world
and the demand for lithium batteries is mainly divided into
Asia-Pacific (except China, Japan and South Korea), Africa,
the Middle East and South America on one hand, as well as
China, Japan and South Korea, Europe and North America
on the other. The communication network and power
supply environment of the former are relatively backward
and therefore the performance requirements and backup
time of the base station backup power supply are relatively
high. Compared with lead-acid batteries, lithium batteries
have greater advantages, so the market demand in this area
is relatively large; the demand for lithium batteries in base
stations of the latter comes from 5G base stations, which
are different from the power supply systems of 3G and 4G
base stations. Lithium batteries in 5G communication base
stations will have a lot of room for growth.
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The Group’s 2022 shipment data already revealed that the
demand for reserve power batteries used in all kinds of 5G
applications started to increase in the PRC market and the
trend will go on. The Asia-Pacific was quickly recovering and
further demand is expected since infrastructure development
will flourish in the next few years. Other developed countries
in Europe and North America are still faced with a lot of
uncertainty as well as developing countries in Africa suffering
from high inflation and different degree of financial difficulties.

We expect the Group’s lithium iron phosphate batteries used
in 5G application will continue to expand in the PRC and the
overseas market. The Group is always well prepared and will
continue pulling resources in the development of 5G lead-
acid and lithium batteries for various applications to capture
all possible opportunities. Our global sales teams are working
hard on expanding business in the PRC and the overseas
market to secure continued growth trend in this category of
battery business.

SLI batteries

According to the China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers monthly articles, China’s total automobile
production and sales volume has been the first in the world
for 14 consecutive years. In 2022, despite the impact of
many adverse factors such as severe outbreak of epidemic,
structural shortage of chips, high prices of power battery
raw materials and local geopolitical conflicts, the overall
recovery of China’s automobile market has improved under
such adverse circumstances. The effective pull of a series of
stable growth and consumption promotion policies such as
halving the purchase tax and the joint efforts of enterprises in
the whole industry further helped to achieve positive growth
and showed strong development resilience. In 2022, the
production and sales of automobiles were 27.021 million and
26.864 million, up 3.4% and 2.1% year on year, respectively.
Compared with the previous year, the growth rate of
production was flat, and the growth rate of sales dropped
by 1.7 percentage points. In 2022, new energy vehicles
continued to grow explosively, with the production and
sales of 7.058 million and 6.887 million vehicles, up 96.9%
and 93.4% respectively year on year, and the market share
reached 25.6%, which is 12.1 percentage points higher than
that of the previous year.
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Starting from 2023, with the further emergence of the
effects of economic stabilization policies and measures, the
impact of the superimposed epidemic subsidies and other
favorable factors, China’s economic prosperity continued to
rise. The purchasing managers’ index of the manufacturing
industry has risen significantly and has been in the expansion
range for two consecutive months. The market is expected
to continue to improve. Macroeconomic stability is very
important for the steady growth of the automobile market.
In February, due to the Lunar New Year holidays, the base
is relatively low, and the automobile production and sales
have significantly increased on a month-on-month and
year-on-year basis. Among them, the production and sales
of passenger cars showed double-digit growth, while the
production and sales of commercial vehicles showed double-
digit growth year-on-year, and the export of new energy
vehicles and automobiles continued to perform well.

In 2023, China will continue to implement the strategy of
expanding domestic demand, actively promote the overall
improvement of economic operation, improve quality and
expand capacity. The China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers believes that with the implementation of
relevant supporting policies and measures, it will further
stimulate market entities and consumption vitality, and is
confident that the economy will improve throughout the
year; in addition, problems such as chip supply shortages
in 2023 are expected to be greatly alleviated. In 2023, the
automobile market will continue to show a steady and
positive development trend, showing a growth rate of about
3%.
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In January to February 2023, the production and sales of
new energy vehicles in the PRC were 977,000 and 933,000
respectively, up 18.1% and 20.8% year-on-year, and the
market share reached 25.7%. It is expected that 2023 will
break the record for both domestic and export markets.
New energy vehicle segment (NEV), including battery electric
vehicles, plug-in hybrid electric vehicles and fuel cell vehicles,
will continue to be in the spotlight in the future. Besides
traditional fossil fuel vehicles, our Group is one of the major
suppliers of domestic new energy automobile brands such
as BYD, Geely Auto, Nio, GWM, BAIO BJEV, Xpeng, ONE,
Weltmeister etc. Auxiliary lead-acid battery is required in high-
speed electric vehicles for low-voltage power supply. The
Group will put sufficient resource to secure and expand our
market share in China.

The Group has a very solid position in the PRC SLI battery
market to manufacturers and export OEM market. Our
continuing effort in building after-market distribution network
is the key to our future growth. Our professional and
dedicated sales and marketing staff around the globe are
working hard each year to expand our sales volume and
market share in the PRC market while at the same time
attract more overseas OEM business. We have confidence
that SLI battery business growth momentum can be restored
in 2023.

Motive power batteries

The global low speed electric car market size is estimated
to be worth USD 7,988.8 million in 2022 and is forecasted
to reach a size of USD 14,770 million by 2028 with a
compound annual growth rate (‘CAGR”) of 10.8 percent.
The main types of low-speed electric vehicles are electric golf
carts, electric personal utility vehicles, electric low-speed off-
road vehicles, and electric low-speed heavy-duty vehicles.
During the Period, the Group’s overseas sales of motive
power batteries achieved more than 40% growth and we
believe the long-term growing demand will provide exciting
opportunity to expand our overseas market share despite
that the short term global adverse financial factors might
suppress 2023 demand.
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In China, low-speed electric vehicles have shown a rapid
development pattern along with the country’s economic
and social development. Leading manufacturers have all
put forward multiplier growing plan which will drive the
continuous development of the power battery industry. In
recent years, electric bicycles, electric motorcycles, electric
tricycles and other electric vehicles have gradually become
an important means of transportation for Chinese people due
to their economical and convenient features.

The Group’s motive power battery business unit always
quickly responds and adapts to market changes. We believe
our high-end batteries and differentiated management
strategy is the driving force to continuous future growth.
The Group actively deploys lithium motive power battery
projects and successively launched a number of models
to the market. In 2023, we will continue to deepen the
franchise store model, optimizing the quality and quantity
of agents, improving product turnover efficiency and sales
scale of these sales channels to secure a solid foundation for
continuous growth.

International Market

Rising interest rates and the war in Ukraine continue to weigh
on global economic activity. Global growth slows down
significantly and the 2023 economic forecast are mixed
with the US and major European economies but is widely
expected to avoid officially entering recession. On the other
hand, China and ASEAN will become the major contributors
to the global economic growth.
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The projection on GDP growth of the US in 2023, the world’s
largest economy, will be in the range of 0.2% to slightly
higher than 1% while mild contractions in economic activity
are expected in the UK and some major EU economies such
as Germany and ltaly. Some of Africa’s major economies are
expected to suffer from the ongoing impacts of the Russia-
Ukraine war, runaway food price inflation and the tailwinds
of the Covid-19 pandemic that caused enormous economic
disruption. The Group’s overseas performance could be
affected in the US, European and Africa region but cost-of-
living crisis with elevated food and energy prices lowered our
overseas competitors, competitive power since production
cost keep raising which led to unstable production output.
On the other hand, more than 85% of the Group’s products
are produced in China and secured by stable cost and
production. The suppressing demand could be overcome
by expansion of market share and our overseas professional
sales and marketing team will put their best effort aiming at
sustaining growth in 2023.

China’s recent reopening has paved the way for a faster-
than-expected recovery. Improving economic growth in China
is positive for the ASEAN region and consensus was reached
that it will remain as one of the fastest-growing regions of the
world in 2023. The Group expects business growth in the
APAC region will be the major contributor to our overseas
business growth in 2023.

The wave of fear prompted by the collapse of California’s
Silicon Valley Bank (SVB) has been followed by fresh jitters
over the stability of a major European bank Credit Suisse.
Policymakers have tried to emphasise that the current turmoil
is different to the global financial crisis 15 years ago as banks
are better capitalised and funds are more easily available.
At the moment, global economic outlook is exceptionally
uncertain and concerns about global banking turmoil are
escalating. The Group will closely monitor the market
conditions and remain prudent with caution in managing our
overseas resources.
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Recycled Lead

According to the statistics of Zhuo Chuang Information, the
total amount of waste batteries recycled by licensed disposal
enterprises in the whole year is about 6.659 million tons, an
increase of only 1%. However, in 2023, the disposal capacity
of waste batteries will continue to expand, and it is expected
to exceed 15 million tons per year, and the gap between
supply and demand will widen. According to the assessment
data, the output of waste batteries in 2023 may be 7 to 7.5
million tons, and the supply gap may be as high as 7.5 to 8
million tons.

China’s recycling lead industry has developed rapidly, but the
industry now faces problem of overcapacity, low profitability,
and equipment and technology levels that need to be further
improved. Despite these nationwide problems, our factory
managed to run in full capacity and sustain growth. Our
dedicated scrap battery recycling department, which will
utilize our existing sales network capability to collect old
batteries, has made contribution to the constant supply of
scrap lead-acid batteries to the recycling plant in 2023. The
Group will continue strengthening this closed-loop business
model and is highly confident that the output volume in 2023
can be sustained.

The production and sales of new energy vehicles have
continued to hit new highs, and the contradiction between
supply of and demand for raw materials has become
increasingly prominent. Setting up lithium battery recycling
business will be brought up to our Group’s investment
agenda in 2023 after prudently evaluating the industry’s
future prospect and potential return.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &I2/E&

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the Period, the Group’s revenue amounted to
RMB12,845.9 million, representing an increase of 13.6%
from RMB11,303.1 million for the corresponding period
in 2021. The profit for the Period amounted to RMB464.4
million as compared to RMB166.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, of which the profit attributable
to the owners of the parent amounted to RMB442.8 million
as compared to RMB136.1 million for the corresponding
period in 2021. Basic earnings per share for the Period was
RMBO0.33 (2021: RMBO0.10).

Revenue

The Group’s revenue from the power solutions business
increased by 12.8% from RMB9,249.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to RMB10,432.8 million for the
Period.

The Group’s revenue from the recycled lead business
increased by 17.5% from RMB2,053.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to RMB2,413.0 million for the
Period, due to the strong demand for recycled lead products
in the PRC.
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Details of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 MU TFAXRERRBEE_ZT__ —
December 2022 and 2021 by product category are set out +_—B=+—HIEFEIZERBEE| DU
below: i
2022 2021
—E-C B —F
Percentage
Percentage increase/ Percentage
Revenue share (decrease) Revenue share
FR{d R/ FTfd
Product category EmiEn rzE Bt K Wz B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Reserve power batteries EREA 6,006,115 46.8% 26.2% 4,758,929 42.1%
SLI batteries FEE A 2,860,088 22.3% (4.9%) 3,005,998 26.6%
Motive power batteries BHEM 1,258,319 9.8% 2.9% 1,223,082 10.8%
Others Hib 308,312 2.4% 18.0% 261,210 2.3%
Sub-total INET 10,432,834 81.3% 12.8% 9,249,219 81.8%
Recycled lead products (B 15 84 E 2,413,025 18.7% 17.5% 2,053,906 18.2%
Total CE 12,845,859 100% 136% 11,303,125 100%

Geographically, the Group’s customers are principally located  fEMI A E > ZNEBE L T E ML HEBUMN 5
in the PRC, Europe, Middle East and Africa (‘“EMEA”), EF1IEM (TEMEA ) ~ EMNRIEAME (R EIET
Americas and Asia-Pacific (other than the PRC). Except for ) °BREMEASN » ANEEE R R HISEE R EIIZE
EMEA, the Group recorded different degrees of growth in o

different markets.
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The following revenue information is based on the customer
location for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:

Management Discussion and Analysis &I2/E&
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UTFRAB8E"T-_"FR"T"—F+°8
=+ —HIEFERERAEMEI OB E
S

2022 2021
—EB-C “EBC—fF
Percentage  Percentage Percentage
Revenue share increase Revenue share
W FMEESLE BRE W& PRGBS
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETR
PRC H 7,550,180 58.8% 6.4% 7,094,708 62.8%
EMEA EMEA 1,892,764 14.7% - 1,893,018 16.7%
Americas EM 2,199,121 17.1% 43.3% 1,534,927 13.6%
Asia-Pacific (other than PRC) T KH1[E
(T aERE) 1,203,794 9.4% 54.2% 780,472 6.9%
Total =X 12,845,859 100% 13.6% 11,308,125 100%
Cost of Sales tHE s

The Group’s cost of sales increased by 14.9% from
RMB9,793.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to RMB11,251.1 million for the Period, mainly because of the
increased sales volume.

Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit increased by 5.6% from
RMB1,509.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to RMB1,594.8 million for the Period, mainly due to the
strong demand from reserve power batteries. The gross
profit margin remained flat for the power solutions business
even after the inclusion of transportation cost of the products
in the cost of sales while decreased in the recycled lead
business, resulting in the decrease of overall gross profit
margin from 13.4% for the year ended 31 December 2021
to 12.4% for the Period. The decrease in the recycled lead
business was primarily a result of increased recycle cost of
lead products.
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If such transportation cost was to be recorded as a selling
and distribution cost in 2022 like 2021, the Group’s selling
and distribution costs would be increased by 38.6% from
RMB586.1 million for 2021 to RMB812.0 million for the
FY2022 and the gross profit of the Group would be increased
from RMB1,509.7 million in 2021 to RMB2,017.7 million for
the FY2022, representing an increase of about 33.6%. The
gross margin would then be increased from about 13.4% for
2021 to 15.7% for the FY2022.

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains increased by 187.0% from RMB84.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB241.7
million for the Period, mainly due to increase in foreign
exchange gains and government grants during the Period.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution costs decreased by
33.6% from RMB586.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to RMB389.2 million for the Period. This
was mainly due to the inclusion of transportation cost of
the products in the cost of sales instead of in the selling
and distribution expenses during the Period for better
benchmarking with other companies in the industry.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 9.0% from
RMB306.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
RMB333.7 million for the Period. The increase was mainly
due to the increase in salaries and depreciation as a result of
expansion in the PRC and the increase in stamp duty as a
result of increased sale contracts.

R&D Expenses

R&D expenditure of the Group increased by 59.9% from
RMB239.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
RMB382.9 million for the Period. The increase in expenditure
was mainly used for performance enhancement of existing
products and development of new products in all categories
during the Period.
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Other Expenses

The Group’s other expenses decreased by 85.9% from
RMB102.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
RMB14.4 million for the Period because no fair value loss
from financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
foreign exchange loss were recognized during the Period.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by 8.6% from
RMB143.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
RMB156.2 million for the Period as a result of interest rate
hike during the Period.

Profit before Tax

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded profit
before tax of RMB532.6 million for the Period as compared
to RMB192.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by 170.2% from RMB25.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB68.2
million for the Period, mainly because assessable profits from
the power solutions business increased while profit from the
recycled lead business was not subject to tax during the
Period.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded net
profit of RMB464.4 million (2021: RMB166.7 million) and
profit attributable to the owners of the parent of RMB442.8
million (2021: RMB136.1 million) for the Period.
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Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current
assets of RMB580.9 million (2021: RMB541.8 million).
The Group’s current assets mainly consist of inventories,
trade receivables, debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, cash and bank balances,
prepayments, other receivables and other assets. The
Group’s current liabilities mainly consist of trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, and interest-bearing
bank borrowings.

Inventories

Inventories constituted one of the principal components
of the Group’s current assets. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group had inventories of RMB2,136.5 million (2021:
RMB2,019.3 million). Inventories remained stable in the
recycled lead business while inventories for the power
solutions business increased during the Period. The increase
in the power solutions business was a result of strong
demand from overseas markets.

Trade Receivables

The Group’s trade receivables primarily relate to receivables
for goods sold to its customers and mainly comprised
customers from the power solutions business. As at 31
December 2022, the Group had trade receivables of
RMB2,736.2 milion (2021: RMB2,725.7 million). The slight
increase in trade receivables was a result of increased sales
and more efforts put into collection during the Period.

Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other
Assets

The Group’s prepayments mostly relate to the purchase
of raw materials. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
had prepayments, other receivables and other assets of
RMB473.4 million (2021: RMB223.5 million), increasing
by 111.9%. The increase was mainly because the Group
increased its prepayments for raw materials due to an
expected strong demand in early 2023.
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Trade and Bills Payables

The Group’s trade and bills payables primarily relate to its
purchase of raw materials for production. As at 31 December
2022, the Group had trade and bills payables of RMB2,361.0
million (2021: RMB2,319.3 million). The slight increase in
trade and bills payables was mainly due to increase in bills
payables for short term financing. Such bills were issued
on intercompany sales transactions within the Group and
discounted to banks for short term financing.

Other Payables and Accruals

The Group’s other payables and accruals primarily consisted
of provision for social insurance and retirement benefits,
payments for its expenditures related to construction and
renovation of its production facilities, payments in connection
with transportation charges, contract liabilities, tax payables
other than current income tax liabilities and accruals for
payroll and benefits for its employees. As at 31 December
2022, the Group had other payables and accruals of
RMB1,052.5 million (2021: RMB1,077.3 million).

Capital Expenditures

During the Period, the Group invested RMB339.6 million
(2021: RMB282.6 million) in property, plant and equipment
for its new production facilities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s net current assets
amounted to RMB580.9 million (2021: RMB541.8 million),
among which cash and bank deposits amounted to
RMB1,230.0 million (2021: RMB951.7 million). As at 31
December 2022, the Group had bank borrowings of
RMB2,710.1 million (2021: RMB2,372.2 million), all of which
are interest-bearing. Except for borrowings of RMB68.4
million (2021: RMB329.7 million) which have a maturity over
one year, all of the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable
within one year. The Group’s borrowings were denominated
in RMB, US dollars, HK dollars, Singapore dollars, Malaysian
ringgits and Vietnamese Dong, and the effective interest rates
of which as of 31 December 2022 were 1.88% to 8.17%
(2021: 1.80% to 7.09%).
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A portion of the Group’s bank borrowings was secured by
pledges over certain assets of the Group including property,
plant and equipment, leasehold lands, deposits, inventory,
trade receivables and equity interests in its subsidiaries.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s gearing ratio was
25.8% (2021: 24.7%), which was calculated by dividing total
borrowings by total assets as at the end of each respective
period, multiplied by 100%.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operated primarily in the PRC. For the Group’s
companies in the PRC, their principal activities were
transacted in RMB. For other companies outside of
the PRC, their principal activities were transacted in US
dollars. However, as a result of the Group’s revenue being
denominated in RMB, the conversion into foreign currencies
in connection with payments is subject to regulatory
restrictions on currency conversion in the PRC. The value
of the RMB against the US dollars and other currencies
may fluctuate and is affected by, among other things,
change in the political and economic conditions in the PRC.
The Group’s product sales adopted a price mechanism
by which the currency fluctuation is basically transferred
to the customers, but the Group’s foreign currency trade
receivables may still be exposed to risk in the credit period.

Material Acquisition and Disposal

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiary,
associated company or joint venture by the Group during the
Period.

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no significant

investment with a value of 5% or more of the Group’s total
assets.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 12,787
employees. Employee benefit expenses (including directors’
remuneration), which comprised wages and salaries,
performance-related bonuses, equity-settled share option
expenses and retirement benefit scheme contributions,
totaled RMB1,053.1 million for the Period (2021:
RMB1,020.2 million).

The Group has a share option scheme for selected
participants as incentive and reward for their contribution to
the Group. A mandatory provident fund scheme and local
retirement benefit schemes are also in effect. The Group
encourages employees to receive continuing education
and training to strengthen their work skills and for personal
development. The Group also provides workshops for
staff at different levels to enhance their knowledge of work
safety and to build up team spirit. Staff are rewarded based
on performance of the Group as well as on individual
performance and contribution.
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Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. DONG Li (%), aged 56, is an executive director,
chairman of the Board and nomination committee, a member
of the remuneration committee and founder of the Company.
Dr. DONG has been appointed as executive director since
27 April 2010, the date of the incorporation of our Company.
Dr. DONG is a controlling shareholder of the Company. He is
also one of the authorised representatives of the Company
and serving as director for various subsidiaries of the Group.
Dr. DONG also serves as director for various private wholly
owned companies which include investment holding and
manufacturing enterprise.

Dr. DONG obtained a Doctor of Science from Shanghai
University in 2021 and an EMBA degree from National
University of Singapore in 2015. Dr. DONG graduated from
Xi'an International Studies College, the predecessor of Xi’an
International Studies University, in 1990 with a Bachelor of
Arts degree and Northwest Textile University of Science and
Technology, the predecessor of Xi'an Polytechnic University,
in 1988 with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering.

Dr. DONG also holds the positions of part-time professor
of Shanghai University and visiting professor of the Xi'an
Polytechnic University.

Dr. DONG personally did not hold any share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2022.
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Ms. YIN Haiyan, aged 47, is an executive director and
chief executive officer of the Company. Ms. YIN has been
appointed as executive director since 30 July 2018.

Ms. YIN graduated from JiangSu University of Science and
Technology with a degree in Accounting.

Ms. YIN joined the Group in 2004 as manager of the finance
department. She was subsequently promoted to deputy
general manager of administration department, general
manager, vice president of finance department, president,
and finally to her current position, in which her responsibilities
focus on strategic planning and policy development and
make recommendations for the Board’s consideration, and
leading the management in the day-to-day running of the
Group’s business in accordance with the business plans and
within the budgets approved by the Board.

Ms. YIN personally held 3,500,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2022.
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Ms. HONG Yu, aged 51, is an executive director of the
Company. Ms. HONG has been appointed as executive
director since 6 April 2023.

Ms. HONG graduated from Northwest Textile University
for Science and Technology, the predecessor of Xi’an
Polytechnic University, in 1994 majoring in textiles
engineering and minoring in international economics and
sales.

Ms. HONG has over 20 years of management and
operational experience. From July 1994 to May 2000, she
worked as the manager of the foreign trade department of
Xi'an Oumei Handicrafts Co. Ltd. From July 2000 to May
2005, Ms. HONG joined the Group as a salesperson, and
was subsequently promoted to the manager and deputy
general manager of the foreign trade department. From
May 2005 to June 2015, Ms. HONG was appointed as
the vice president of purchasing department of the Group.
From August 2015 to March 2020, Ms. HONG served as a
partner of Zhongtong Yintai (Beijing) Investment Management
Co., Ltd. From March 2020, Ms. HONG rejoined the Group
as member of enterprise management team, financial
committee officer, purchasing director and investment
director.

Ms. HONG personally held 1,800,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2022.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan (& 755f), aged 54, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director,
chairman of the audit committee and a member of
remuneration committee of the Company since 14 October
2010.

Mr. CAO holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Accounting from
Sonoma State University and an MBA degree from the
Anderson School of the University of California, Los Angeles.
He worked at the auditing department of Coopers &
Lybrand between 1993 and 1996, and obtained his CPA
license (California, United States) in 1996. From 1997 to
2002, he worked at J.P. Morgan and Merrill Lynch in their
respective private banking divisions. Since 2002, he has
been the Executive Director of Etech Capital, a subsidiary
of Etech Securities, Inc., responsible for its Greater China
private equity advisory business. He is also currently the
Chief Executive Officer, Director and Founding Partner of
Shanghai Great Wall Etech Capital Management Company,
a joint venture between China Great Wall Asset Management
Company, one of the largest Chinese asset management
companies, and Etech Group. Mr. Cao is also currently the
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of Chongging Tongli
Heavy Machinery Manufacturing Co., LTD.

Mr. CAO personally held 1,100,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2022.
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Mr. LAU Chi Kit (2% %), aged 78, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director, the chairman of
the remuneration committee, a member of the nomination
committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company since 17 September 2014.

Mr. LAU retired from The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited (‘HSBC”) in December 2000 after more
than 35 years’ of service. Among the senior positions in
HSBC, he was the Assistant General Manager and Head
of Personal Banking Hong Kong and Assistant General
Manager and Head of Strategic Implementation, Asia-
Pacific Region. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers (“Institute”). He was the chairman of the Institute’s
Executive Committee (from January 1999 to December
2000) and is currently an Honorary Advisor of the Institute’s
Executive Committee. He served as a member on a number
of committees appointed by the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administration Region, including the Advisory Council
on the Environment (from October 1998 to December 2001),
the Advisory Committee on Human Resources Development
in the Financial Services Sector (from June 2000 to May
2001), the Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption (from January
2000 to December 2003), the Environment and Conservation
Fund Committee (from August 2000 to October 2006), the
Innovation and Technology Fund (Environment) Projects
Vetting Committee (from January 2000 to December 2004)
and the Law Reform Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee
(from February 1990 to March 2006). He also served as
Chairman of the Business Environment Council Ltd. (from
September 1998 to December 2001).

Currently, Mr. LAU is also an executive director of Chinlink
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 997) and is an
independent non executive director of Royale Home Holdings
Ltd. (stock code: 1198) and Hin Sang Group (International)
Holding Co Ltd (stock code: 6893). The shares of Chinlink
International Holdings Limited, Royale Home Holdings Ltd.
and Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co Ltd are listed
on the Main Board.
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Mr. LAU personally held 1,100,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2022.

Mr. LU Zhigiang (E&35%), aged 48, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director, a member of the
nomination committee and a member of the audit committee
of the Company since 21 March 2022.

Mr. LU was Asia Fellow in Harvard University from August
2018 to. July 2020. Mr. LU holds a Master Degree of
Business Administration from Central State University of
the United States of America in 2001, a Bachelor Degree
of Engineering and a Bachelor Degree of Industry from
Nanchang Hangkong University of The People’s Republic
of China in 1996 and 1997 respectively. Mr. LU attended
the program of a Master of Science Degree in International
Purchasing & Supply Chain Management organised by
Audencia NANTES.Ecole de Management in 2002.

Mr. LU is currently an executive director and the chief
executive officer of Hong Kong Life Sciences and
Technologies Group Limited whose issued shares were listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange under stock code: 8085
but were delisted on 14 September 2020. He served as
an executive director of Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings
Limited whose issued shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange under stock code: 858 from 27 January
2017 to 26 January 2020.

Mr. LU personally held 300,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2022.
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHOW Kam Keung Albert, aged 57, joined the
Company as chief financial officer and company secretary in
1 November 2015.

Mr. Chow has over 33 years of experience in accounting,
auditing, tax, information system, corporate finance and
management. Prior to joining the Company, he had held
various senior positions with public companies listed in Hong
Kong which mostly are manufacturing enterprises. Mr. Chow
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration with
double majors in Accounting and Management Information
Systems in 1986 and a Master’'s degree in Accounting in
1987 from the University of Hawaii in the United States. He
is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a CFA charter holder and a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together
with the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022 which have been audited by the
Company’s auditor Ernst & Young and reviewed by the audit
committee of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries as at
31 December 2022 are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business operations
of the Group may affect the Group’s financial conditions
or growth prospects. The Group has been focusing on
the control of risks and uncertainties with the aim of
understanding and addressing the concerns of stakeholders.
Key risk factors and uncertainties affecting the Group are
outlined below:

1) Our revenue is substantially derived from batteries using
lead-acid technology. If the lead-acid battery market
does not grow at the rate we expect or at all, or if lead-
acid technology is replaced by another technology,
our business, profitability and future prospects may be
materially and adversely affected;
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Due to the outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus
(“COVID-19"), a series of precautionary and control
measures have been implemented across the
globe such as heightening of hygiene and epidemic
prevention requirements in factories and offices and
the imposition of compulsory quarantine of certain
residents. Such measures are changed from time to
time by the authorities and may adversely affect our
business and overall short-term performance. Although
most measures and restrictions have now been lifted,
the Group will continue to closely monitor the situation
and make timely response and adjustments in the
future where necessary.

The recent array of tariffs against numerous countries
by the US government, any global economic downturn,
or changes in the economic, political and social
conditions in the PRC may have an adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects;

If we are unable to successfully develop new
technology or new products, our business, results of
operations and prospects may be adversely affected;

We derive a significant portion of our income
from our major customers, particularly UPS and
telecommunications customers, and we have no long-
term sales contracts with our customers. Our results
of operations could be adversely affected if these
customers reduce their orders or cease to order from
us;

We face intense competition in our major markets and
continuing pressure to reduce our production costs to
remain price competitive;

Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials, such as
lead, could materially and adversely affect our results of
operations; in addition, we rely on our major suppliers
for our primary raw materials. Our operations could be
affected if our major suppliers are not able to supply
raw materials as scheduled. More information on
our major suppliers is set out on page 60 under the
heading “Major Suppliers and Customers” of the Report
of Directors.
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These factors are not exhaustive or comprehensive, and
there may be other risks in addition to those shown above
which are not known to the Group or which may not be
material now but could become material in the future.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 98 and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 99 to 100.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK10 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: Nil) to be payable to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company as at 9 June 2023. Subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, the said final dividend will be paid
to the Company’s shareholders on or about 10 July 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development,
possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing
and an analysis of the performance of the Group during the
year using key financial performance indicators are set out
in the headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 10 to 33 of the annual report.
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Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are set out below:

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES
AND PERFORMANCE
(ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION)

The Group is committed to safety and environmental
protection and has implemented stringent environment
protection policies to uphold high standards of operating
practices.

Pursuant to the applicable environmental laws and
regulations in PRC, the Group installed environmental
protection equipment in all of our production facilities for
the removal of lead dust and particles generated during
our production process in order to minimize the amount
of pollutants in the air. The equipment includes ventilation
systems, dust absorbing and removing systems, acidic mist
and lead fumes purifying machines and fresh air pipelines.

The Group installed waste water treatment facilities at our
production facilities. The water treatment facility neutralizes
the waste water and removes its lead content in accordance
with the applicable environmental standards in PRC. At our
Zhaoqging and Anhui production facilities, the purified water
is collected and reused in our production process, thus
achieving “zero discharge”.

Our PRC factories management control and monitor the
waste level regularly and consistently. Monitoring systems
that provide ontime reading is connected to local government
authorities in charge of environment protection for real-time
monitoring purpose.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

Compliance procedure are in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations, in particular,
those which may have significant impact on the Group.
The Group holds high standards of operating practices
and complies with the relevant standards. The Group has
stringent requirements to maintain high levels of quality
control and responsible business practices. Any changes in
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the
attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units
on a timely basis to ensure that adjustments are made in our
procedures and operations to reflect such changes.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

Relationship with Employees, Suppliers and
Customers

The Group believes that employees are important assets
and provides competitive remuneration packages to attract
and retain employees. The management regularly reviews
the Group’s remuneration to its employees to ensure that
they remain comparable with prevailing market standards.
Furthermore, the Group provides employee training programs
to polish their skills and knowledge and a number of staff
activities to enhance employees’ sense of belonging and to
help create a friendly and harmonious working environment.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil
its long-term goals and development. To maintain its brand
competitiveness and dominant status, the Group aims at
delivering consistently high standards of quality in the service
to its customers. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 103 to 104 and in
note 42 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the reserves of the Company
available for distribution to shareholders amounted to
approximately RMB1,016.6 million (2021: approximately
RMB1,187.3 million).

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 295 to 296 of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR
REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. DONG Li (Chairman)
Ms. YIN Haiyan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. HONG Yu (appointed on 6 April 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan
Mr. LAU Chi Kit
Mr. LU Zhigiang (appointed on 21 March 2022)

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Ms. YIN
Haiyan, Ms. HONG Yu and Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election, at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Subject to the applicable laws, every director and other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified by
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur in the execution and discharge of his or her duties
or in relation thereto pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2022 and remained
in force as of the date of this report.

The Group has also taken out and maintained directors’
liability insurance throughout the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management members of the Group are set out on pages 34
to 40 in the annual report of the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management members of the Group was based on
qualifications, years of experiences and the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed regularly.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and five highest
paid employees are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements
about the Company’s share option schemes, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS INTEREST IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT
OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or entity connected with the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year, nor had
there been any contract of significance entered into between
the Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND == 9 NN R =l
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, BRI ER XA
UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positons R _ZE_-__F+_B=+—H '&ARBEEKT
of each Director and chief executives of the Company in the  Z1TEA SR AA TR ~ BRI (D R EREE
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company A (Q)IREE 5 K& EAE 16 EXVERH7 KR8E D &
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and X1 & ZA B KRB FAAIER BoR A 5 H(b)iRIEE
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part &5 &R E 56 55352(& BaC i3 I sz & PR il A A B)
XV of the SFO; or (b) were required under Section 352 of BFBZFMAETEXE ; SC)RELTE
the SFO, to be entered in the register required to be kept by  BIFFE > LS T NEEETE ST S IZESTE
the Company referred to in that section; or (c) were required  (ME#5FH)) » REBEEBINGARA S I ITHIRE
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange #HRKBEIIT :

pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in the

Listing Rules were as follows:

Number and Number and
class of securities class of securities
subject to options subject to options

granted under the granted under the Approximate
Number and 2010 Share New Share Option percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest class of securities” Option Scheme Scheme Total shareholding®
RIRE
—Z-%f 33
Rt WiERER
RmERE bl
FARHY TR AEFRIREY
BEith e EHHERER EHUERER HHYERER At BARRE Y
Dr. DONG Li Beneficial Owner 1,011,548,000 (1) - - 1,011,548,000 74.49%
EFfEL ERfAA
Ms. YIN Haiyan Beneficial Owner - 1,500,0002 (1) 2,000,0009 (L) 3,500,000 0.26%
Higgnt ERfAA
Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan Beneficial Owner - 800,000¢ () 300,000 (L) 1,100,000 0.08%
ENERE ERfAA
Mr. LAU Chi Kit Beneficial Owner - 800,000© (1) 300,000 (L) 1,100,000 0.08%
EE S ERfAA
Mr. LU Zhigiang Beneficial Owner - - 300,000 (L) 300,000 0.02%
EFRLE ERfAA

*

The letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the — * TLIRERB R RN FIEE -
Shares.
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Notes:

Q)

Dr. DONG Li is deemed to be interested in 1,011,548,000
shares held by Master Alliance Investment Limited, a company
wholly owned by Dr. DONG Li.

Ms. YIN Haiyan has been granted options for 1,500,000 shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see paragraph headed
“Share Option” below for further details of the 2010 Share
Option Scheme.

Ms. YIN Haiyan has been granted options for 2,000,000 shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see paragraph headed
“Share Option” below for further details of the New Share Option
Scheme.

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan has been granted options for 800,000
shares under the Share Option Scheme. Please see paragraph
headed “Share Option” below for further details of the 2010
Share Option Scheme.

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan has been granted options for 300,000
shares under the Share Option Scheme. Please see paragraph
headed “Share Option” below for further details of the New
Share Option Scheme.

Mr. LAU Chi Kit has been granted options for 800,000 shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see paragraph headed
“Share Option” below for further details of 2010 the Share
Option Scheme.

Mr. LAU Chi Kit has been granted options for 300,000 shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see paragraph headed
“Share Option” below for further details of the New Share Option
Scheme.

Mr. LU Zhigiang has been granted options for 300,000 shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see paragraph headed
“Share Option” below for further details of the New Share Option
Scheme.

This is based on 1,357,954,666 Shares, being the number of
issued Shares as at 31 December 2022.

BYsE -
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EEZ L WE A Master Alliance Investment
Limited (EEE T 2EHAZAR) FAY
1,011,548,0000& RR 1 R #E B HE % o

RiEERE S HEHR L T 2R H1,5600,000
RiRONERE  — - FRERESEINE—
THBRTHMERE —FR-

RIS 8 > ENVE R 2 T B % 12,000,000
IR MBI - T IR ST B E— DT IER
TR — o

RISt 8 > & 7R o 2 B % 800,000
RONBERE  _Z-—SFBREAINE—D
HBR TR ERE —&

BRI ST 8 > & 75 o 2 B 300,000
BRin BB It - S RB AR ST BRIV E— P FIB R Tt
Mg —f&e

IR IR R ST 81 > 8178 4 5 £ B & 1 800,000
RONBERE  _Z-—SFBREAINE—D
HBR TR ERE —&

IR IR RE ST 81 > 8178 4 5 £ B 1% 300,000
BRin BB It - S RB IR ST BIRVE— P FIB R Tt
Mg —f&e

RS R B55RTE B 300,000/
BR1n BB It - SR AR ST BRIV E— P FIB R Tt
Mg —f&e

Z BT 1,357,954,666/ 88 (IR — =&
T THE+RA=Z1+—HEBTHRHEKE) AER

st
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, nor had there been any grant or exercise of
rights of such interests during the year ended 31 December
2022.

SHARE OPTION
Share Option Schemes

(i) Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 14 October 2010,
the Company approved and adopted another share
option scheme (the “2010 Share Option Scheme”)
(@s amended at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 18 May 2018) for the purpose of
providing incentive or reward to selected participants
for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of, the Company and for such
other purposes as the Board may approve from
time to time. The number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e.
options which have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) under the 2010 Share Option Scheme
as at 31 December 2022 was 26,530,000 shares
(representing approximately 1.95% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at that date). No further
options will be granted under the 2010 Share Option
Scheme.
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(i)  Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 30 October 2020,
the Company approved and adopted another share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
eligible persons for their contribution to or potential
contribution to the Group and to enable the Group to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group and
for such other purposes as the Board may approve
from time to time. The number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e.
options which have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) under the New Share Option Scheme as
at 31 December 2022 was 54,950,000 (representing
approximately 4.05% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at that date).

Details of the Share Option Schemes are disclosed in note
31 to the financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the following person (other than
the directors and chief executives of the Company) had
interests and short positions of 5% or more in the Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company which
were discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest

i) BELEAABDE2EREN-ZZIZF+A
—+HEBNEBMRRERR A ER
s —IaRE RS 8 (THTEERRESTE)) -
EEAEERATIRMEHEISNEIR - UIEE
HEGRKRR I EHAEBEHER > W8
REEE u%%ﬁﬁm@EME%mu&%
WHAEBMEBEENANER UK
%K%%@Tﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@%@oh_7
T IE+ZA=+—8B REMEREE
BTN zZERTEBERE BIERHEREREK
MHATEZ B I FEITZRNEBES
54,950,0008% FEEN A LABNEBNEETT
BRZ<494.05%) o

BRI EIBVSFIB I M B R R M EE3 1K ER

T RIRRISENE] RN ~ EE
RN REEENEmBOXE

N TECHE+RA=+—RH TIAL FEHE
ERBEFRIBITHRAL RARABRM 18-
BeAn Fe (EHEsE P HER 5% U L IRIESE 5 R BAE I%
PISEXVER 552370 BRFT R B8 S REC 8k I A A B 1R

183835 T2 4 S 1 ) 500617 B B B SR M B0 A
RkA -

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding®?

Number and class
of securities”

RR%TE ERtE EHHE KER BB E 2
Master Alliance Investment Limited™ Beneficial Owner 1,011,548,000 74.49%

E\m}gﬁﬁ}\

*

The Letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the
shares of the Company.
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Notes:

(1) Dr. DONG Li is deemed to be interested in 1,011,548,000
shares held by Master Alliance Investment Limited, a company
wholly owned by Dr. DONG Li.

(2)  This is based on 1,357,954,666 Shares, being the number of
issued Shares as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2022, the
Directors were not aware of any other person (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had, or
was deemed to have, interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements, some of which also
constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above-mentioned transactions.
The connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Group in 2020, which were
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules, are set out
as follows:
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Continuing connected transaction subject to
the reporting, announcement, annual review
and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements

()

Sales of Products to Connected Persons

The Company and Dr. DONG Li,
as such a connected person of the Company,
renewed the master agreement dated 16 October
2018 and entered into a new master agreement
dated 22 November 2021 (the “2021 Master Sales
Agreement”), which sets out the terms and conditions
upon which members of the Group will sell to Dr.
DONG Li's associates, and Dr. DONG Li's associates
will purchase from members of the Group, products
including connecting cables which are components of
battery products for motive power, moulds and other
miscellaneous items. The products to be sold and
purchased under the 2021 Master Sales Agreement
shall be at the prevailing market price, namely, the
price at which the same type of products is sold by
us to independent third parties on normal commercial
terms in the ordinary course of business in the PRC.
The 2020 Master Sales Agreement is for a term of
three years commencing from 1 January 2022, and
ending on 31 December 2024. Upon expiry of the term,
the 2021 Master Sales Agreement will, subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, be renewed for a
further period of three years by mutual agreement. The
annual caps for the transactions under the 2021 Master
Sales Agreement for each of the three years ending 31
December 2024 have been set at RMB280.0 million,
RMB364.0 million and RMB473.2 million respectively.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the aggregate
amount received by the Group under the 2021 Master
Sales Agreement was approximately RMB100.6 million.

a director and

For further details regarding the 2021 Master Sales
Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 22 November 2021.
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(i)

Purchase of Products from Connected Persons

The Company and Dr. DONG Li, a director and as
such a connected person of the Company, renewed
the master agreement dated 22 November 2021
and entered into a new master agreement dated
16 October 2021 (the “2021 Master Purchase
Agreement”), which sets out the terms and conditions
upon which members of the Group will purchase
from Dr. DONG Li’s associates, and Dr. DONG
Li's associates will sell to members of the Group,
products including (a) battery related components
including chargers, connecting cables used in 5G and
reserve power application, BMS, battery racks for the
manufacturing of the Group’s battery products or sale
as accessories of the Group’s battery products; and (b)
electric vehicles and related parts. The products to be
sold and purchased under the 2021 Master Purchase
Agreement shall be at the prevailing market price,
namely, the price at which the same type of products
is sold to the Group by independent third parties on
normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of
business in the PRC. The 2021 Master Purchase
Agreement is for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2022 and ending on 31 December
2024. Upon expiry of the term, the 2021 Master
Purchase Agreement will, subject to the requirements
of the Listing Rules, be renewed for a further period
of three years by mutual agreement. The annual caps
for the transactions under the 2021 Master Purchase
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31
December 2024 have been set at RMB80.0 million,
RMB104.0 million and RMB135.2 million respectively.
For the year ended 31 December 2022 the aggregate
amount paid by the Group under the 2021 Master
Purchase Agreement was approximately RMB36.4
million.

For further details regarding the 2021 Master Purchase
Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 22 November 2021.
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The independent non-executive Directors have

Report of the Directors EEE R

BIFRITEFE SR LA ERIER

reviewed the continuing connected transactions above
and confirmed that the transactions have been entered
into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(8) according to the relevant agreements governing
such transactions respectively on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group above
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Board confirms that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to the
aforementioned continuing connected transactions.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to the term of a loan facility agreement (the
“Facility Agreement”) dated 7 May 2020 and entered into,
among other parties, the Company as borrower, six of its
subsidiaries as guarantors, China Citic Bank International
Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited and The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited as mandated lead
arrangers and bookrunners, and various financial institutions
as lenders, a term loan facility of US$100,000,000 (the
“Loan”) was made available to the Group for (i) refinancing
the facility agreement entered into by the Company on 8
May 2017 and (i) financing the general working capital of the
Group.

The Loan is repayable in five instalments as to 15%, 15%,
15%, 15% and 40% on the dates falling 12, 18, 24, 30 and
36 months respectively after the utilisation date of the Loan.

If, among other matters: () Dr. DONG Li (‘Dr. DONG”) does
not or ceases to own, directly or indirectly, at least 51%
of the beneficial interest in the Company carrying at least
51% of the voting right, free from any security; (i) Dr. DONG
does not or ceases to have management control over the
Company; and (i) Dr. DONG is not or ceases to be the
chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company, it will be
an event of default under the Facility Agreement, in which
event all or any part of the commitments under the Loan may
be cancelled and all amounts outstanding under the Loan
may immediately become due and payable.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

On 21 December 2010, each of the Controlling Shareholders
of the company namely Dr. DONG Li (also being the
executive Director) and Master Alliance Investment Limited
(the “Controlling Shareholders”), entered into a deed of
non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) with
the Company pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders has individually, jointly, unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken and represented to the Company and
each member of the Group that, among other things, he/
it procures that his/its associates will not engage, directly or
indirectly, in businesses which will or may compete with the
business carried on or to be carried on by the Group.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has provided an annual
declaration on his/its compliance with the undertakings
contained in the Deed of Non-Competition undertaken by
them.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
were satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders has
complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31
December 2022, none of the Directors is considered to have
interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is
stipulated by the Directors on the basis of the employees’
relevant experience, responsibility and qualifications. The
salaries and benefits of employees of the Group are kept at a
competitive level and employees are rewarded on a
performance related basis within the general framework of
the Group’s salary and bonus system which is reviewed
annually. A wide range of benefits, including statutory
compulsory welfare plans, are also provided to the
employees.
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The emolument policy for the Directors of the Group Is
determined by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases attributable to the Group’s
major largest suppliers for the year ended 31 December
2022 are as follows:

14.0%
39.6%

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers in aggregate

The percentages of sales attributable to the Group’s major
customers for the year ended 31 December 2022 are as
follows:

10.2%
23.6%

— the largest customer
— five largest customers in aggregate

None of the directors, their respective close associates
(within meaning of the Listing Rules) or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these

major suppliers and customers.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed:

M

(i)

from Monday, 22 May 2023, to Thursday, 25 May
2023, (both days inclusive (both days inclusive) for
the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitiement
to attend and vote at the AGM, during which period
no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order
to be eligible to attending and vote at the AGM,
Shareholders should ensure that all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 19
May 2023; and

from Wednesday, 7 June 2023 to Friday, 9 June 2023
(both days inclusive), for the purpose of determining
Shareholders’ entitlement to receive the final dividend,
during which period no transfer of Shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for receiving the final
dividend, Shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/
F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 6 June 2023.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD
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On 9 January 2023, the Company issued unlisted convertible
bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in principal amount of
HK$91,800,000, carrying interest at the rate of 5.5% per
annum, payable semi-annually on 9 January and 9 July in
arrears, which will mature in 2026. The offering price was at
100% of the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds.
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EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

As disclosed above in the section headed “Events after the
Reporting Period”, the Company issued unlisted convertible
bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) to three subscribers
(namely, Asian Equity Special Opportunities Portfolio
Master Fund Limited, Leung Shek Kong and Great Access
Incorporation Limited, all being third parties independent
of the Company and its connected persons in accordance
with the Listing Rules) in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$91,800,000 on 9 January 2023. Assuming full
conversion of the Convertible Bonds at the initial Conversion
Price (subject to adjustments), a maximum number of
60,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the
share capital of the Company (the “Conversion Shares”)
will be allotted and issued, with an aggregate nominal
value of HK$6,000,000. The net proceeds (after deducting
all the relevant costs and expenses) from the issue of the
Convertible Bonds of approximately HK$91.5 million were
proposed to be applied for the acquisition of machinery and
equipment for the power solutions business of the Group.
The closing price of the Shares as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the date of the subscription agreements was
HK$1.17 per Share. The net price per share to be allotted
and issued upon exercise of the conversion rights attached
to the Convertible Bonds, which is calculated by dividing
the aggregate net proceeds by the total number of the
Conversion Shares based on the initial conversation price of
HK$1.53, is approximately HK$1.53 per Conversion Share.

The Directors consider that the raising of funds by the issue
of Convertible Bonds is justifiable taking into account the
recent market conditions which represent an opportunity
for the Group to strengthen its capital base and financial
position. Details of the issue of the Convertible Bonds are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 23
December 2022.

As at the date of this report, 100% of the aggregate net
proceeds have been utilised for the intended use.
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Save as disclosed, there was no equity fund raising by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2022, nor
were there any proceeds brought forward from any issue of
equity securities made in previous financial years.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
there was sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2022,

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young
who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

There was no change in the auditors of the Company in any
of the proceeding three years.

On behalf of the Board

DONG Li
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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Corporate Governance Report

EEELARS

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

CORPORATE PURPOSE,
STRATEGY AND CORPORATE
CULTURE

The Board defines the purpose, values and strategy of the
Company and considers that the Company’s corporate
culture is aligned. The Group is committed to investing in
the power solution industry, creating value for consumers,
and to delivering attractive and sustainable returns to
the Shareholders. Despite the ever-changing operating
environment, the Group places strong emphasis on
workplace safety, employee relations and the efficient use
of materials, energy and resources, promoting a culture of
ethical conduct and integrity. A healthy corporate culture is
important to good corporate governance which is crucial for
achieving sustainable long-term success of the Group.

ESG-RELATED MATTERS

The Company adheres to improving internal sustainability
governance, strengthening the management and control of
corporate development’s impact on the environment and
society, and creating value for our stakeholders. The Board
has overall responsibility for the Company’s ESG strategy
and reporting, and oversees the overall ESG governance of
the Company. In particular, the Board conducts a regular
review of the Group’s ESG-related matters and considered,
among others, () the adequacy of resource, staff qualification
and experience, training programmes and budget of those
relating to Group’s ESG performance and reporting; (i) the
changes, since the last annual review, in the nature and
extent of significant ESG risks (if any); and (i) the scope
and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of ESG
risks. For further details, please refer to the Company’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
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COMPLIANCE STATEMENTS

The Company has adopted and complied with the relevant
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) based on the principles set out in Part 2
of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2022.

The details of the compliance of the CG code set out in
the mandatory disclosure requirements, complied by the
Company, are shown below.

MANDATORY DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board will continue to review its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that the regulatory
requirements and principles, such as “comply or explain”
regarding the code provisions of the CG Code and
mandatory disclosure requirements set out in Part 2 of
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, are met and the corporate
governance practices of the Company is in line with
expectations of shareholders and investors.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company had complied
with all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
contained in Part 2 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Company (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code for dealing in securities of the Company by its directors
(the “Directors”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and its
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

Board of Directors
Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprised two
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.

Executive Directors

Executive Directors comprised Dr. DONG Li (chairman of the
Board (the “Chairman”)) and Ms. YIN Haiyan (chief executive
officer).

Independent non-executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors comprised Mr. CAO
Yixiong Alan, Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Mr. LU Zhigiang.

The name of each Director, as at the date of this report is
set out under the section headed “Corporate Information”
in this annual report and is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules from time to time. The independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors.
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Number of Board, Committee and General Meetings Held

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
Additional meetings are held when significant events or

RITEFCLH ZECEHRRRAEGHIX
#

EETEHBTEE LR RIULEN S REE
£ MR B R A A S AR BB o
AEASHNEEETEATHRER BGBT
BN NBE_S__f£+-A=+—AL

MHEE BT TUREETEEE SANEZLEE
BEE NIRRT ETER AN INEE ST SRS

FARIRAE o

important issues are required to be discussed and resolved.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, 14
Board meetings, 3 Audit Committee meetings, 2 Nomination
Committee meetings, 4 Remuneration Committee meetings
and 1 general meeting were held.

EFEEH ZECRERREASIIHES
I

Attendance at the Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meeting

BEFHREFEEER 5T
RAERER () 5N T

The attendance of each Director, by name, at the Board
meetings, Board committee meetings and general meeting
are set out below:

ZaggEKRR

Attendance/ Attendance/ Attendance/
Attendance/ Number of Number of Number of  Attendance/
Number of Audit  Nomination Remuneration Number
Board Committee =~ Committee Committee of General
Name of Director Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings!"
HERY,/ HERE/ LERYE/ HERYS HERES
EXg BrZEY RA%ZEY HiZeg BEREAE
EEfY R 1 E 1 EE 1 =l
Executive Directors HTEE
Dr. DONG Li EFEL 14/14 - 2/2 4/4 01
Ms. YIN Haiyan Mgt 14/14 - - - 0/1
Independent Non-executive  HiJERITES
Directors
Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan ENERE 4/14 3/3 - 4/4 0/1
Mr. LAU Chi Kit AEHRESE 4/14 3/3 2/2 4/4 11
Mr. LU Zhigjiang EHRLE 4/14 3/3 2/2 - 0/1
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Notes:

(1) Being the annual general meeting of the Company held on
30 May 2022.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for leadership
and control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The Board
has delegated to the senior management the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation
of the Group. In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees
various authority and duties set out in their respective
terms of reference. All Directors have carried out their
duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
senior management of the Company. These responsibilities
include implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and coordinating day-to-day operation and management
of the Company in accordance with the management
strategies and plans approved by the Board, formulating and
monitoring the operating and production plans and budgets,
and supervising and monitoring the control system.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors possesses
different business experience, knowledge and professional
background. The Company has at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of its Board members with
at least one of them possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation
regarding the independence from each independent non-
executive Director pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company still considers the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Independent non-executive Directors have been invited to
serve on the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”). Through participation in Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees,
all independent non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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Directors’ Continuous Training and
Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director will receive a formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure that he/she has a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and
business and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and other legal and
regulatory requirements.

The Company will from time to time provide briefings
to all Directors to develop and refresh their duties and
responsibilities. All Directors are also encouraged to attend
relevant training courses provided by legal advisers and/or
any appropriate institutions and they have been requested to
provide the Company with their training records.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Directors have been given relevant guideline
materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest
changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements
in relation to the Company’s businesses, and to refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and duties as a
director of a listed company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all Directors
provided their records of training to the Company. All
Directors, namely Dr. DONG Li, Ms. YIN Haiyan, Mr. CAO
Yixiong Alan and Mr. LAU Chi Kit participated in this
continuous professional development mainly by reading
various material regarding corporate governance guide for
board and directors. Mr. LU Zhigiang attended a training
course provided by lawyer.

70 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2022

EERFEEIIREEZE

BRMEEERNERESERERMHEN 2
B REMRZMERN BIRHMEEEHAE
NEEEREBRBEEER Wk T HRERE
EHRAUREMEREREEREZEEESE
o

RABRAFBPIA ESRHERAE R IR
HBHGREE - AR NEBAEEFHERZE
BEB R B EEEBREEREIIR
12 WEKRF S AR RMEEIICE-

BB EEERTRRTRMRECIAMF FIEE
FESUEFBEEX LR ERTBMHNB R
fE- EF I EER MBS I M LIRRKET
BANBEBHRBAZEE ERAEEREZR
ML TEMREFER LT RADEFZAC B
FEREEZ s BBt

BE_ T F+_B=1+—HLEFE FIEE
EERBHBIRBRITFARB FIBESE BIES
B HER Lt B R E RBE GRS 19
E2RGEEEXER FEFOMERMESS
REZETXERIESINETME -ESRAED
20 HAIEIERE o



s

Corporate Governance Report ¥ &8RS

Chairman and Chief Executive

Dr. DONG Li, the Chairman of the Board, is the founder of
the Group and has extensive experience in the lead-acid
battery industry. With effect from 30 July 2018, Ms. YIN
Haiyan has been appointed as the chief executive officer of
the Company.

The roles of the Chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company are separate and performed by different
individuals.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan and Mr. LAU Chi Kit are engaged for a
term of three years commencing from their respective dates
of appointment and is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election pursuant to the Articles of Association.

Mr. LU Zhigiang is engaged for a term of two years
commencing from the dates of appointment and is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant to the Articles
of Association.

Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees, namely,
the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference, which are
available to shareholders on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. All Board committees report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Remuneration Committee

The principal role and function of the Remuneration
Committee are to (a) make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure of the remuneration
of the Directors and the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; (b) assessing the
performance of the executive Directors and approving their
terms of their service contracts; (c) review and approve
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (d) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive director and senior
management of the Company which include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment; (e) make recommendations to the Board of on
the remuneration of non-executive directors of the Company;
(f) to review and approve the remuneration payable to the
executive directors and senior management of the Company
for any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with relevant contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive; (g) review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and (h) ensure that no director of the Company
or any of his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is
involved in deciding his own remuneration; and (i) to review
and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

As at 31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee
comprised three members, namely, Dr. DONG Li (the
executive Director), Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan and Mr. LAU Chi
Kit, the latter two being independent non-executive Directors.
Mr. LAU Chi Kit is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Remuneration Committee held four meetings to discuss,
review, analyse and consider any change of the remuneration
policy of the Company and performed all functions as
disclosed above. The records of attendance of committee
members, by name, at the meetings held are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. LAU Chi Kit 4/4
Dr. DONG Li 4/4
Mr. CAOQ Yixiong Alan 4/4

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model of
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

Nomination Committee

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee
are to (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy
and the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
which aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Company’s Board; (b) identify individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (c) assess the independence
of the independent non-executive directors; and (d) make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.
The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee
comprised three members, namely, Dr. DONG Li (executive
Director), Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Mr. LU Zhigiang, the latter two
being independent non-executive Directors. Dr. DONG Li is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings and performed all functions as
disclosed above. The attendance records of each member at
the meetings are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Dr. DONG Li 2/2
Mr. LAU Chi Kit 2/2
Mr. LU Zhigiang 2/2

All Board members’ appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity
of the Board members. According to the Board Diversity
Policy adopted by the Nomination Committee in 2013,
selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will
be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board consists of both male and female members.
The Nomination Committee and the Board recognises the
importance and benefits of gender diversity at the Board
level, and shall strive to take initiatives to identify more female
candidate(s) and appoint at least one female Director to
further enhance gender diversity at the Board level no later
than 31 December 2024. The Board Diversity Policy will be
updated to ensure the potential successors to the Board can
achieve gender diversity.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of
10,620 full time employees in the PRC who included senior
management, management staff, technicians, salespersons
and workers. The gender ratio in the workforce was 60.9%
male and 39.1% female.

The Company will continue to take gender diversity into
consideration during recruitment and increase the female
proportion at all levels over time with the ultimate goal of
achieving gender diversity, such that there is a pipeline of
female senior management and potential successors to the
Board in the future.

Audit Committee

The principal role and function of the Audit Committee are
amongst others to (a) review the financial statements and
reports and consider any significant or unusual items raised
by the staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function or external auditor before submission to
the Board; (b) review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditor; and (c) review the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system and
associated procedures. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

As at 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee comprised
three members, namely, Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan, Mr. LAU Chi
Kit and Mr. LU Zhigiang all of whom are independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan is the chairman of
the Audit Committee and he possesses relevant accounting
and financial management expertise.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2022 together with the Company’s
external auditor and the senior management and performed
the following major tasks:

- Reviewed the scope of 2021 annual audit and 2022
interim review work, auditor’s fees and terms of
engagement; and

- Review and discuss the 2021 annual and 2022 interim
financial statements, results announcement and report,
the related accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and the relevant audit findings.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the
Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors.

The attendance records of each member at the meeting are
set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan 3/3
Mr. LAU Chi Kit 3/3
Mr. LU Zhigiang 3/3

In addition, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 and has discussed with the management and the
external auditor of the Company on the accounting policies
and practices adopted by the Group and the internal controls
and financial reporting matters of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties as required under the CG
Code:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board performed the following corporate
governance matters:

° review of the corporate governance duties under the
CG Code; and

° review of the compliance with the CG Code.
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MECHANISM TO ENSURE BEREFEILIERAET

INDEPENDENT VIEWS FROM
DIRECTORS

During the year, the Nomination Committee also reviewed ERIELEECNBHARFRESTS O ESRS
the implementation and effectiveness of mechanisms to  IZAVERZL R B B AV EIAY S HE B3 AR X% o 48 B UL
ensure independent views and input are available to the TR IEHEZEEERAARATEHEHEFAEN
Board. Taking into account the following channels, the MIEHIFEREEE EHROINIBILTE - AR
Nomination Committee considered that the Company had in  EEERNEENBUIBREAER EFZO4HIE
place mechanisms which remain effective to ensure a strong LU

independent element on the Board. To ensure independent
views and input from any Director, the following mechanism is
established by the Board:

1. Independence Assessment 1.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors shall
provide a written annual confirmation of independence
to the Company on their compliance with the
independence requirements as set out under Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee
shall assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors upon appointment and annually
to ensure they can continually exercise independent
judgement.

2. Composition of Board 2.

Currently, 50% of the Board members are executive
Directors while 50% of the Board members are
independent non-executive Directors, which exceeds
the requirement of the Listing Rules that at least one-
third of the Board are independent non-executive
Directors.
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Board Proceedings and Decision
Making

At least 14 days’ formal notice of regular Board
and Board Committee Meetings will be given to all
Directors, and all Directors are invited to include any
matters for discussion in the agenda. By at least three
business days in advance of every regular Board and
Board Committee Meeting, Directors are provided
with the meeting agenda and the relevant board
papers containing complete, adequate and timely
information to enable full deliberation on the issues to
be considered at the respective meetings.

All Directors are required to declare their direct/indirect
interests, if any, in any business proposals to be
considered at the meetings and, where appropriate,
they are required to abstain from voting on any Board
resolution concerned.

Independent non-executive Directors should attend alll
regular meetings of the Board and Board Committees
on which they serve. They should also attend general
meetings of the Company to acquire understanding of
the views of the shareholders.

Remuneration of Independent Non-
executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors receive fixed
fee(s) for their role as members of the Board and Board
Committees and no equity-based or incentive based
compensation program is granted to independent non-
executive Directors as this may lead to bias in their
decision-making and compromise their objectivity and
independence.
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Access to Professional Advice and Up-
to-date Information

The Company Secretary provided induction pack
and orientation program for all new recruits to the
Board. Such program would familiarise the newly
appointed Director with the nature of the business,
the corporation’s strategy, the internal control and
corporate governance practices and policies, and
directors’ duties and responsibilities. Subsequent
information packages are regularly provided to the
Directors to keep them abreast of their responsibilities
and infuse them with new knowledge relevant to the
Group’s current business and operating environment.

To facilitate proper discharge of Directors’ duties and
responsibilities, all Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) are entitled to seek advice
from the Company Secretary as well as from
independent professional advisers at the expense of the
Company.

Independent Views and Inputs
Treasured and Valued

During the Board and Board Committee meetings, the
independent non-executive Directors are encouraged
to express freely their independent views and inputs
in an open and candid manner. The Chairman also
encourages questions and challenges from Directors,
in particular independent non-executive Directors and
their comments and concerns are closely followed up
by the management.

In addition to Board meetings, the Chairman schedules
a meeting annually with independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other Directors to
discuss the affairs of the Group.
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The Company Secretary is required to prepare minutes
that record not only the decision reached but any
concerns raised or dissenting views expressed by
Directors. Draft versions of the minutes are circulated to
all Directors for their comment and confirmation before
it is finalised for records. Minutes of all Board and
Board Committee Meetings are available for Directors’
inspection.

The implementation and effectiveness of the above
mechanisms have been reviewed by the Boards on an
annual basis and the Boards believe these measures would
allow Directors to contribute effectively and independent
views and input are available to the Boards and Board
Committees.

Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers

Anti-corruption

The Group formulates the “Business Ethics Control
Procedure” which requires both employees and suppliers
to sign the agreement for integrity. In addition, the “Anti-
Corruption Procedure” is also formulated to cover lawful
business, avoidance of conflict of interests, and fair
competition, etc. The Group requests all employees to
abide by the business ethics, employees must not ask for or
receive any improper form or other improper benefits, which
include but not limited to rebates, commissions, improper
gifts or hospitality; avoidance of conflicts of interest at work.
All employees are required to avoid any activities which might
involve potential conflict of interests and they are required to
receive regular training on anti-corruption.
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Whistleblowing Policy

Employees are encouraged to report any non-conformity or
violation of the anti-bribery and corruption policy in writing to
management directly or to our dedicated response team. All
cases will be investigated in a timely and confidential manner
and the personnel who are involved in whistleblowing will be
protected.

The Group formulates the “Regulations for Management
of Whistle-blowing and Appeals” which stipulates in detail
the procedure of whistle-blowing, the methodology of
investigation and the way of appeal by the person under
investigation. Employees can complain or report in a
confidential manner to the Group’s senior management
through the General Manager’s letterbox, telephone, and
face-to-face communication, etc. The Group protects the
personal privacy and the related rights of the whistle-blower.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements of the Company with a view to
ensuring that such financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements are met and applicable
accounting standards are complied with. The Board has
received from the senior management the management
accounts and such accompanying explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment for approving the financial statements.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
effective internal control and risk management systems to
safeguard shareholder investments and the Group’s assets
on an ongoing basis and for reviewing the effectiveness
of such system on an annual basis. Internal audits were
carried out on all significant operation units of the Group
on an ongoing basis. The senior management reviews and
evaluates the control process, monitors any risk factors
on a regular basis and reports to the Audit Committee on
any findings and measures to address the variances and
identified risks.

During the year under review, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget. The Board is of
the opinion that the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group are effective and adequate. The Board
is also reasonably satisfied that there are sufficient resources
of staff with appropriate qualifications and experience in its
accounting and financial reporting team and that sufficient
training and budget have been provided.

External Auditor and Auditor’'s Remuneration

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their
report responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 89 to 97 of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration
paid/payable to Ernst & Young, the Company’s external
auditor, for annual audit services provided to the Group
and for non-audit services which comprise professional tax
services, amounted to RMB3.1 million and RMBO0.5 million,
respectively.
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Dividend Policy

The Company has a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may distribute dividends to
the Shareholders of the Company by way of (i) cash or (ii)
shares. The profit distribution policy of the Company shall
achieve continuity, stability and sustainability.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy from
time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.
When considering the declaration and payment of dividends,
the Board will take into account the Group’s financial results,
business conditions and strategies and future operations and
earnings.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions
under the Laws of Hong Kong, the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the
Company

Shareholders’ Rights
Convening an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM’)

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association,
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out
in the preceding paragraph.

84 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2022

iz B ER

FABRA—EREER (REBHBER) It &
AT RIBEB(IRE I 75 A4 A B Rk
RS A ABFEDEBREEREGES IRE
MR PIF AN

EFERAIRFRAZREER UM RESGHEE
FHEE BEIKMEARESRERNIRE -NEEE
KRR IRER  EFEREEBAEBMBOMBHE
18 EBI R LU AR IR E E e B F] o

FABEDKMRETRERZR HEHER
BER AR ERMARREFMRIR

AR SRAEF
BEFRTRFHERIAE (REFHIAL)

RIS 2MMAIEesk > NIE2EZRBBFARLD
RAERBBRERAE AR ETATRRAE LRE
ER) + 02 —HRRAERNEARESBRE
FEURAAMERXREAER EXEFGAM
RERRIARE > LUREARERPIERENENSE
5 ; BZAERINESEMEREMERNET-

RRSHERBAHERRMAF > BEEXEEF
REIBRRAE LHZMRER - BEEFHRZE
EWIRR ARG L —ERPritRIEF 2RA AT F
FAIRERAE o



s

Corporate Governance Report

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders are welcome to send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board addressing to the Company Secretary
of the Company through the following channels with contact
details as set out below:

i) by mail to the Company’s place of business at Unit C,
33/F, TML Tower, No. 3 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong; or

i) by email to ir@leoch.com.
Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholders’ meetings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ mestings will be
voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Changes to Constitutional Documents

With effect from 1 January 2022, the Listing Rules have been
amended which requires, among others, listed issuers to
adopt a uniform set of 14 “Core Standards” for shareholder
protections for issuers set out in Appendix 3 of the Listing
Rules. As such, the Board proposes to amend the existing
amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association (the “Existing M&A”) of the Company (the
“Proposed Amendments”) and to adopt the second
amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association (the “New M&A”) of the Company in substitution
for and to the exclusion of the Existing M&A in order to
(i) bring the relevant provisions of the Existing M&A in line
with the amendments made to the Listing Rules and the
applicable laws and procedures of the Cayman lIslands;
(i) expressly permit a general meeting of the Company to
be held as, in addition to a physical meeting, an electronic
meeting or a hybrid meeting where shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) may attend the general
meeting remotely through electronic means in addition
to physical attendance in person; and (i) make other
consequential and housekeeping changes.
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The Proposed Amendments and the adoption of the New
M&A are subject to the approval of the Shareholders by way
of a special resolution at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company, and will become
effective upon the approval by the Shareholders at the AGM.
The New M&A will be published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange

Relationship with the Controlling
Shareholders

The Company has received, from each of the Controlling
Shareholders, an annual declaration on his/its compliance
with the undertakings contained in the Deed of Non-
Competition entered into by each of them in favour of
the Company pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders has individually, jointly, unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken and represented to the Company and
each member of the Group that, among other things, he/it
and his/its associates will not engage, directly or indirectly,
in businesses which will or may compete with the business
carried on or to be carried on by the Group. Details of the
Deed of Non-Competition were disclosed in the Prospectus
under the section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders”.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
have been satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders
had complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

The Board believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decisions.
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To promote effective communication, the Company adopts
a shareholders’ communication policy which sets out
various communication channels for establishing a two-
way relationship and communication between the Company
and the Shareholders. The policy is reviewed on an annual
basis to ensure its effectiveness. The Company maintains a
website at www.leoch.com as a communication platform for
shareholders and investors, where information and updates
on the Group’s business developments and operations,
financial information and other information are available for
public access. Shareholders and investors may write directly
to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
for any inquiries.

The Board considers that general meetings of the Company
provide an important channel for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the chairmen and/or other members of the Board
committees have endeavored to be available to answer
questions raised by the shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication
and relationship with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them informed of the Group’s
developments.

During the year, the Company has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy through discussions amongst Board
members during board meetings. The Company has
reviewed communication activities and engagement with
Shareholders conducted in 2022 and was satisfied with
the implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy which allowed Shareholders to engage
actively with the Company.
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Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. CHOW Kam
Keung Albert, is the chief financial officer and one of the
employees of the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company
Secretary must take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in each financial year. Mr. Chow has
provided his training records to the Company indicating that
he has not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
by means of attending in-house briefings, attending seminars
and reading relevant guideline materials.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B EN RS

Ernst & Young Bk GE BB Tel O O : +852 2846 9888
E i 27/F, One Taikoo Place gooog Fax O O : +852 2868 4432
2 979 King’s Road 00 0Dbooo ey.com
Quarry Bay, HongKong 00000000
To the shareholders of BIETEEEMERAT
Leoch International Technology Limited 2RBKRR

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 98 to
294, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which also
include International Accounting Standards (‘lASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

MEEZER

FRELSEIR (&

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZERNFAREMREZSEE

Inventory provision

FEAEE

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture,
development and sale of lead-acid batteries and other
related items. Since technology develops rapidly in the
lead-acid battery industry, the Group’s inventories were
subject to significant risk of obsolescence. Significant
management’s judgements and estimates were involved
in determining the amount of provision of slow-moving
and obsolete inventories. As the inventory balance
amounting to RMB2,136 million was significant to the
Group, which represented 20% of the total assets of the
Group, and the provision of inventories was made based
on subjective estimates and assumptions concerning
future consumption or sales of inventories, we identified
this as a key audit matter.

EARFENRENS FHENMHEHLEREEMREM
HEAER BRBEREEBNZRNERAR SEE
FEAREANBR AR BE HiHREREFEFTE
REHEZ2SHER TREEBZEARHE KRG H
REBHEREARE21EETHEEEMEHBE
K HEEEBELBEZ20% BEEREIRESRM
HBHENFEHER TGt RE&RFL > BLL
EFR UL RRAREZEE

The disclosures about inventories are included in notes 3
and 20 to the financial statements.

BRFEZ MBI HBRAM E35K%20°

We obtained an understanding of management’s
process about how to identify the slow-moving and
obsolete inventories and calculate the amount of
provision.

EEETHEEEARMUNARE FIERREEFS
STEBBTREZEF

We evaluated the sales forecasts prepared by
management for the purpose of identifying the slow-
moving and obsolete inventories by checking, on a
sampling basis, the sales orders and agreements,
and assessing the estimated sales taking into account
the previous estimations, the historical evidence
supporting underlying assumptions and current
market conditions.
EFEMEEERBRR ZIHERTAER  SE BB
EZHEES T B RGEREC HiHRREFS WAL
ZRuREE XFEARRZELERERIRTS
TG fEsTIEE R -

We also checked on a sampling basis the ageing
reports of inventories and the production records and
sales of inventories made after the year end.
EENEHEFEZREBRERFREZEEL IR
Rz FEIHEETHRER -

For the net realisable value of the slow-moving and
obsolete inventories identified, we checked samples
of recent sales invoices for the value.
M E Z miERBREFEZ R EFEFEMS &
EERHTREESERRAZBE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

FRELSEIH

FHEEZFIR (B

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
=

EEZERNARERREEZSEE

Impairment of trade receivables

B 5B IE R

The trade receivable balance was significant to the
Group, which amounted to RMB2,818 million and
represented approximately 27% of the total assets as at
31 December 2022. Assessment of the recoverability of
trade receivables involves a high level of management
judgement and estimation. During the year, management
used a provision matrix to calculate expected credit
losses for receivables. The matrix was initially based
on the Group’s historical default rates, and specific
factors that management considered in the estimation
of the rates including the type of customers, ageing of
the balances and recent historical payment patterns.
Management then calibrated the matrix to adjust the
historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information, such as forecasted economic conditions.
BERRARIBEHREEERMSTEBER HEHES
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The relevant disclosures are contained in notes 3 and 21
to the financial statements.
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We evaluated the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls which
govern credit control, debt collection and estimate of
expected credit losses (‘ECLS”).
EFEMEEEEEES EHE RAREEE
5 (TFEEE E &) st 2 BER S IEFIA & 5T
EfRESBEN L

We assessed, on a sampling basis, whether items
in the trade receivable ageing report were classified
with the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing
individual items in the report with the relevant sales
invoices.
EEREAEEFBILRERE P FEEE HEERH
EER ML ESRKNAEBERERSETNEEES
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We assessed the adequacy of the ECL provision by
() evaluating the reasonableness of management’s
assumptions used in establishing the ECL provision
matrix; (i) examining the information used by
management to form such estimations, including
testing the accuracy of historical default data,
evaluating whether the historical loss rates were
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information; and (i)
examining the actual losses recorded during the
current financial year.
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We checked the relevant disclosures in the financial
statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED
IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF

THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs which
comprise standards and Interpretations issued by the
IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF

THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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® Independent Auditor’s Report L% EkEMER &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES ZEEMEBZ A MEHRERZE
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE £ (#&

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HEZRBIIIZEENRE 2 BZEEHEBEABEX
independent auditor’s report is TUEN Michael. JLe

Ernst & Young LXK EFTENE TSN
Certified Public Accountants HEEEIED

Hong Kong BB

24 March 2023 “E=fF=AZ+MmH
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

MEHEmR

Year ended 31 December 2022

BE_Z__F+_A=1+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E-C —T-—fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 ARETT AREEFTT
REVENUE & 5 12,845,859 11,303,125
Cost of sales THE R K (11,251,085) (9,793,419
Gross profit EAF 1,594,774 1,509,706
Other income and gains H A R Wz 5 241,727 84,221
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHEX (389,151) (586,076)
Administrative expenses THHEX (333,676) (306,212)
Research and development costs I i 6 (382,868) (239,446)
Impairment losses on assets BEEMEBE 6 (27,516) (23,761)
Other expenses HhBsz 7 (14,443) (102,594)
Finance costs U 8 (156,222) (143,874)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX gl 6 532,625 191,964
Income tax expense FTi8MsZ 11 (68,184) (25,235)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KEE &R 464,441 166,729
Attributable to: DUF AR
Owners of the parent BREEE A 442,772 136,126
Non-controlling interests JEIERR M T 21,669 30,603
464,441 166,729
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BIARIE@H#EmIHA A
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF  fE{LERRZF)
THE PARENT 13
Basic EHAK RMBAE#0.337c  RMBAR¥0.107T
Diluted #E RMBAE#0.33t  RVMBAR0.107T
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
&AL R
EarEWRER
Year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_A=-t+—HIEEE
2022 2021
—=E_— T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TT ARBFT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EFEiE A 464,441 166,729
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ Hthzm (B8 /kE
INCOME
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that R HIRIEHDEE
may be reclassified to profit or loss in BEmEMEEmR S
subsequent periods: (B518) -
Debt investments at fair value through NAEEEEFT AEHM
other comprehensive income: PHEHWGENEBKRE :
Changes in fair value RAEEES 22 (835) 1,683
Income tax effect i & 29 209 (421)
(626) 1,262
Exchange differences on translation of ~ EIBINEFEHER EEE
foreign operations 5,992 (1,312)
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) R EEEB B EFHHDESE
that may be reclassified to profit or loss B EMEE NG,
in subsequent periods (B518) 38 5,366 (50)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income &2 ERER

Year ended 31 December 2022
BHEZ"HF+"A=+—HULEEFE

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AREFT ARBFTT
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that R EEE IR~ 2 EH 948
will not be reclassified to profit or loss in ~ ZEEHNEMEE
subsequent periods: (B518) /W -
Equity investments designated at fair IEERANBEEE
value through other comprehensive AHMEEW @R
income: MRE
Changes in fair value NABEES) 50,939 8,736
Income tax effect FRiiSEE 29 (12,448) 659
38,491 9,395
Exchange differences arising on HIEEBMRERZEIE
translation of functional currency to WELRERESE
presentation currency (56,135) -
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income  REEE B AZEH D8
that wil not be reclassified to profit or EEaNEMEE
loss in subsequent periods (B518) /W= P8 (17,644) 9,395
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ AEEHMEE (B18)
INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX W » H1FR#R18 (12,278) 9,345
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REEEEW R ALRE
FOR THE YEAR 452,163 176,074
Attributable to: DU A& -
Owners of the parent ISYNSIEZZ PN 430,634 145,247
Non-controlling interests JEIERG R T 21,529 30,827
452,163 176,074
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBIRRE

31 December 2022
2+ -"RB=+—H

2022 2021
g —T_—%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AREFT ARBFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB KRS 14 2,289,686 2,291,795
Investment property KEYE 15 334 345
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16(a) 239,026 152,860
Goodwill RS 17 2,405 2,213
Other intangible assets HthmpEE 18 783,241 771,009
Equity investments designated at fair value 15 & A REE &&=t A
through other comprehensive income ET&%@H& 5 H R 1
=1 19 255,044 182,680
Deposits paid for purchase of items of EKM&%%% R = I 5 1B
property, plant and equipment EZNSHIES 63,964 34,650
Deferred tax assets REIRIBE A 29 71,213 66,263
Total non-current assets EREEERE 3,704,913 3,501,815
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories 75 20 2,136,470 2,019,256
Trade receivables 8B 7 I 21 2,736,224 2,725,702
Debt investments at fair value through NABEEZEFFTAHME
other comprehensive income HWRENEHRRE 22 161,405 106,349
Prepayments, other receivables and BB~ WA K
other assets Hh&EE 23 473,432 223,469
Financial assets at fair value through NAEBEEENT AB@m
profit or loss THEE 24 51,951 67,798
Pledged deposits BEIRRER 25 793,806 602,513
Cash and cash equivalents BERIRSEEY 25 436,194 349,229
Total current assets MENEEEE 6,789,482 6,094,316
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Trade and bills payables B EMATIERENERER 26 2,361,044 2,319,251
Other payables and accruals HMERA B ESE A 27 1,052,461 1,077,303
Financial liabilities at fair value through NABEEHTAEGRN
profit or loss ETHEE 24 13 851
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITEE 28 2,641,654 2,042,493
Lease liabilities HEaRE 16(b) 6,504 4,046
Income tax payable FETFT1SHR 146,923 108,576
Total current liabilities mENEREEE 6,208,599 5,552,520
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEEE 580,883 541,796
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BELERRBARE
LIABILITIES 4,285,796 4,043,611
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4 & BAF&IK R =

31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

2022 2021
—_E_— - —F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

PysE ARBTRT ARETT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FFRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEIRITEE 28 68,433 329,713
Lease liabilities HESRE 16(b) 22,667 16,422
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBEE 29 64,180 53,282
Deferred government grants 3 S T AT 7 B 94,281 65,129
Total non-current liabilities JERENE B 249,561 464,546
Net assets BEEFE 4,036,235 3,579,065
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners ISYNCIEZ 2= DNy
of the parent
Share capital [N 30 116,250 116,241
Reserves #B 32 3,706,028 3,270,396
3,822,278 3,386,637
Non-controlling interests JEEER R 213,957 192,428
Total equity W AR 4,036,235 3,579,065
Dong Li Yin Haiyan
5F EQ g5
Director Director
EE E2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

MAEDER

Year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ T F+_A=+t—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATER AL
Share Share Statutory ~ Exchange Non-
Share premium Merger option  Fair value reserve fluctuation Retained controling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
28 ER
Ba RVEER  AfEE BRERE BEHE ITHET  EBEE  RESER CEENE(ZEE 0 S
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB00O0  RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Note (note 30) (note 42) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32)
Mzt (o) (mst42)  (MsRs2)  (Weke2)  (WEs2)  (MEs2)  (WEks2)
At 1 January 2021 116224 1,149,092 281,301 35,167 26,741 170,838 26151 1432821 3238335 161,601 3,399,936
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 136,126 136,126 30,603 166,729
Other comprehensive income KEEEMEENE
for the year:
Changes in fair value of equity HRERAAREEHHA
nvestments designated Hih2ERmmERE
at fair value through other RENAREBEE N
comprehensive income, net of tax BRE - - - - 9,39 - - - 9,39 - 9,39
Changes in fair value of debt NRBESHTALME
investments at fair value through AYGENEBREAL
other comprehensive income, net EEEE NHHEA
of tax - - - - 1,262 - - - 1,262 - 1,262
Exchange differences on ranslation ~ BERINERNEREE
of foreign operations - - - - - - (1,536) - (1,536) 224 (1,312)
Total comprehensive income rEEZENELE
for the year - - - - 10,657 - (1,536) 136,126 145,247 30,827 176,074
Exercise of the share options TiEBRE 17 273 - (167) - - - - 123 - 123
Transfer of fair value reserve of equity  BEEAABEZEHAR
investments at fair value through 2 ERGENERERE
other comprehensive income MARBERE 19 - - - - 4,369) - - 4,369 - - -
Appropriations to reserves BfEE - - - - - 12,682 - (12,682) - - -
Equity-settled share option NEREENERESS
arangements - - - 2,932 - - - - 2932 - 2,932
At 31 December 2021 i
+ZB=+-H 116,241 1,149,365 281,301" 37932 33,029 183,520 24615° 1,560,634 3,386,637 192,428 3,579,065
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 4 &

Year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ -+ _A=+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATRE AL
Share Share Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share  premium Merger option  Fair value reserve  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
AR ER
kA REEE ARG BRERE GEEE iEHEEE  RBEE  REEY Ait FEREE EEAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ABBTR ABBTR ARBTR AB%TR ARBETT ARETR ARETR AREBTRT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Note (note 30)  (noted2)  (note32)  (note32)  (note32)  (note32)  (note 32)
Mz (W30)  (fa42)  (Wsis2)  (H=s2)  (Mas2)  (Malse)  (Wks2)
At 1 January 2022 RZE-“#-F-H 116,241 1,149,365 281,301* 37,932 33,020 183,520 24,615* 1,560,634 3,386,637 192,428 3,579,065
Profit for the year KEERR - - - - - - - T2 a2 21660 464,441
Other comprehensive income REEAMREKE
for the year: - - - - - - - - - - -
Changes in fair value of eqity BERAMEEEY:
investments designated Hfth2ERENER Y
at fair value through other RENAABESE N
comprehensive income, net of tax R - - - - 38,491 - - - 38,491 - 38,491
Changes in fair value of debt BARBEZBHALM
nvestments at fair value through 2ERENERREN
other comprehensive income, AREBEES NIRRE
net of tax - - - - (626) - - - (626) - (626)
Exchenge difierences on translation BB EBHERZE
of foreign operations - - - - - - (50,003) - (50,003) (140) (50,143)
Total comprehensive income rEERENEEE
for the year - - - - 37,865 - (50,003) 442,172 430,634 21,529 452,163
Exercise of the share options TiEBRE 9 136 - (54) - - - - 9 - 9
Lapse of the share options BRIEL - - - (25,745) - - - 25,745 - - -
Transfer of fair value reserve of equity ~ BEHAAEBEEH A
investments at fair valug through Hth2EKEmER Y
other comprehensive income RENAABERE 19 - - - - (236) - - 26 - - -
Appropriations to reserves G - - - - - 45,709 - (45,709) o o o
Equity-settied share option NRFEEENERERS
arangements - - - 4,916 - - - - 4916 - 4916
At 31 December 2022 RZB-CF
+-A=+-H 116,250  1,149,501* 281,301 17,049* 70,658 229,229 (25,388)* 1,983,678 3,822,278 213957 4,036,235

ILERHEROEEAHBERARANZEEHE
AR#3,706,028,0007T (ZE - —F : AR
3,270,396,0007T) ©

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves *
of RMB3,706,028,000 (2021: RMB3,270,396,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

:\V'F EE % )il-_t %

Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z - HF+"HA=1+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-C BT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TT ARBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING & X(BERERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax M A 532,625 191,964
Adjustments for: MBS BEIEHRBE :
Finance costs 7R InIN 8 156,222 143,874
Interest income FE WA 5 (16,451) (10,567)
Fair value loss from financial assets at ‘A DEEZFH ABEZNE
fair value through profit or loss, net BB EMADEEEIE
BIE 6 8,349 8,114
Fair value loss from financial liabilites ‘A A EEZEFHt ABENE
at fair value through profit or loss, MEEnNARBEBERE

net A 6 13 860
Loss on disposal of items of property, EEY¥ -MEKZHEEE

plant and equipment k18 6 1,492 5,927
(Gain)/loss on lease modifications A& &R W) EE (135) 11
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #)% - BE KRR EITE

equipment 14 351,048 338,687
Depreciation of investment property &Y ¥ E 15 11 11
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEITE 16(a) 9,610 10,467
Amortisation of intangible assets E B E 18 200,873 199,279
Amortisation of deferred government 35 3IE B i 48 B 8 55

grants (8,281) (11,793)
Impairment of trade receivables B ZRWHRIERE 21 27,516 23,761
Impairment of inventories EFERIE 20 5,553 7,331
Dividend income from equity BEEEREAABEEIAR

investments designated at fair HEEBENERERE

value through other comprehensive  RIAE B UL A

income 5 (7,343)

Equity-settled share option expenses LI 4AS S BB R 6 4,916 2,932
1,266,018 910,858
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Year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ -+ _A=+—HILEE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 428 IRERE

&

2022 2021
—E-C “EC—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TT ARBT T
Increase in inventories FEEM (126,072) (249,683)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 U IEE N (27,889) (329,787)
(Increase)/decrease in debt BAnEEEERF AHMEM!
investments at fair value through W EHRRE
other comprehensive income (g R (55,890) 92,462
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,  FE{JFIE ~ EfthE UL IE K EH
other receivables and other assets hEE (8m wb (241,092) 52,590
Decrease in financial liabilities at far 2 A AN BEEE T ABEZNE
value through profit or loss =R N (851) (2,689)
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 FE{T R IE K FE (S =512 N 36,033 179,862
(Decrease)/increase in other payables = fth f& < 51 18 K fE 51 & 7
and accruals GRZL) /10 (24,842) 93,093
Cash generated from operations RETHMEFIRE 825,415 746,707
Income tax paid BEIPA1ER (37,251) (27,971)
Net cash flows from KEEBMEREREFEHE
operating activities 788,164 718,736
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING KRETHMERERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BUFH 2 16,451 10,567
Purchases of items of property, plant BEE¥)%  ME &R EEE
and equipment (368,929) (280,598)
Proceeds from disposal of items of ~ BREYXE -BWE&KREERN
property, plant and equipment FTigIA 3,170 7,384
Dividend income from equity IEEERANBEES T AEM
investments designated at fair value ~ 2 EUWHEAIEZ MR EN
through other comprehensive income & B WA 5 7,343 -
Proceeds from disposal of equity HEEERANBEEZEFTA
investments designated at fair value ~ EMM2 @R ERERE
through other comprehensive income  FYFF1SRIE 468 9,004
Additions of equity investments BIEER A ABEZBEA
designated at fair value through other Hth 2 EWZHIEFLHEE
comprehensive income (20,000) (40,500)
Additions of intangible assets EnErEE 18 (211,027) (255,096)
Additions of right-of-use assets EIMEREEE 16(a) (81,555) @)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W EE—EH B AT 36 (3,320) -
Increase in pledged deposits EIRIRERRIE 0 (191,293) (141,160)
Receipt of deferred government grants W EIE SIE B 5 4 B 37,433 971
Net cash flows used in investing KRETHTBRERE F5E
activities (811,259) (689,435)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 428 REFRER

Year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ T _F+_A=t—HILEE

2022 2021
s 2 —F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TT AREF T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEZEFERER=E
ACTIVITIES
Issue of shares, net of issuance BRA5 21T NBREBITRIS
expenses 30 91 123
New bank borrowings MERITEER 4,521,004 5,353,553
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE (4,279,024) (5,244,223)
Interest paid [=ENEIES (156,222) (143,689)
Principal portion of lease payments ~ fHE A S5 (4,920) (6,995)
Net cash flows from/(used) in MEEBE FrA)
financing activities REREFRE 80,929 (41,231)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN BeREBESEEYEN,
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CRiZL) 3% 57,834 (11,930)
Cash and cash equivalents at REVNIRESRIREEEY
beginning of year 349,229 387,148
Effect of foreign exchange rate PEREEMITE FEE
changes, net 29,131 (25,989)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RHERMIBERIRSEEY
END OF YEAR 436,194 349,229
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH IR& KIREZHEBYEERDN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B MIRITAEER 25 436,194 349,229
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R 75 R M 5E

31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Leoch International Technology Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 27 April 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Act, Chapter 22 (Act 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s shares have been listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 16 November 2010. The
registered office of the Company is located at the office
of Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, and the
address is at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The Group is principally engaged in power solutions
business and the recycled lead business.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the immediate holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Master
Alliance Investment Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and wholly owned by Dr. Dong
Li.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

31 December 2022

" H#+”"A=+—H

1. REIRERER (&)

BRMBARZEN
AABEEMBATNFBLNT -

as follows:
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
AL/
WEAR ML/ EMAH ERREEE BETRARES  FARREEEEAN W FERH
Direct Indirect
E# G}
% %
IHETENERAT 11 March 2003 PRC* RMB577,909,382 - 100 Investment holding and
(Leoch Battery (Jiangsu) Corp.) manufacture and sale of lead-
(Jiangsu Leoch’) ) acid batteries
IEETENERAS TIHEL) () —FT=F=A1+-H e AR 577,909,3827 RERR NENHEAREEY
EEETERRITERAS 9 May 2005 PRC* US$103,780,000 - 100 Investment holding and
(Zhaoging Leoch Battery Technology manufacture and sale of lead-
Co., Ltd,) (‘Zhaoging Leoch”) (i) acid batteries
EERIBRRNERAT “ZZRER/NA e 103,780,000% 7 RERR NENHERREEH
(TEEEL)) (i)
ZHNBHHBRRITERAR 26 July 2006 PRC* US$10,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
(Anhui Uplus Energy Technology Co., Ltd.) batteries
(‘Anhui Uplus’) (i)
ZHNBURERRMARAD ZZERELRIHAE HE 10,000,000% 7 RENBERREEN
(ZBAEHE) ()
AR RERERAT 26 April 1999 PRC* RMB846,456,523 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(Leoch Shenzhen Renewable Energy Co., lead-acid batteries
Ltd) (‘Leoch New Energy’) (i
AIBELHERERERAR “ANNEREZ+ARE & R #846,456,5237C RERRAHENREEH
(B3R ()
REMELRERERENERAD 27 November 2002 PRC* RMB3,500,000 - 100 Leasing of properties
(Dongguan Leoch Battery Technology
Co., Ltd)) )
RRMELFERERRNERA) “ZECE+-BAIHEH HE AR 3,500,007 RENE
Leoch International Sales Ltd 31 December 2010 Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch International Sales’)
ErERHFEERAT (BLERHE) —T-T£+°F=+-B &3 BT HENRETH
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Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

1. REIRERER (&)

BB ARZEN (&)

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
AL/
WEAE HRL/ HRALH ERREEE BETRARES  FAAREERERAN W FERH
Direct Indirect
BE %
% %
Leoch Power Supply (H.K.) Limited 18 August 2004 Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(‘Leoch Power Supply’) lead-acid batteries
B+ER (ER) ARAD ((BLER) —TERFAATNA B3 12,000,000787% REERMHENEEEH
Leoch Battery Corporation 17 June 2003 USA™ UUS83,256,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch Battery Corp.’)
Leoch Battery Corporation ZZZ-FRAftH Ei 3,256,000%7¢ HERMETH
(TLeoch Battery Corp. )
Honour Label Investments Limited 28 February 2005 BV Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Honour Label’)
Honour Label Investments Limited ZERFE°ACHN\E EREUHE™ 1£7 RERR
("Honour Label })
Peak Year Investments Limited 25 January 2007 BV~ USS1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Peak Year')
Peak Year Investments Limited ZERF-FItRE  EERUEHE™ 1£7 RERR
("Peak Year )
Shieldon International Limited 19 January 2007 BVI™ USS1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Shieldon”)
Shieldon International Limited! ZZZtE-RBTAR KBRUBE™ £ RERR
(Shieldon ))
Leoch Battery Company Limited 25 April 2007 Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(‘Leoch Battery Company’) lead-acid batteries
Leoch Battery Company Limited “EEEERACTRA ER 1,000,000 7 RERRAHERREDT
("Leoch Battery Company )
ARELRERKITERAT 15 March 2006 PRC* RMB300,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Nanjing Leoch Battery
Technology Co., Ltd.) (j
ARELRERRERAF) 2 E=ATRA e AR 300,007 HERMESH
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INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries
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B HF+"HA=+—H

NEREBER (&)

BB ARZEN (&)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
AL/
WEAR ML EMAH ERREEE BETREEES  FRARGEZESNL  TEEH
Direct Indirect
BE it
% %
FrETRERRMGERAG 14 December 2004 PRC* RMB1,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Beijing Leach Engmeermg
Technology Co., Ltd.) (i
BRELRERRITERAR) “ZIME+ZATME  E B 1,000,007 HERRERH
RIELENRHBERAT 27 September 2007 PRC* RMB1,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Leoch Battery Shenzhen Corp.) (i)
B LEHRITERA) ZZZLEARZHEE  HE AE#1,000,0007 HERRESH
Catherine Holdings International 3 May 2010 BV Us$4 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited
(‘Catherine Holdings’)
Cathering Holdings International “Z-ZFRA=H HRELHE™ 4ET wark
Company Limited
(" Catherine Holdings ))
Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. 5 April 2010 Singapore 8G$2,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch Battery Pte.’)
Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. _Z-ZEMAEA g 2,000,000%7 71 75 HEAREEN
(TLeoch Battery Pte. ])
Leoch International Holding Pte. Ltd. 21 April 2011 Singapore SGSH - 100 Investment holding
(‘Leoch International Holding")
Leoch International Holding Pte. Ltd. “Z—EMAZ+-H  HIE 1T RERR
(TLeoch International Holding 1)
ZHETEREMARAR 26 October 2010 PRC* RMB625,817,381 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
(Anhui Leoch Power Supply Corp.) batteries
(‘Anhui Leoch Power”) (]
ZHETERRITERAT “B-ZEHA24A E AE625,817,3817 RENHENREEH
(&HELER)()
Leoch Lanka (Private) Ltd. 26 January 2012 Sri Lanka LKR337,712,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
batteries
Leoch Lanka (Private) Ltd. ZZ-ZF-AZHRE  REEF 337,712,000 HEMBENRESH
HERREL
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. NEIRERER (#&)

INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

ERBARZEN (&)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
AL/
WEAE HRL/ HRALH ERREEE BETRARES  FAAREERERAN W FERH
Direct Indirect
BE G
% %
Leoch Batteries India Private Limited 31 October 2012 India INR305,988,330 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Batteries India Private Limited ZZ-ZE+A=+-B HE 305,988,330 E B L seEmsEy
Big Help Group Limited (‘Big Help”) 19 May 2011 Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Big Help Group Limited (" Big Help 1) ZZ—ERRTAR B 187 RERR
EtREERE (R BRAR 23 June 2014 PRC* RMB1,607,458,555 - 100 Investment holding
(Leoch Investment Development
(Shenzhen) Limited) (i)
BHRERE (RY) ARG “E-mESAZT=R HE ANE#1,607,458,5557T wErk
LM ERRIARAR 29 November 2012 PRC* HK$10,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Shenzhen Lihang Battery Technology
Co., Ltd.) (i)
LM EREAMERAD) “Z-ZF+-BZ+NE ®Er 10,000,000%7% REER
Leach Super Power India Pvt 7 August 2015 India INR259,110,200 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
batteries
Leoch Super Power India Pt “2-REN\AtH fE 259,110,200 E &t HEMBHENRESH
Energymax Power (M) Sdn Bhd 10 July 2016 Malaysia MYR40,000,000 - 51 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
(‘Energymax’) batteries
Energymax Power (M) Sdn Bhd ZZ-RFtAtH ERAEE 40,000,000 BEMHEAREEY
(TEnergymax ) EREZRE
ZHASHHFERMEREAERAE 9 September 2016 PRC* RMB5,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Anhui Uplus New Energy
Material Technology Co., Ltd.)
(‘Anhui Uplus New Energy’) ()
ZHNBUERERMHMBEERAT  ZE-EABNR RE AR 5,000,007 wEEk

(FEBAE AR
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

31 December 2022

B HF+"HA=+—H

NEREBER (&)

BB ARZEN (&)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
ML/
HEAF ML/ HREH R EE BETREEES  FRARGEZESNL  TEEH
Direct Indirect
BE it
% %

ARBEAZERREERAF 9 January 2017 PRC* RMB110,000,000 - 60 Recycling and remanufacture of
(Taihe Dahua Energy Technology lead from batteries disposed of
Co., Ltd) (‘Taihe Dahua’) ()

AMBEAEERHNRERAE “Z—tE-FhH B AE 110,000,007 FEEEMONRELES
(TRMBHKE) ()

Tele Power Sdn. Bnd. (‘Tele Power’) 23 January 2017 Melaysia MYR1,000,000 - 51 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid

batteries

Tele Power Sdn. Bhd. ( Tele Power ) ZZ—t5-AZ+=F EXAD 1,000,006 REES S RENHERARER

Leoch Battery (Vietnam) Limited 29 September 2017 Vigtnam 1S$3,750,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid

batteries

Leoch Battery (Vietnam) Limited “E—t£hA_+HA #E 3,750,000%7¢ HENHERRESY

Leoch Super Power (Vietnam) Limited 29 September 2017 Vigtnam US$2,100,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid

batteries

Leoch Super Power (Vietnam) Limited “E—t£hA_+HA #E 2,100,000%7¢ HENHERRESY

Leoch France SAS 23 November 2017 France EUR100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries

Leoch France SAS ZE—tF+-EI+ZH #H 100,00081 7T HESBEEH

Leoch Nordeuropa GmbH 22 February 2018 Germany EUR100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries

Leoch Nordeuropa GrmbH —\EZBEZ+ZH A 100,000 HERREEH

Leoch Italia s.r. 11 October 2018 Italy EUR100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries

Leoch ltalia s.r! “Z-\Ft+A+-H BAR 100,000 7 HERBRERH

Leoch DBS Limited (‘LDBS") 28 June 2017 United Kingdom (GBP3,516,723 - 100 Investment holding

Leoch DBS Limited ("LDBS 1) ZE—tEAAZHAR HE 3,516,72388% wark
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

NEREBER (&)

ERBARZEN (&)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
B ave
WEAR ML/ ERAS R EE BETREEES  FRARGEZESNL  TEEH
Direct Indirect
BE %
% %
Leoch Battery UK Ltd. (‘LBUK’) 20 October 2015 United Kingdom GBP1 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Battery UK Ltd. (T LBUK J) “Z-AFt+AZ+HH <t 15 HERBERH
FIELERERERAD 21 September 2020 PRC* RMB10,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Shenzhen Leoch Power
Development Co., Ltd.) ()
RIELERREERAH) ZZIDEARCT-B  HE AR 10,000,007 HEAREEN
ZHETHAERERERAT 3 September 2018 PRC* RMB37,030,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lithium
(Anhui Leoch New Energy battery
Development Ltd.)
(‘Anhui Leoch New Energy’) ()
ZHETHERERERAT “Z-\ENA=H R AR #37,030,0007 RERHERSH
(MZEEBLHAER) ()
ZHEEBRERAF 11 August 2021 PRC* USD35,000,254 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
ZYEEBZERAF “2Z-ENAT-H R 35,000,254 7T HERMESH
IHETHERNEARAG( 9 December 2021 PRC* RMB200,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
IHELMERREARAH() ZZZ-F+ZRBAR R AR 200,000,007 HERBEEH
Leoch Battery Australia Pty. Ltd. 20 September 2019 Australia AUD200,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Battery Australia Pty. Ltd. ZZ-AEABZTH B 200,00087% HERMEEH
FIELEEEEERAT 24 March 2021 PRC RMB10,000,000 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
FIELEEEEERAT ZZZ-F-AZ+NE  4E AE%10,000,0007 100 HEREEEH
BEELREERAT 14 March 2022 PRC RMB200,000,000 100 Raw material procurement of lead-
acid batteries
BEELHRERAT ZERZE-F1IH HE AR 200,000,007 100 SHEEEHRMEEE
LEOCH IBERIA SL. (‘IBERIA”) 21 May 1992 Spain ESP2,000,000 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
LEOCH IBERIA SL. (TIBERIA 1) -WAZERBZ+-H EHF 2,000,000t 100 HEREREERH
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries
(continued)

* PRC represents the People’s Republic of China which
excludes, for the purpose of this report, the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region of the PRC, the Macau
Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan.

* USA represents the United States of America.
e BVI represents the British Virgin Islands.
(i) Limited companies under PRC law.

(i) Wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H
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31 December 2022
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2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs, which comprise standards and
interpretations issued by the IASB, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income, debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investeg).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of
voting rights results in control. When the Company has,
directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
it has power over an investee, including:

116 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2022

1HRREE

ZEMHHRRRBERM RS 2R MK
é%@ﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬁ?ﬂﬂ%ﬁ*iﬁ@ » BRI 5 4R
SEEEERE TR EZE S ERMIYE
AIMIEE RS « X SR THIRIRE L A8
PlARE > HIEERANEBEEF T AHME
HR o EntRE AREEZEEF AR
thEER@NEBRE - AREEEEFA
BamEREER A NEEED T ABDA
THREREHANBEE ZFUBRE
AR TARY)) 25 A BTERRIN i
BEETBREEREANT T

BHEE

ZERAVBRREELSERNRBET
::EE—F_H:—i——EIthEEE’\JEﬁ?%%E%%O
B ABNAABERIEEEN 2 EE
(8 Téy\uffﬁlﬁ,\ﬁa) cEAREES AWK
BREEEMSZ A 0IRA RRAES
;*ﬁ_%ﬂ A0H %ﬁﬁ%&?&ﬁ@TLﬁ%H%ﬂ

Mgkt AIRFZ BN UNAER
FESIE M IRE AR ZAEREE)) © BIE
REBERITRIE-

R—RRIER N FES B R AIERIE
ZHETE AR ERUBREERRER
BIRYIR R SR LUER) DI RS 8 R A&
ERFHEH SRR HRRE R 2B
EER—UMEREERER 21



-

2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangement;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceedls
before Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling a
Contract
Annual Improvements to - Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
IFRSs 2018-2020 llustrative Examples accompanying

IFRS 16, and IAS 41
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Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(@ Amendments to IFRS 3 replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with
a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual
Framework”) issued in March 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception
to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to
the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities
that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or
IFRIC 21 if they were incurred separately rather
than assumed in a business combination, an
entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or
IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively to
business combinations that occurred on or after
1 January 2022. As there were no contingent
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities within
the scope of the amendments arising in the
business combination that occurred during the
year, the amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position and performance of the
Group.

31 December 2022
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(b)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items as determined by IAS
2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has
applied the amendments retrospectively to items
of property, plant and equipment made available
for use on or after 1 January 2021. Since there
was no sale of items produced prior to the
property, plant and equipment being available for
use, the amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose
of assessing whether a contract is onerous under
IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises
the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the
incremental costs of fuffiling that contract (e.g.,
direct labour and materials) and an allocation
of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfiling the contract as well
as contract management and supervision costs).
General and administrative costs do not relate
directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to contracts for
which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations
at 1 January 2022 and no onerous contracts
were identified. Therefore, the amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(d)  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41.
Details of the amendment that is applicable to the
Group are as follows:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of
a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the
other’s behalf. The Group has applied the amendment
prospectively from 1 January 2022. As there was
no modification or exchange of the Group’s financial
liabilities during the year, the amendment did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.
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31 December 2022
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets

IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 16

IFRS 17
Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendment to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8
Amendments to IAS 12

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?
Insurance Contracts’
Insurance Contracts°

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and
IFRS 9 - Comparative Information®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments’) >*

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments’F

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates’
Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction’
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Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024
8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective
date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

5 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17
issued in June 2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply IAS 39
rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2023

6 An entity that chooses to apply the transition option
relating to the classification overlay set out in this
amendment shall apply it on initial application of IFRS 17

Further information about those IFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET 2.3 B AR AE BV PR EF

EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are
to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting
for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the
gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of
IFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

124 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2022

B EEL (&

BRI S 2R SB105E R BIFR G 51 2RI 58
285 AV A W EIFR M B R S 25510
SEEE R 5t R o8 IT RIR I B
MEARNGELEZBNEEEESH
WRENF - -ZFEITREERESE
HEHMENRNGEREZBENLENEE
B —IBEDR REEER THX2EM
A B ES 18 © B R TR R SR E ERY
RZME  REBRRZ W@ SERERE
FERREENZHERADNEELETE
BlEmiEE £ TR KEENER PR
Do B RAEREERA -BER G E
AIZEEN T —hF+_ABKRTEERM
B EERB105E R EFR G 5t 2RI 55285 AY
BT AR SRR HIE R B HA > HrBIsRHIERL
BRI e EZ B AERMEA AT REE
TENGHERERETE -AM > ZFETE
A A) (HERAR

BRI R S 2R B 16558 T 5] BRE
RAEBARGHEERARRZEENHEES
ERFTARRE » U RE S RABATE
FESRERPTR B EAEARENEIEn S
] FN — T NF—B—HHZ BB
FEIBEN > WA BERM RS 2R
F1EEREAEHR M- EF—K
—H) 2 BT UMERBRIRZETENE
R IRE] IR R - TRERER T A AR E E /Y
MBI EEAERTE -



-

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current clarify the requirements
for classifying liabilities as current or non-current, in
particular the determination over whether an entity has
a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least
12 months after the reporting period. Classification
of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations
that are considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022,
the IASB issued the 2022 Amendments to further
clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from
a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity
must comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current.
In addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional
disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising
from loan arrangements as non-current when it has
a right to defer settlement of those liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity
that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to
apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice
versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact of
the amendments and whether existing loan agreements
may require revision. Based on a preliminary
assessment, the amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET 2.3 B N8 M R X BV B PR A

EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant
accounting policies. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in
the amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-
mandatory, an effective date for these amendments
is not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the
accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency
with the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply
to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start
of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in IAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities
are required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred
tax liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits or other component
of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition,
the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning
obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception
and did not recognise a deferred tax asset and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences for
transactions related to leases. Upon initial application of
these amendments, the Group will recognise deferred
tax for all temporary differences related to leases at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented.
During the year, the Group has performed a detailed
assessment on the impact of amendments to IAS
12.The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QAFTESHHERE &)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.
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31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QATEGHHEME &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill EBaHEEE (8B)

(continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable BED BT HEmERRENIRSEE BN
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash- CREELBMUAR) N EIEEEETE
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where EReELEN CREELEMAR) 890K
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit Cl&RENREER > RDRERE B
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the R ERERE NN H B AR &

carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash- WHEENEEREELEMN FIREELE
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and BAAAR) MZBANHEFEHE A
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the BFTHEEFERMNEESTET HENF]
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is M EBER T AZERNEERE EZF5
included in the carrying amount of the operation when M EHENESE JHIRERAT & E e
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill BERREELEBUNRENETE

disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income, debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, structured bank deposits and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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31 December 2022
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

QAFTEEHRERE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated
as the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit
for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating
units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or
@iy is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 8-10 years
Office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years
Tooling and equipment 3-5 years
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant
and machinery under construction or installation and
testing. It is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction or installation and testing and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction or installation and
testing. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-
use asset which would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of 48 years.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition as cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QAFTESHHERE &)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Computer software

Computer software of the Group is amortised on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10
years.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship of the Group is amortised on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10
years.

Trademark

Trademark of the Group is amortised on the straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of 8 years.

Licence

Licence of the Group is amortised on the straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of 10 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as incurred.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Research and developrment costs (continued)

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products not exceeding five years, commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial
production.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 46 to 50 years
Properties 2 to 5 years
Plant and machinery 3 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

ease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (continueq)

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee are accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value

through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QAFTESHHERE &)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurerment

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value
change recognised in other comprehensive income is
recycled to the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments
and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent,
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QAFTESHHERE &)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets
(continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

152 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2022

ﬁgﬂ:ﬁﬁwuﬁrﬂﬁé 6:45)

UriE B E R RETLANFES A
RZBEBENRAREERAEEIREER
NEsAETE CIBRERE st8-

TRHEERE

FEBFFIA L IFRANBELZE T AR
WEB T ARIEMEEHE (RREEE
) B - TR EEBRBRENREBESHEIR
MWENREMERARERTEHWERIPIEIR
EREBZEMNERME > LUREHERX
BT LUEITIR - FRHIIR M ER B &R
R RpIRS M E AN SRR EM(E
[=t7Pani-liliks

—R 7 E

TRERE B RS 1E ) MBEERFEST « SLA) 1A FESE L
REERERILERBEINNEEROMmS
GAAARKI2(ER P SEEENENEMHFTEL
WiEEEE (12[E B RRHEERE sHERR
EEEBEER - SRR LIREE AR
tRIEMBYEEMOAME > AL TR O
B NMEHREENEERIEFHRRERE (F
MIENREE) ERREERS) -



-

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in
credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are one year past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which
credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but that are
not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but
that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings or payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
bills payables, other payables and accruals, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and interest-
bearing bank borrowings.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QAFTESHHERE &)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such
as commodity future contracts to hedge its price
fluctuation risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are recognised directly in the statement of
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis. The costs of raw materials comprise
the purchasing costs of the materials and other costs
incurred in bringing the materials to their present
locations and conditions. The costs of work in progress
and finished goods comprise direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of manufacturing
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

QAFTEEHRERE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Provisions (continued)

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the
sale of certain industrial products for general repairs of
defects occurring during the warranty period. Provisions
for these assurance-type warranties granted by the
Group are recognised based on sales volume and
past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QATEGHHEME &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued) FRigiR (48)

e in respect of deductible temporary differences o TTEFRHBARMBEATNKE
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recognised to the extent that it is probable SREEEIM B i A R R im A AR
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the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed RERSHRFERELERIBEE ERERE
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period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which is intended
to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
government grant account and is released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in IFRS 15.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QAFTESHHERE &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued) W=t (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) B S/ ()

(@ Sale of industrial products (@ HEIXEMR
Revenue from the sale of industrial products is HETXERNKR @R EEZTHEE
recognised at the point in time when control of the BRERRRERS —RARXNIEE
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on b o

delivery of the industrial products.

(b)  Sale of properties b) HEWE
Revenue from the sales of properties is HEMENKENTEEERES S
recognised at the point in time when control of the REEREST o

ownership is transferred to the buyer.

Revenue from other sources B 57 7 8 a

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis MHEWmZRBIEEEEERNFHRAE
over the lease terms. o

Other income HgA

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using MEW RIS EEUBRERMARE/MT
the effective interest method by applying the rate that BAGStARRIETES I (& A F HARA S a2 R
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts E (ER) W IR ERITIRE & E
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a IREREIFZERES -

shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
in exchange for equity instruments (‘equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial lattice model.

Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

QAFTEEHRERE (&)

aNaE

GRERNAEEREREY SRS EE

Al 8 & P BT RS RREIH AR E S
) BhEsl AN B ERAERETEH (B
ME P ERAREY IR 2 EFIR) R
B0 A Y

AR 7 2 BRI R

RABRE —ABRETE SEREARE
EEBHINFLEMNEERS RS ZHf
SRRRE - AEEES (BEES) B Y
DR 72 BB B9 (AT 75 TOUREEREN - T i
SRR AR IR EED TH (MUEmEHE
x5

R _EE_F+—BtHRERE ZEUE
mEENRZHMETI2ERHERNAR
BEESE &R AEBETRINEMEEMERA
TR RAFEIR AL RE o

T CEFR - BIEBRRMGERAS 165



Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of the reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been maodified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB. In
prior years, the Company’s functional currency was
RMB. As at 1 July 2018, the directors had re-evaluated
the economic environment of the Company and
determined that the functional currency of the Company
has been changed from RMB to USD given its major
funding and financing activities were raised increasingly
in USD. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continueqd)

Judgements (continued)
Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease
term not constituting a major part of the economic
life of the commercial property and the present value
of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial
property, that it retains substantially all the significant
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out and accounts for the
contracts as operating leases.

Tax

Determining income tax provisions requires the Group
to make judgements on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions in accordance with
prevailing tax regulations and practices and makes tax
provisions accordingly.

The Group’s determination as to whether to recognise
deferred tax liability for withholding taxes from the
distribution of dividends from the subsidiaries in the
PRC according to the relevant tax jurisdictions is
subject to judgement on the timing of distribution of
dividends. The Directors had assessed whether it is
probable for the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to distribute
dividends out of their profits earned after 1 January
2008. For details, refer to note 29 to the financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continueqd)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial years, are described
below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2022
was RMB2,405,000 (2021: RMB2,213,000). Further
details are given in note 17 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continueqd)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables (continued)

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of a customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 21 to the
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continueqd)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with
a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continueqd)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwil))

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
[t could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations, competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles or unforeseeable change in legal
enforcement rights in future. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continueqd)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Useful lives of intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related amortisation charges for its intangible assets.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of intangible assets of similar
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations. Management reassesses the
useful lives at each reporting date.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of an inventory is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market conditions and the historical experience
of selling products of a similar nature which could
change significantly as a result of competitor actions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each
reporting date. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the amount of recognition of inventory provision
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss was
RMB5,553,000 (2021: written down RMB7,331,000)
(note 6).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continueqd)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The amount of unrecognised tax losses as
at 31 December 2022 was RMB575,069,000 (2021:
RMB386,479,000). Further details are included in note
29 to the financial statements.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with
the accounting policy for research and development
costs in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires
management to make assumptions regarding the
expected future cash generation of the assets,
discount rates to be applied and the expected period
of benefits. At 31 December 2022, the best estimate
of the carrying amount of capitalised development
costs was RMB707,412,000 (2021: RMB690,888,000).
Further details are included in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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31 December 2022
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in power solutions
business and the recycled lead business.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM”) in order to allocate resources to
segments and to assess their performance. The
information reported to the executive directors of
the Company, who are the Group’s CODM for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
performance, does not contain profit or loss information
of each product line and the executive directors review
the gross profit of the Group as a whole reported
under IFRSs. Therefore, the operation of the Group
constitutes one reportable segment. Accordingly, no
segment information is presented.

No segment assets and liabilities and related other
segment information were presented as no such
discrete financial information is provided to the CODM.

Information about products

An analysis of revenue by product is as follows:

REDEPE R

REE T BN EERRT FRFEF KOS
ESEE

[ % Pt 755 R 5 22 I SE SR AR 0 BB AR E AR
BAEBRSEPIZ B EHMAIEEDEE
ERAEHREHEZEERARE (T EEE
RERE ) EHHER UDEERT D&Y
EOEERR -BELRBDRNTES BIF-EH
TEEERRE) 2ERAMDECE R TG
RIENENTEESERGIEDRERD #
TEFERREERMBREERNZR A
EEEEEN A AEEEERE—E
B2/ > WAREH D EE K}

T2 PEER & EUREMIERN S
BERD FEATBEERREREREE
BB TS E R o

EmE

REMRBI DR OTIT

2022 2021

—=E=C T —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT AREFT

Power solutions business BIRERFERER 10,432,834 9,249,219
Recycled lead business Bl e 2,413,025 2,053,906
12,845,859 11,303,125
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

(a)  Revenue from external customers

LEDEER (B

wEE R

@) HKEIEEEF B &

31 December 2022

" H#+”"A=+—H

2022 2021

s 2 —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT AR®ET T

PRC H 7,550,180 7,094,708
Europe, the Middle East and Africa BN A B K2 FEIM 1,892,764 1,893,018
Americas M 2,199,121 1,534,927
Asia-Pacific (other than the PRC) DARME (TEERE) 1,203,794 780,472
12,845,859 11,303,125

The revenue information above is based on the

locations of the customers.

(b)  Non-current assets

Fitm E R R E R FIEM DT

b) FABEE

2022 2021

—E-C 2 —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®EFT AREFT

PRC F 2,957,883 2,715,069
Other countries/areas HEMER, 420,773 537,803
3,378,656 3,252,872

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes
financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

FHIFRBEEEHERNZFEE
FRrEth DI BABiESR T RRIEL
MIREE o
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31 December 2022
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. KEFEER (#B)
INFORMATION (continued)
Information about major customers BEREXERRNEN
During the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue REE_ZE-__F+ZA=+—H1t
from continuing operations of approximately FE FEKEXEFRZPHINARE
RMB1,316,042,000 (2021: RMB1,366,728,000) was 1,316,042,000c (ZE - —F : AR
derived from sales of recycled lead products to a single 1,366,728,0007T) 2RBH—%EBE—FFHE
customer which contributed to over 10% of the total ClEHE R (BiEa—HENRAZERER
revenue of the Group, including sales to a group of HEES 2 THERNIEER) @ HAEE
entities which are known to be under common control 4BUT A BY10%LA o
with that customer.
v v
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME 5. Wz~ HtUR A KR z=
AND GAINS
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WU -
2022 2021
g —E T —1F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
Revenue from contracts with customers &R &4k 12,845,859 11,303,125
Revenue from contracts with customers EREHWE
() Disaggregated revenue information 0 KmERAES
2022 2021
g BT —1F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
Types of goods aYEn
Sale of industrial products HETXES 12,845,859 11,303,125
Timing of revenue recognition Wt 2 B 52 s
Goods transferred at a point in time I E{E RS ELEER:E 2 59 12,845,859 11,303,125
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME
AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

0

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amount of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that
was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the reporting period:

Wz

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

HWA R W (&

EREHWE (@)

()

Wt B (&,

TRITRRER S AGHERRN
M SRR S HARIFESE 2 N 58

2022 2021
—E-= —EC
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
Revenue recognised that was FFARSHYENEEN
included in contract liabilities at the BRI !
beginning of the reporting period:
Sale of industrial products HETXESR 194,424 189,666

Perforrmance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Sale of industrial products

The performance obligation for the sale of
industrial products is satisfied upon delivery of the
industrial products and payment is generally due
within 60 to 90 days from delivery, except for new
customers, where payment in advance is normally
required.

(i)

IERIE T

ERAERERNSEZERBENT

HETEER

HETEERNBASTNXIRE
B I REE E AR (HEST60H ZE90H
HE R LA EREERLNHR
Gho
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME 5. W@ HtR AR Uz (&
AND GAINS (continued)
2022 2021
—s-C =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREF T
Other income and gains Hhdg A R U&=
Bank interest income SRITH) B U A 16,451 10,567
Government grants* BT el B 85,711 37,767
Dividend income from equity investments 1§ €A% A ABEZS T A
designated at fair value through other HittemWmp#E=t
comprehensive income KEREA 7,343 -
Sale of scrap materials SHERER 6,264 7,594
Foreign exchange gains, net SMEEFE U 0 SR ER 80,639 -
Other lease payments, HMBEENHO SEEE[I®
including fixed payments 3,900 3,282
Fair value gains, net: RaABEWTE FEE -
Financial liability at fair value NAEBEEENF ABGRY
through profit or loss THEE 36,600 -
Others EHh 4,819 25,011
241,727 84,221

and subsidies provided by the local government
authorities to the Group as encouragement for its
investment and technological innovation. There are no

The government grants represent various cash payments

unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these

subsidies.

184 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2022

* BT 78 B 75 153 5 BUR BB FI4G T A EE B B9
KRBT U BB R AMTA
oA RS WA R EERF A T
REIH-



s

Notes to the Financial Statements BA#5RZMizE
31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H
I ANAYA
6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. MA@
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBWRBTEF TN GEA) UUTFIE
(crediting): B®EH -
2022 2021
g 2 —F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TT AREF T
Cost of inventories sold FREFBN A 9,795,721 8,355,437
Employee benefit expense (including EE®@FIFES (BIEFES
directors’ remuneration (note 9)): B (fF5E9)) :
Wages and salaries TERHE 940,852 941,935
Equity-settled share option expenses L1 & 45 E Y
BRI 4,916 2,932
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 107,316 75,340
1,053,084 1,020,207
Amortisation of other intangible HttmA B E s
assets except for deferred (R IE R 2 B ASBRSM
development costs 18 9,426 17,501
Research and development costs: A2 s
Deferred development costs I 90 R 55 Y Ak B
amortised* 18 191,447 181,778
Current year expenditure FRAZ 382,868 239,446
574,315 421,224
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEME = 3,100 2,900
Financial liabilities at fair value NRBEEEHABEZ
through profit or loss: Erdi S ==
Unrealised loss FREIRETIR 13 860
Realised (gain)/loss BEIB (k&) 8 (36,613) 72,273
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

EWENY2 =
6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. MA@ (&)
(continued)
2022 2021
—s-C “EC—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR®BTT AREF T
Fair value (gain)/loss from financial ~ AREEZEH T AEBRZZ
liabilities at fair value through profit ~ &EIEERN ANEE
or loss, net (Wz) #5380 B 58 (36,600) 73,133
Financial assets at fair value through A SEEZ T AEBRZ
profit or loss: THEE .
Unrealised loss REIRETIE 7 8,349 8,114
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-BERZEITE
equipment 14 351,048 338,687
Depreciation of investment property ¥ &Y 2EHTEE 15 11 11
Depreciation of right-of-use assets RS EITE 16(a) 9,610 10,467
Impairment of trade receivables 8BS EWRIERE 21 27,516 23,761
Impairment of inventories* FERIE 20 5,553 7,331
Loss on disposal of items of property, FRE&YZ  WE K& E
plant and equipment, net IHB kIR 3R 7 1,492 5,927
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net SMEERE R (Uem) 518
HEA (80,639) 11,532
Lease payment not included inthe ~ At ATHEEEFTEZ
measurement of lease liabilities MEM™ 16(c) 14,028 8,832
* The amortisation of deferred development costs and * FERERA#REREERES AGER

impairment of inventories are included in “Cost of sales” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

186 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2022

R E T



s

Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

7. OTHER EXPENSES

31 December 2022

" H#+”"A=+—H

7. HhExX

An analysis of other expenses is as follows: HMAEZ 2T
2022 2021
k= =Sk - 3 =T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREF T
Foreign exchange loss, net HNREDE W BT - FEE - 11,5632
Loss on disposal of items of property, BEEWXE  BWENMERHEHER
plant and equipment, net B8 - FEE 1,492 5,927
Fair value loss from financial liabilities at AAEBEEEHFT ABRZN R
fair value through profit or loss, net BENAAEEESE - F58 - 73,133
Fair value loss from financial assets at NAEBEEEYTABZNEH
fair value through profit or loss, net BEMNAALEBEEE  $8 8,349 8,114
Others Hib 4,602 3,888
14,443 102,594
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BAFERLZS
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBERADTAOT
2022 2021
—E-C =T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT AREF T
Interest on bank borrowings IRITIEEF B 119,779 103,058
Interest arising from discounted bills BEREREENFE 34,846 38,836
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNE 1,597 1,980
156,222 143,874
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EEFM=E

RiE EHRA FAREEMIE383(1)(@)
) OKMFER AT BREEEFmERD RE
FoaINE L FNESINENT -

2022 2021

k= =S - 3 T —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREF T

Fees BE 575 597
Other emoluments: Emme -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #& - ZEEREWRET 1,577 1,562

Equity-settled share option expenses iR AR ERERE 192 147

Pension scheme contributions RIREFF SR 76 76

1,845 1,785

2,420 2,382
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31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EEM<$ (&)
(continued)

(a) Independent non-executive () BWIEBITES
directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive EEIFFRTEEZ N ZBEUT !

directors were as follows:

Salaries,
allowances  Performance-  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
Mg
A £ HEm Rikg
i REWEN SREATL  BRER HEEEA o

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTR  AREBTT  ARETR  ARETR  AREBTZ  ARETR

2022 IBICE
Mr. Lau Chi Kit i 207 - - 28 - 235
Mr. Lu Zhigiang® ESREE 161 - - 2 - 184
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan ENERE 207 - - 2 - 235
575 - - 79 - 654
2021 5%
Mr. Lau Chi Kit ABmEE 199 - - 17 - 216
Dr. Nan XinSheng? Rk 199 - - - - 199
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan EMERE 199 - - 17 - 216
597 - - 34 - 631
* Mr. Lu Zhigiang was appointed as an independent * BN _E - _F=HB_+—
non-executive director of the Company on 21 HEZAAEARABBIULIERTES-
March 2022.
# Dr. Nan XinSheng resigned as an independent non- # EMAERTR S & —A—H#
executive director of the Company on 1 January ERABBILIERITES
2022.
There were no other emoluments payable to the FERLEEEILIFMITEESZTEM
independent non-executive directors during the Bl (CZE-—F 8o

year (2021: Nil).
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EEE #&)
(continued)
(b) Executive directors (b) BITES
Salaries,
allowances  Performance-  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
Mgz
Fi A3 &Em Rig
HE  REVEHN BNEETL  BRERR IR fam
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBFT ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR  ARETR
2022 Z&-C
Executive directors: yirE=S:
Dr. Dong i e - m - - 59 836
Ms. Yin Haiyan syt - 800 - 113 17 930
- 1,577 - 113 76 1,766
2021 EC-E
Execuitive directors: yirES:
Dr. Dong Li XL - 762 - - 62 824
Ms. Yin Haiyan MiEkut - 800 - 13 14 97
- 1,562 - 13 76 1,751
There was no arrangement under which a director FAMBREIAERESRERRRMN
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration BEAMENDH CE2—F 18| o

during the year (2021: Nil).
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2 _F+”"H=+—H

10.FIVE HIGHEST PAID 10. R & m i ES
EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year FARLRETNEET 8F—% (CT
included one (2021: one) director, details of whose T %) B HEMEFIEER X
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of HOoFR Hepms (CTZTEZ—F 1 M%) 3F
the remuneration for the year of the remaining four EEReEHNESNFBGEEOT
(2021: four) non-director, highest paid employees are as
follows:
2022 2021
—E_C —EC
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE ARBTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & 2 BE R EYIEF] 4,408 4,735
Equity-settled share option expenses D m S E R ER 304 417
Pension scheme contributions BIREFHE AR 46 67

4,758 5,219
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

10.FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid

10. B EEHMES (&

#HINB LR IFEENRSHMEEA

employees

whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as BT
follows:
Number of employees
EBEA#
2022 2021
—_E"C B
Nil to RMB1,000,000 ARBZTE
A E#1,000,0007t 2 2
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 A #1,000,001F
AR #1,500,0007¢ 1 1
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,500,001F
A R #2,000,0007T 1 _
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 AFE#2,000,001F
AR #2,500,0007¢ - 1
4 4
7,
.INCOME TAX 1.8

11

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and

operate.

AEBRBAMAEBNEARNEEMKEE
PRERN BN A EEEFTEL BRI ENRE
BEE RS-

IREFR 28 SRR KRR AT HBAR

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax
in this jurisdiction.

The subsidiaries, Honour Label, Peak Year, Shieldon
and Catherine Holdings, which were incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, are not subject to income tax
as these subsidiaries do not have a place of business
(other than a registered office only) or carry out any
business in the British Virgin Islands.
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11.INCOME TAX (continued)

Leoch Battery Corp., incorporated in the United States,
is subject to corporate income tax in the United States.
The applicable federal corporate income tax rate is
21% (2021: 21%) on taxable income.

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is based
on the statutory rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of the
assessable profits of subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong.

The Singapore authority approved the application of
Leoch Battery Pte. for the Global Trader Programme on
24 May 2014 and it was renewed on 30 August 2019,
the effective period of which is from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2023. The provision for the current
income tax of Leoch Battery Pte. is based on the tax
rate of 10% (2021: 10%).

The provision for PRC current income tax is based
on the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC as determined
in accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax
Law which was approved and became effective on 1
January 2008, except for certain subsidiaries of the
Group in the PRC which are taxed at preferential rates.

Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

11.FRISM (&

Leoch Battery Corp./55AEBIFEMALIL » B
ERBANEZEPTEN - MERMUAT S
BRANBAEEMERER21% CTEZ—
F121%) o

RIS RN EBEMA NN BT
BIRERIER BOAEIE165% (CF—
£ 1 16.5%) BHiRBE o

MMEERR _—_E—NEAB _+EA#
ERRZE—NF/\B=+B&HLeoch
Battery Pte. SRI2IKE st BINRF B
BHH_ZE—NF—A—HEE_Z_=F
+_— B =-+—H1kLeoch Battery Pte.BNEAFR
BITHIRME10% (CBEZ—F 1 10%) 5H2
B o

BREEERTENETHBARERBER
S EIRNERPR S I B R T AR P B 1 25 PR
BSiE (RMTE2SN\EFE-—F—HERERE
) F A EE R PRI E A BBV ERR
HLU2B%REEMR KRS H
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

11.INCOME TAX (continued) 11.

Jiangsu Leoch, Zhaoqing Leoch Battery, Anhui Leoch
Power, Anhui Uplus and Anhui Leoch New Energy were
designated as high-tech enterprises by the PRC tax
authorities and were entitled to a preferential tax rate of
15% for the year 2022.

Taihe Dahua, which engages in qualified recycling
businesses, is entitled to a 10% deduction of revenue
from manufacturing qualified products with main

FRiSH (&)

R " F IR BERETERZ
BEEL TR D BRI R ZHIETIEE
RERERFERRID/BMEREE =
BEERBRERER15%

AMBAERFTEGERLWES I=F1
SREREESERREMNEESERER
S EERI10%°

qualified raw materials.

The major components of income tax charge for the

year are as follows:

FRPMSMRAEZEME DN T -

2022 2021

-8 “EC—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Current — PRC BIEAFRIE — R B 29,428 15,581
Current — Hong Kong B IE—& 8 716 (8,010)
Current — Singapore BRERIR IB —H 103 37,963 28,414
Current — USA BIEAFRIE— = 2,824 3,796
Current — Vietnam BRI IE— i 440 (3,574)

Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFERERE/

(HBEaEH) 3,583 (4,501)
Deferred tax IRIETRIE (6,770) (6,471)
Total tax charge for the year FERRIES HAREE 68,184 25,235
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31 December 2022
—E-—f+-A=+—H
11.INCOME TAX (continued) 1. FriE1R (&)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable BAREBAI D NEIAMATERFEERDN
to profit before tax at the statutory rates for the EEMRESENBERNRAN G PTEIRE
jurisdictions in which the majority of the companies of SR EREREGTENRIERSZEHRN

the Group are domiciled to the tax expense at effective e

tax rate is as follows:

2022 2021
g 2
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARBFT % AREFm %
Profit before tax RENEF] 532,625 191,964
Tax at the applicable tax rates % ERREFER
M1E 122,422 23.0 43,775 22.6
Tax concession for certain aTHRELBNR
subsidiaries wES (70,614) (13.3) (29,407) (15.3)
Additional deductible research  ZESIBJ #0R AT 35
and development expenses i35+3 (41,339) (7.8) (28,667) (14.9)
Expenses not deductible for A0
tax 8,277 1.6 6,484 3.4
Adjustments in respect of BEREEE
current tax of previous MIBIEH
periods pd- =k 3,583 0.7 (4,501) 2.3)
Tax losses utilised from BRI
previous periods MIEEIE (1,482) (0.3) (444) 0.2)
Tax losses not recognised RHERRIERIE 47,337 8.9 37,995 19.8
Tax charge at the Group’s RAEEBRRE
effective rate SHENRIERX 68,184 12.8 25,235 13.1
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

12.

13.

DIVIDENDS 12.8 8
2022 2021
- -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREF T
Proposed final -HK10 cents EEAH—SR10E1U
(2021: Nil) per share CE2EZ—HF 8/ 121,302 -

The proposed final dividend for the year of 2022 is
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,357,854,935
(2021: 1,357,821,402) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

13.EARNINGS PER SHARE

PARENT (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share

are based on:

31 December 2022

" H#+”"A=+—H

1B.BARERERFAAE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY mERERN &)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

SRR A RS ER AR TR E

2022 2021
—E_C —EC—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
Earnings &ZF
Profit attributable to ordinary equity BREEEREAREERT
holders of the parent, used in the PASYNCIR= Sl s = DN
basic and diluted earnings (=pinyil
per share calculations 442,772 136,126
Number of shares
hES¢E]
2022 2021
—EICHF = —5F
Shares &1

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during
the year used in the basic
earnings per share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:
Share options

ARt ESRELTBINZFR
BETERRMEFIH

1,357,854,935

R — R
T

FERe e 3,878,398

1,357,821,402

2,400,353

1,361,733,333

1,360,221,755
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31 December 2022
2 H+ZHA=+—H

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. Y3~ TR E B2 1B
EQUIPMENT

Plant and Tooling and Construction
Buildings machinery  Office equipment Motor vehicles equipment in progress Total
£ HERREE N "B IERZE ERIR act
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AERFR AERFR AERFT AERTR AERTR AEHFR AERFR

31 December 2022 ZEICE+ZRZt-H
Cost: 7
At 31 December 2021 and RIEZ-E+ZAZ+-Ak

1 January 2022 “E-"E-FE-H 1,157,759 2923910 54,049 53,313 288,305 32,570 4,509,906
Additions HE 20,730 196,161 2,043 2,458 21,259 96,964 339,615
Transfers i 2,206 26,504 7 53 562 (29,332 -
Acquisiion from a subsidiary (note 36) S —EHEAE) (H5£36) - 850 - 172 504 - 1,616
Disposals 2E (66) (16,784) (398) ) (25,690) . @)
Exchange realignment EREE 3,354 7,314 140 415 3% 69 11,626
At 31 December 2022 RZE-"5+°A=+-A 1,183,983 3,137,955 55,841 55,638 285,364 100,271 4,819,052
Accumulated depreciation and RENERAE:

impairment:
At 31 December 2021 and RIET-E+-B=+-Ak

1 Januay 2022 - (366,500) (1,509,391) (30.783) (61,344) (259,524) (1,569) 2218,111)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ EMITE Rt (49,769) 283,715) (4,768) 4079) (8,724) - (351,048)
Acquisition from a subsiciary (note 36)  WE B —FEIHBAE (336) - (575) - (115) (255) - 945)
Disposals EE 51 13,291 282 589 24,836 - 39,049
Exchange realignment ERHBE (551) 2691 (39 (225) (187) - 1,689
At 31 December 2022 RZB-"F+°A=+-A (416,769) (1,777,699) (44,308) (45,167) (243,854) (1,569) (2,529,366)
Net carrying amount: KEFE:
At 31 December 2022 RZE-ZE+-A=1+-A 767,214 1,360,256 11,533 10,471 41,510 98,702 2,289,686
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14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (continued)

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

14. 9% - BERk&E (&)

Tooling and Construction
Buildings  Plant and machinery ~ Office equipment Motor vehicles equipment in progress Total
£ HE RS N "E IER#HE TRIR a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEETT NEBTR NEBTT NEETT NEETT NEETT NE#TT
31 December 2021 ZEC-E+IA=H-H
Cost: A
At 31 December 2020 and RIEZBETRA=T-R
1 January 2021 Z%5--£-F-H 1,151,754 2638918 48179 52,190 277,014 15,377 4283432
Additions HE 11,393 144,725 5814 6,552 12,833 101,287 282,604
Transfers E 4672 175,389 Y 568 2,53 (183,906)
Disposals RE (3614) 27,240) (461) (6,823) (3,753) - (40,891)
Exchange realignment ERBE (6,446) (7882 (205) (174) (324) (189) (15,239)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-E+ZA=1+-H 1,157,759 2923910 54,049 53313 288,305 32510 4,509,906
Accumulated depreciation and FetERAE:
impairment;
At 31 December 2020 and PIEIEEHZAZT-R
1 January 2021 “Z°-£-B-H (313,524) (1,283,152) (34,593) (39,259) (239,620) (1,569) (1911,717)
Depreciation provided ERfTERE
during the year (85,071) 250,706) (5,684) (6,031) (21,19) - (338,687)
Disposals i 517 21713 449 3810 1,091 - 27,580
Exchange realignment ERE% 1578 2754 4 186 200 - 4713
At 31 December 2021 RZE_-E+ZR=1+-H 366,500) (1,509,391) (39,783 (41,344) (259,524) (1569) (2218,111)
Net carying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2021 PIET-E+ZR=1-H 791,259 1,414,519 14,60 11,969 28,781 31,001 2,291,719

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s
buildings and machinery with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB734,964,000 (2021:
RMB800,281,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details
of the pledged assets, please refer to note 34 to the
financial statements.

RIE - —HF+_"RB=+—0 ~&EERT
BELH AR 734,964,000 (CEZ—F A
R #5800,281,0007T) 2 & TIEF K% B
FEAARERER —RIRITHEZER B
KRS EF AR FIRRME34 0
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTY

15. 1B %

2022 2021
—ECCE —EC—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREF T
Cost: A
At 1 January and 31 December R—HA—BK
+=-A=+—H 561 561
Accumulated depreciation: ZFIE -
At 1 January R—H—H (216) (205)
Depreciation provided during the year FRITEEE (11) (11)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (227) (216)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HAMEEE 334 345

The Group’s investment property represents one
(2021: one) industrial property in Mainland China which
was subsequently measured using the cost model.
The Directors have determined that the investment
property consists of one class of assets, i.e., industrial
property, based on the nature, characteristics and risk
of the property. The Group’s investment property was
revalued on 31 December 2022 based on the valuation
by management. Management has reviewed the
valuation assumptions and valuation results once a year
when the valuation is performed for annual financial
reporting.
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15.INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15.

(continueqd)

The investment property is leased to a third party under
operating leases.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

KREYE (B
SERENERECERELRS— 2=
75_0

RREEER

TREFIFEEREYENRABEFERE
R

property:
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2022 using
RIE-_“HF+°"B=+—HHNAABEHEFER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BTG EAUERE EATIUEER
HwE WARE WARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B1E) (82/8) (383JE) Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBFR AEBFR AEBTR AEBTR
Industrial property TEYE - - 14,142 14,142
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2021 using
RIBE-_—F+-RA=+—HNAABEFEEH
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
mEMY BRAERE BEARIHE
wE WA BUE WA BUE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E1E) (552/) (531 a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Industrial property TENE - - 14,680 14,680
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTY
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil).

The fair value of the investment property is determined
using the comparison method with reference to
comparable sale evidence as available in the relevant
market. Comparable properties of similar size,
character and location are analysed and selected
for the investment property in order to arrive at a fair
comparison of its fair value. The fair value measurement
is positively correlated to the market unit sale rate.

16.LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
property, plant and machinery and other equipment
used in its operations. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the
owners with lease periods of 46 to 50 years, and no
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of
these land leases. Leases of properties generally have
lease terms between 2 and 5 years, while plant and
machinery generally have lease terms between 3 and
5 years. Other equipment generally has lease terms of
12 months or less and/or is individually of low value.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.
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31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H
16.LEASES (continued) 16.718& (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEABEEAN B
(a)  Right-of-use assets (@ FHEESE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use AEBFERAEEENREERNERN
assets and the movements during the year are as BB -
follows:
Leasehold Plant and
land Properties machinery Total
HELM mE  BERKS ot

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT  ARBTT ARETT ARETE

As at 1 January 2021 R_E_—F—H—H 137,088 10,132 204 147,424
Additions NE 7 16,886 203 17,096
Disposal HE - (43) - (43)
Depreciation charge NEER (3,049) (7,218) (200) (10,467)
Exchange realignment ERAE (501) (633) (16) (1,150)
As at 31 December 2021 RZE-—F
and 1 January 2022 +-B=+—-Hk

_E_"F#—HF—H 133,545 19,124 191 152,860
Additions NE 81,5565 22,706 - 104,261
Disposal HE - (9,197) - (9,197)
Depreciation charge TEER (3,999) (5,505) (106) (9,610)
Exchange realignment fE R AR 280 425 7 712
As at 31 December 2022 RZE-Z"E

+-B=+-H 211,381 27,553 92 239,026
At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s AR T+ _RA=1+—H ' &EH
prepaid land lease payments with a net carrying A TIREFENA ARE45,859,0007T
amount of approximately RMB45,859,000 (2021: = AR38,008,00070) 1Y
RMB38,998,000) were pledged to secure general BTt EREERFEEALER
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details B —MERITHE 2R - BRI IEE
of the pledged assets, please refer to note 34 to BEZHIE AR BIRRMEE34

the financial statements.
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

16.LEASES (continued) 16.718& (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEABEBEAN B
(b)  Lease liabilities b)) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the HEaBENREERNFEANESEN
movements during the year are as follows: e
2022 2021
—g- —ET—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARBTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—BA—BEREE 20,468 11,131
New leases mHEE 22,706 17,089
Accretion of interest recognised FERERIEN EILE
during the year 1,597 1,980
Payments (RN 6,517) (8,975)
Revision of a lease term arising from 8 & 7~ 5] i £4 HA 5 A
a change in the non-cancellable P& Ak B TR HRIE ST
period of a lease (9,332) (32)
Exchange realignment PE A 249 (725)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HmREE 29,171 20,468
Analysed into: S
Current portion TRENER 6,504 4,046
Non-current portion IETRBNBL 22,667 16,422
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is HEaENEIEH TR ER I FSR
disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements. RIEE400
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16.LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation

to leases are as follows:

31 December 2022

" H#+”"A=+—H

16. 705 (#&)

FEEEREEAN &)

(c) I IEm AR BRI R T -

2022 2021
—E-- BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
Interest on lease liabilities HEaENE 1,597 1,980
Depreciation charge of FRESENEER
right-of-use assets 9,610 10,467
Expense relating to short-term B HATE E RN
leases (included in cost of sales, GTAHERE HE K
selling and distribution expenses) Saki=1 553 14,028 8,832
Total amount recognised in P8 m A FE B RIE4E R
profit or loss 25,235 21,279

(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in
note 33(c) to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its production and office premises
consisting of three production premises and fifteen
office premises under operating lease arrangements.
The terms of the leases generally also require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised
by the Group during the year was RMB3,900,000
(2021: RMB3,282,000), details of which are included in
note 5 to the financial statements.

@ FMENRESRHAERERMBERE
B 5E33(c) ©

FEBEALHEA

AEFRBCEHEZHEHESERE K

WMAEYE SIE=EEERE K+ AEH

REYE - ZEHENERTERBL LG

BRECURBRTH RETEHHEER

B EFAREBCRINASRAB AR

3,900,0007c (& ——4 : AR#3,282,000
70)  FEIBE R R TR R MIEES
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

16.LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

16. 1 & (&
AEBMELHEA (B

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease R _F+_B=+—H>HEXxEH
payments receivable by the Group in future periods RIFEEME P 2 A RS H BRI R
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants BRI ST -
are as follows:
2022 2021
—g- BT —1F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AREF T
Within one year —F A 1,915 3,503
After one year but within two years —F UL ERFUR 1,350 1,051
After two years but within three years MENEEBE=FUR 1,153 1,035
After three years but within four years =FLA EETAFAA 1,149 1,002
After four years but within five years WENREERFUA 1,047 999
After five years FE 6,551 7,537
13,165 15127
17.GOODWILL 17. 752
2022 2021
-t - 3 —EC—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREF T
Cost and net carrying amount: A K AR EDR B -
1 January —A—H 2,213 2,213
Additions (note 36) 10 (fy5E36) 192 -
At 31 December »+=ZBE=+—H 2,405 2,213

206 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2022



-

17.GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations
is allocated to the respective cash-generating units
(“CGUSs”) for impairment testing.

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to
CGUs as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

17. L8 (&)

AR E
BEREHGHEBNHEEDEESERE
EEBA (REEEBA) (ERERE-

NECERTETEUZHEREEBENT

2022 2021

ZEIZHE BT

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ANRET T

Energymax Energymax 237 237
Taihe Dahua KM KE 39 39
LBUK LBUK 1,937 1,937
IBERIA (note 36) IBERIA (Ff15£36) 192 -
Total waEt 2,405 2,213

The recoverable amounts of the above CGUs have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior
management.

The key assumptions adopted on the growth rate and
discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations are
based on management’s best estimates. The growth
rate of 3% (2021: 3%) is determined by considering
both internal and external factors relating to the CGUSs.
The discount rates applied to the cash flow projections
are 15% (2021: 15%) for Energymax, 16% (2021: 16%)
for Taihe Dahua, 11% (2021: 11%) for LBUK and 14%
for IBERIA.

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount of goodwill is based would not
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed its
recoverable amount.

REEEBUNIWRISREDRERERE
FRALEEREER IR MZIBEERE
BRI SREEEBHEN D FHMHRE
AR

STEAEREEFRAINERERITIREN
FERRLENRBEEBNREMT 3% (Z
T —F 3% WIERENKEEHAIRS
EXBUMARNRIRIINIRREBRETE -
Energymex » XF1F4 A  LBUKKZIBERIAIR &
METEAMRANITIRES N A15% (CTF
T 115%) ~16% (TEZ—F 1 16%) &
1% (CTEBEZ—F 1 11%) K14%-°

EEERA BN WOSERKEZTE
BREREASEEE TEENHENR
EEBEHEA[EEER -
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

=TT, =
18.0THER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. Hthimf B E
Deferred
Computer  development Customer
software costs relationship Licence Trademark Total
iR
BiESH RERE RRA% il ] b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETE  AREFfn ARETR ARETT ARETR  ARET:
31 December 2022 & "#+°A=1+-H
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of RZB-_"&-F—H
accumulated amortisation HIRA MRt 5,153 690,888 14,131 54,061 6,776 771,009
Additions HE 3,050 207,971 - - 6 211,027
Acaisition of a subsidlary (note 36)  WnEE—FRIMBAE (f3£36) - - 2,384 - - 2,384
Amortisation provided during the year P84 (1,258) (191,447) (1,538) (6,488) (142) (200,873)
Exchange realignment ERRE @ - (304) - - (306)
At 31 December 2022 RIZEZZF+-A=1+-H 6,943 707,412 14,673 47,573 6,640 783,241
At 31 December 2022: RZE__F#+°A=1+—-H:
Cost Bk 27,039 1,654,843 22,988 108,126 26,154 1,839,150
Accumulated amortisation EEH (20,096) (947,431) (8,315) (60,553) (19514)  (1,055,909)
Net carrying amount REZE 6,943 707,412 14,673 47,513 6,640 783,241
31 December 2021 & -#+"A=+-H
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of RZZ2-_-E-F—H
accumulated amortisation W MR EH 2,545 622,325 15,937 64,874 9,856 715,537
Additions AE 4,755 250,341 - - - 255,096
Amortisation provided during the year ~ E R 55 (2,141) (181,778) (1467) (10,813) (3,080) (199,279)
Exchange realignment ERBEE (6] - (339) - - (345)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-5+ZB=1+-H 5,153 690,888 14,131 54,061 6,776 771,009
At 31 December 2021: RZBZ-E+-B=+-H:
Cost A 23,998 1,446,872 21,053 108,126 26,148 1,626,197
Accumulated amortisation 2EHEH (18,845) (755,984) (6,922) (54,065 (19,372) (855,188)
Net carrying amount FEFE 5,153 690,888 14,131 54,061 6,776 771,009
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31 December 2022
—E-—f+-pA=+—8
19.EQUITY INVESTMENTS 19. {5 AR BEESSTA

DESIGNATED AT FAIR HitheEKRENERER
VALUE THROUGH OTHER B
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2022 2021
—E-= —E- &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBET T
Equity investments designated at IEEE A NBEES T AHM
fair value through other SEHNENERERE
comprehensive income:
Unlisted equity investments, FLrmERMRE
at fair value BAREE 255,044 182,680

The above equity investments were irrevocably
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income as the Group considers these investments to
be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
disposed of part of its unlisted equity investments. The
fair value on the date of sale was RMB468,000 (2021:
RMB9,004,000) and the accumulated gain recognised
in other comprehensive income of RMB236,000 (2021:
RMB4,369,000) was transferred to retained earnings.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
received dividends in amount of RMB7,343,000 (2021:
Nil) (note 5).

HRAEERAZEREBRBMRE A
It m R E NI B tEE R QA N EEE
st AHfth2EUEm o

BE_Z-_"F+A=t+—HIEFE &
EEEHEES DR EHREERE P
EHBENRAAEES ARE468,0007T (ZF
:—E : AR #9,004,0007T) Eﬁ’:Hﬁﬂ%ﬁ
W FE SR AN R 5T A R 1#5236,0007T (=
——% : AER¥84,369,0007T) B%ﬁéﬁ%
wmAloEE %::EH—H:Jr—EJtE
> AR B UERIR B A R 157,343,0007T (=
T—&F | (fF5x5) °
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

20.INVENTORIES

2022 2021
—E-—F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTRE ARBTT

Raw materials il 581,131 533,335
Work in progress TG 742,248 705,902
Finished goods B Y 813,091 780,019

2,136,470 2,019,256

As at 31 December 2022, inventories with the amount
of RMB5,553,000 (2021: RMB7,331,000) were written
down to their net realisable value as disclosed in note
6.

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s
inventories with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB100,000,000 (2021: RMB100,000,000) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group. For details of the pledged inventories,
please refer to note 34 to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

21.TRADE RECEIVABLES

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

21. B Z FEU R IE

2022 2021

—E-CF 2 —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT AR®ET T

Trade receivables B 5 E N EIE 2,817,996 2,781,405
Less: Impairment provision B BB EE (81,772 (55,703)
2,736,224 2,725,702

The Group grants different credit periods to its
customers. Credit periods for individual customers are
considered on a case-by-case basis. Certain customers
are required to make partial payments before or upon
delivery. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and closely monitors them
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. Trade receivables
of RMB424,787,000 (2021: RMB405,033,000) were
under short term credit insurance and RMB81,857,000
(2021: RMB69,434,000) were under letters of credit.
In addition, the Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group pledged certain
trade receivables amounting to RMB407,147,000
(2021: RMB365,908,000) to banks with recourse
in exchange for cash (note 34). The proceeds from
pledging the trade receivables of RMB300,102,000
(2021: RMB303,376,000) were accounted for as
collateralised bank advances until the trade receivables
were collected or the Group made good of any losses
incurred by the banks. The details of the transfer of
factored trade receivables are included in note 41 to the
financial statements.

AEBRAEFAEFABANEER SEE
FHEEHZ—EE - &TEREARKN
AR TR EHEB DR A EESRKREH
RIEEZENENRIBAE R BRES R
BERZEFRT BB EERK SR EER
B & T AR RA IR T RAERR - B S IR
Er A R #8424,787,00070 (ZEBE_Z—%F | A
FS1%405,033,0007T) 5] B A2 RS Rk
ANE#81,857,0007t (ZE2=—F : AR
69,434,0007t) AIFTHEE A& o thoh » AREE
BRI 2 AR A AR 1R R SR ER E A
EERAEN - B R EUGEIEA TR

M-S - —F+"B=+—H ~ERBEIR
TERETHEERENEZEINTIE £58
AARE407,147,0007c CEZ—F AR
365,908,0007T) » #ELUREIRE (I5E34) o8
198 7 FEIGRIEPT 1 7018 A R #5300,102,000
7T (B —45 ¢ AR#303,376,0007T) 757
EEIRIRIRITREI EERSE S ERAIE
B O AEBBRIETEENTAERES
LE o RIZE 5 BN IBSH R 2 s IBE N B 75
e TR
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

21.TRADE RECEIVABLES
(continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 based on the invoice date,

21. B S EIE

A — Y-

IR (48)

—F+ZHA=+—H

E’J B RIGRIER R (REREE) B9

net of loss allowance, is as follows: ERE A0 ¢
2022 2021
—E-CHF T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT AREFT
Within 3 months 3MEA R 1,991,360 1,966,971
3 to 6 months 3ZE61E B 392,070 380,395
6 to 12 months 6E12EH 222,677 187,106
1 to 2 years 1524 81,352 111,608
Over 2 years 2FED F 48,765 79,622
2,736,224 2,725,702
Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of B S EWRIE R EBEEENEEETIU
trade receivables are as follows: N
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETF T
At beginning of year REH 55,703 44,286
Impairment losses (note 6) BEEE (Mie6) 27,516 23,761
Amount written off as uncollectible HEE T AT & %R (1,447) (12,344)
At end of year NG N 81,772 55,703
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Notes to the Financial Statements BA#5RZMizE
31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H
21.TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. BZRIKFIE (&
(continueqd)
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting RERESHIALRBEEEEETRED
date using a provision matrix to measure expected Mo UstEEREEHB - BHEXIDERE
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days AR MEEREINZER D EETY
past due for groupings of various customer segments 48 BIHnIRE I~ S8R B P8R R TR
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, RiERBHEMEE RN REZER)
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage M EARY B #ET & o 2ot & e BB = N 45
by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance). R EBFERPREHPTENERIBE
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted EIE BEIRME R AR REERAETBANGIE
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable KAl FEEE - —KRME » B ZEWEIEN @
and supportable information that is available at the HREE — a0 B e d BT Eh AT LUMEE o

reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally,
trade receivables are written off if past due for more
than one year and are not subject to enforcement

activity.
Set out below is the information about the credit risk TR EEFEREEEEAENESE
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a WHRIBNEERBER

provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2022 W2+ -H=+—H
Current Past due Total
Ep&A bl st
Customers Customers
with credit Ordinary with credit Ordinary
enhancement customers enhancement customers
EERAN EERA
ER BEER &R BREER
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBEX 0.59% 0.93% 9.97% 100.00% 2.90%
Gross carrying amount REAE
(RMB’000) (NEEF ) 2,028,030 595,551 144,532 49,883 2,817,996
Expected credit losses BHEERE
(RMB'000) (NEEFT) 11,924 5,550 14,415 49,883 81,772
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

21.TRADE RECEIVABLES
(continued)

As at 31 December 2021

21. B 5 EWRIE (8)

R_Z_—F+"A=+—H

Current Past due Total
BER gl 4Bt
Customers Customers
with credit Ordinary with credit Ordinary
enhancement customers  enhancement customers
EERAN EERAN
®FR EEER ES BEER
Expected credit loss rate BHEEHEXE 0.15% 0.94% 0.70% 100.00% 2.00%
Gross carrying amount REAE
(RMB'000) NS0 2,093,745 448,003 192,586 47,071 2,781,405
Expected credit losses BHEERE
(RMB’000) (NEETT) 3,044 4,232 1,356 47,071 55,703

22.DEBT INVESTMENTS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The balances as at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021 represent bills receivable held by the
Group which were measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, since the bills receivable were
held within the business model whose objective was
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and the contractual cash
flows were solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

22 DEBT INVESTMENTS AT FAIR 22. ’Aﬁﬁ‘ffﬁ*@ﬁﬂ\ L fth 2

VALUE THROUGH OTHER HKENEFKRE (&)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(continued)
The ageing analysis of bills receivable presented RIZEZF+ZA=+—HRZZZ—F
based on the issue date at 31 December 2022 and 31 —l— B=Z+—H%RHEQHRRY 2 EWRERE
December 2021 is as follows: BRESOATUNT ©
2022 2021
—E-H B %
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Within 3 months 3EAA 143,465 7,017
3 to 6 months CEG(EDS 12,589 74,955
6 to 12 months 6ZE121E A 5,351 24,377
161,405 106,349
The net loss on changes in the fair value of the debt FRARBEEFFAHEMEEUED
investments at fair value through other comprehensive BEEREN LA ANEEEHNGEBIFEAR
income amounting to RMB835,000 (2021: gain #835,000t (ZEZ—F  Km AR
RMB1,683,000) was recognised in the consolidated 1,683,0007T) IR & Hth 2 E U R P FERD
statement of other comprehensive income during the
year.
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

=+ =+
23.PREPAYMENTS, OTHER 23. FAafdmIE s Ht IR IE X
RECEIVABLES AND OTHER Hth&EE
ASSETS
2022 2021
—E-C B2 —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREFT
Prepayments BT RIE 342,207 187,952
Deposits and other receivables 71 & R H M B W RIB 121,143 30,515
Interest receivables JE U F) B 5,738 2,114
Loans to employees mEBEHHER 4,344 2,888
473,432 223,469
The financial assets included in the above balances SR EENSME ERBETIRELY
relate to receivables for which there was no recent Stk BE B N E - F R "%
history of default and past due amounts. As at 31 T —HF+IZA=+—8 > xEEBGHEEE
December 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance was BEEME-

assessed to be minimal.
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31 December 2022

2 _F+”"H=+—H

24.FINANCIAL ASSETS/ 24. N BEEFFT ABEN
LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THEE &8&
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2022
g
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETR®

Listed equity investments, at fair value ~ _EHHEHFMEHERE  BANEE 136 -
Commodity future and option contracts, & mHIE REAE G4
at fair value BAREE - 13
Other unlisted investment, at fair value ~ EHMIE FHEE AR ERE 51,815 =
51,951 13
2021

—S-—f&
Assets Liabilities
BE =K
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREBTRT

Listed equity investments, at fair value  EHEmMERE > BARNEBE 134 -

Commodity future and option il E RS
contracts, at fair value BAREE - 851
Other unlisted investment, at fair value ~ EHfthIE LR &E - A A BE 67,664 -
67,798 851
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

24.FINANCIAL ASSETS/

LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

The above equity investments were classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as
they were held for trading.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such
as commodity future and option contracts, to manage
the lead price fluctuation risk, which did not meet the
criteria for hedge accounting and are measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

The above other unlisted investment was the right to
receive the proceeds from future sales of the properties.
It was mandatorily classified as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss as its contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interest.
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25.CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

25. 3 & R SR1TAS BRIA S E A

=+
AND TIME DEPOSITS EZ N
2022 2021
—ECCHE =T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREF T
Cash and bank balances R RIRTTH &R 436,194 349,229
Time deposits EHFER 793,806 602,513
1,230,000 951,742
Less: Pledged for interest-bearing bank A Brtst BRITHE SR
borrowings (5,397) (4,269)
Pledged for bills payable BBt R (415,947) (440,448)
Pledged for letters of credit Bt EAEE T (372,462) (157,796)
(793,806) (602,513)
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREeEFEY 436,194 349,229
Denominated in RMB UABR®HE 1,015,042 794,299
Denominated in US$ MUZETEHE 134,421 63,627
Denominated in HK$ ATEHE 31,583 48,508
Denominated in Australian Dollar (‘AU$”)  LUR TS (FR7T)) 5T1E 13,990 7,526
Denominated in Euro (‘EUR”) AT ( TBRFT) ) &HE 13,278 16,252
Denominated in Indian Rupee ENE E L EHE 8,090 9,682
Denominated in Vietnam Dollar MR EETE 6,076 4,074
Denominated in Malaysian Dollar (‘MYR") A BRFAG<SH
( [BRABELEH] ) 1E 3,485 3,002
Denominated in Sri Lankan Rupee e B RELLEHE 2,958 1,953
Denominated in Singapore Dollar (‘SG$”)  AFT N ( [#hT! ) HE 1,077 2,919
1,230,000 951,742
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

25.CASH AND BANK BALANCES

AND TIME DEPOSITS
(continued)

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

26.TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

25. & K SRITHE R A K E HA
E& #E)

ARERS EHRIAEING > 28T RIBT
B SN B HIR G S AE EE ~ EE R AT EEEER
B AEREEAEBZBRERTRARER
BRIEINELUEITINE TS

FRIRTRIR SR E B IRTTERAIRAY T E)
BERBREA R - RRAERERZERR—
BE=ZERA % RYEERZERREE
SKIMTE » & BIRFEHZ A RERF] B < IR
TR IR R E I T a2 15
BRYFAVIRTT -

26. B 5 R RIA R BT 215

2022 2021
—E-—F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTRE ARBTT

Trade payables =07 ANE QL] 782,273 962,108
Bills payable FERT R 1,578,771 1,357,143
2,361,044 2,319,251
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26.TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

(continueqd)

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

B S RARIAREN RS

(4)

RREIR > BREAIRBREN RIERE
FHHARERE DT

2022 2021

s 2 —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETT AREFT

Within 3 months I ENEEA 833,140 940,531
3 to 6 months 3Z61#E A 608,572 396,338
6 to 12 months 62121E A 906,326 966,295
1 to 2 years 1Z224F 8,092 10,052
2 to 3 years 2E3F 2,247 1,815
Over 3 years BiB3F 2,667 4,220
2,361,044 2,319,251

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on 90-day terms. All the bills
payable have maturity dates within 365 days. As
at 31 December 2022, bills payable amounting to
RMB684,236,000 (2021: RMB637,180,000) were
issued on intercompany sales transactions within the
Group and these bills were discounted to banks for
short term financing.

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s bills
payable were secured by the pledge of certain of the
Group’s time deposits amounting to RMB415,947,000
(2021: RMB440,448,000) (note 34).

BEENRIBATRE  B—MRAEROH
R 1T o T B FE{T 35950365 H R EIHA o
R_E__F+_"_B=+—H > KEEH
EERARBETHHERZETEEES
AR 1684,236,0007T (ZEZ—F | AR
637,180,0007T) MFE T =4 > B ERRAL
RFIRITIEITHARE o

A TE T TF+_HA=t+—H AEEAET
FES ERMUAEE & REA AR 415,947,000
7T (T2 —%F | AR%8440,448,0007T) B9%&
TFEREMNERIERR (I5E34) o
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

27.0THER PAYABLES AND 27. HEN R IB R FEsT & H
ACCRUALS
2022 2021
=== —E-—5F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Py sE ARBTRT ARBTT

Provision for social insurance e R B AR IREH B

and retirement benefits 191,124 168,652
Contract liabilities =LK (@) 284,339 194,424
Accrued expenses FEsth X 86,192 162,381
Accrued payroll fEETTE 51,128 50,344
Payables for purchase of items of BEE#)% M= K&

property, plant and equipment  JEHE HIFE(T RIS 114,382 128,324
Provision for product warranties = R E & B H 22,891 18,968
Tax payables other than current  FE{I 318

income tax liabilities (RIERPT IR B EFRIM) 94,087 174,358
Payables to non-controlling FETIEIE PG IS B 2 h1E

shareholders 37 72,371 52,064
Others Hith (b) 135,947 127,788

1,052,461 1,077,303
Notes: Mk -
(@)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (@ FBRASHNEESFBEUT:
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
== —ET
+=ZB=+—8B +ZA=t+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FTT AREETIT
Short-term advances received from customers = EI=F -k
Sale of goods HEEY 284,339 194,424

Contract liabilities are short-term advances received to
deliver industrial products.

(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have no fixed (b)
terms of repayment.
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31 December 2022
2+ ZHA=+—H
= /il a m
28.INTEREST-BEARING BANK 28. 51 RIR1TEE
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
“2-CE+ZR=1-R “2_-%+F=1+-H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB‘OOO
BIRHIE(%) 518 ARBTR BIRAIZ%) El:d] ANEETFT
Current ik
Interest-bearing bank FERTER BHER 1.88t0 8.17, 2023 998,205 188107.09, 2022 1,001,485
borrowings, secured HIBOR+2.76 to ket HIBOR+2.76 to “ECCF
HIBOR+5.17 HIBOR+3.25
1.88E8.17+ LIBOR+2.5
HIBOR+2.76% 1.88%7.00
HIBOR+5.17 HIBOR+2.76%
HIBOR+3.25
LIBOR+2.5
Collateralised bank advances, TR BHRE 200 to 457 2023 300,102 200104.79 2022 303,376
secured LIBOR+2 Z3°= LIBOR+2 2
2.0024.57 2.00F4.79
LIBOR+2 LIBOR+2
Interest-bearing bank borrowings, SHEBOEE AR 20010 7.26 2023 1,066,414 1.80106.00 2022 549,093
quaranteed HIBOR+2.5 b St HIBOR+2.5 ECTE
LIBOR+2 LIBOR+2
2.00%7.26 1.80£6.00
HIBOR+2.5 HIBOR+2.5
‘ LIBOR+2 LIBOR+2
Current portion of long term bank RERGEERSHD BER LIBOR+2.70 2023 276,843 LIBOR+2.70 2022 188,539
borrowings, quaranteed ZEC= CEICE
2,641,654 2,042,493
Non-current Frg
Interest-bearing bank SERMER BHER 1.88 10 6.00 2024-2028 28,626 1.88106.10 2023-2028 65,883
borrowings, secured 1.88%6.00 ZEIMEE 1.8826.10 b St 3
‘ “Bo)\E ZEC0\E
Interest-bearing bank FERTER BER 3.00 to 4.60 2024-2025 39,807 3.00 2023-2025 12,445
borrowings, Quarantesd 3.00%4.60 ZZMEE
‘ ‘ 3 :
Interest-bearing bank HERTEE BER LIBOR+2.70 2024 - LIBOR+2.70 2023 251,385
borrowings, guaranteed —ECME -
68,433 329,713
2,710,087 2,372,206
Denominated in RMB MAE®:HE 1,730,454 1,109,735
Denominated in US$ METatE 600,530 806,231
Denominated in HK$ WA E 338,494 397,739
Denominated in SG$ MEcatE 24,962 35,064
Denominated in MYR LERESS SHE 13,938 17,070
Denominated in EUR WETEHE 1,709 -
Denominated in VND MBmEsE - 6,377
2,710,087 2,372,206
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28.INTEREST-BEARING BANK
BORROWINGS (continued)

28.

StRIRITEE (&

Analysed into: SR -
2022 2021
= =S —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AR¥T T
Bank loans and advances repayable: AR THREEN
IRITER RN
Within one year — &R 2,641,654 2,042,493
In the second year = 22,620 297,719
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E_EFEFRE
BiEEEME 44,547 29,971
Beyond five years AFE 1,266 2,023
2,710,087 2,372,206

The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by the
following pledge or guarantees:

()  pledge of the Group’s assets with a total value of
RMB1,293,367,000 (2021: RMB1,309,456,000)
for the bank borrowings as disclosed in note 34;
and

(i)  cross guarantees executed by companies within
the Group.
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28.INTEREST-BEARING BANK

BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group entered into a three-year term loan facility
agreement amounting to US$100,000,000 on 7 May
2020, as supplemented on 28 January 2021 (the
“Facility Agreement”) with certain financial institutions
(the “Lenders”).

Under the Facility Agreement, there are specific
performance obligations on Dr. Dong Li, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, not to cease to own,
directly or indirectly, at least 51% of the beneficial
interest in the Company, carrying at least 51% of the
voting right, free from any security. Further, Dr. Dong Li
shall not cease to have management control over the
Company or cease to be the Chairman of the board of
directors of the Company. At the date of approval of
these audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022, such obligations have
been complied with.

Several of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries
were parties who act as guarantors, and the entire
equity interests in two wholly-owned subsidiaries were
pledged, to guarantee punctual performance of the
Group’s obligations under the Facility Agreement.

As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding term loan
balance under the Facility Agreement amounting to
US$40,000,000 (equivalent to RMB276,843,000),
which is repayable within one year. The term loan bears
interest at LIBOR+2.7% per annum.

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

28. 5t BIR1TEE (&

TEBR _ S _SERATHAET SR
1 (MR A) 57373 %84%100,000,000E 7cHY
—EFHERRE R TN - —F—F8
THN\BEmEER IR (RERED)

RiERER AREBRVED EFEL
(FmABHERRS) MR IEES (BRIE
B AABEDS1 % EmiEm (HELD51%
AURARNE) (RHHMEMEHES) o tboh EF B+
MR IR AR EIREFI A HIE
ARBNEFEIFE - RHUEZFERE"T
T Ht T R=1T—HLLFELEZGEEY
BB AEEEERFEET-

FARETEENBARIERERA—T
W WEEENBARNEHREFRE
o RRAERERBEITREHRE TS
f£o

RIE - —HF+"RB=+—H m&EHEE

T iERERTE B MRAEER4340,000,000% 7T
(FREN AR #276,843,0007T) * BR—F

WIEE - EHIEREFIZUBOR2.7%5t 2. ©
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29.DEFERRED TAX 29. IRIEFTIE

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities FRIRIEIRIBEE K EENEFBEROT :
during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets IREIRIEEE

Change in fair Change in

Depreciation value of debt fair value of

and Equipment investments financial

Provision for impairment invested in at fair value liabilities

impairment of property, subsidiaries  through other Unpaid Provision for Deferred at fair value

of frade plant and with revalued  comprehensive payrolland  impairment of Unrealised government through
receivables equipment Tax losses amounts income accruals inventories profit grants profit or loss Total

AEERE AREESD

HEBER SRAEMRY  HARNRE HARES

ERENTE RENER RENKERD WEHERRE KHTIER £RAMAN
HERE A i ] Haf  NOAEELE EHER  GHRAESR REMEH  EEMRRR  OAGE2E &3t

RMBO00 RVB000 RVBO0 RVBO0 RMBI00 RMBI00 RMBI00D RMBI00D RMBIO0D RMBIO0D RMBIO0D
ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTm ARETm \RETm

Gross deferred tax assefs at 31
December 2020 and 1 January 2021

Ef 8673 2,757 18,296 1379 57 1,106 3,954 1205 7,920 268 61,724

Defered tax credited{charged) EREA/ (K

o the statement of proft or BIHE

loss during the year 2854 (1,459) 2,983 (12 - (682) 1,674 2176 1,691) (183) 4,960
Defered tex credited fo RS2 ENER

other comprehensive s

income during the year - - - - (&21) = = - - - (&21)
(Gross deferred tax assets & WZEZ-F+ZAZ+-H

31 December 2021 RIEZZE-F-BY

and 1 January 2022 BEHAEEEE 11,627 1298 219 667 126 10423 5208 940t 6229 8 66,263
Defered tax credited{charge) RGN/ (A BREN

to the statement of proft or B

loss during the year 7854 (266) (10,052 (667) - 1,009 833 5420 5 84) 4748
Defered tax charged to other FRIRERMAENGENE

comprehensive income fisiac]

during the year - - - - 208 - - - - - 208
Gross deferred tax assefs

at 31 December 2022 19,381 1012 1,221 - 334 1,482 6,061 14621 6,944 1 A3

1
-
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29. JEIETRIA (A&
EAERR A

29.DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

Change in fair

value of equity Change in fair
investments value of
designated Fair value financial
atfairvalue  adjustments assets
Capitalised through other arising from at fair value
interest  comprehensive  acquisition of through
expense income subsidiaries profit or loss Others Total
ek
NBEEES
HARM
2EhEN Wi ARBEEER
BEtRE  MBLAREE  HABEN
BESEH HWARERE ZRRBE EREEN
HER 28 #E  DREEES Eh Eh)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEETR AEEFT NEBTT AEBTT AEBTT AEBTT
Gross deferred! tax liabilties PIZZSE+IR=T-BR
at 31 December 2020 I e il
and 1 January 2021 ELRESELE 3,844 9,460 20,042 16,771 4486 55,503
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the FRME/ GHA) BERN
statement of profit or loss during the year EERE (1,298) - (3,695) 144 3338 (1511)
Deferred tax credited to other ERARMRENRNETHE
comprehensive income during the year - (659 - - - 659)
Bxchange realignment ERHE - - (51) - - (51)
Gross deferred tax liabities RIEZ-E+ZA=+-Hk
at 31 December 2021 ZECZE-R-AN
and 1 January 2022 ETRESELE 2,546 8,801 17,19 16,915 7824 53,282
Deferred tax charged/[credited) to the R/ BN BERY
statement of profit or loss during the year EERE (129) - (1,65) (2,088) 3,010 (2,028
Deferred tax credited to other ERs AR 2 ENENELRE
comprehensive income during the year . 12,448 - . - 12,448
Bxchange realignment ERHE - - 478 - - 478
Gross deferred tax iabiities RZZZZE+ZR=1+-H
at 31 December 2022 EnBaakae 1,248 21,249 16,022 14,807 10,834 64,180
TR CEFR - BIERRTERAR 227



Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

29.DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB575,069,000 (2021: RMB386,479,000) that will
expire in five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

PRC withholding income tax of 10% shall be levied on
the dividends declared by the companies established
in the PRC to their foreign investors out of their profits
earned after 1 January 2008. A lower 5% withholding
tax rate may be applied when the immediate holding
companies of the PRC subsidiaries are incorporated or
operate in Hong Kong and fulfil the requirements under
the tax treaty arrangements between the PRC and
Hong Kong.

At 31 December 2022, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future and therefore, no deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised as at 31 December 2022 and
2021. As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB899,203,000 (2021:
RMB756,158,000).
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BIERIE (4
IEEMIASE ()

AEEBRFAERANMELERBEBBEAR
#575,069,00070 (ZE - —F : AR
386,479,0007T) > ZAIER] A FEARBRIEE
REEFR N c AN ZEBIBIHERSIR
— R BB ABIPTES  t R
RIFIERIBEE &> RAEB AT KA BER FEF
HUEA A B AR TR RS 1B °

RPENINABRESIIMNGEETIRE
TZN\F—A—BHERDGEF RS-
10%BYF5 R AR oA B TR P S 762 o fisf o B B
BABNWERIERAS NN EBEMA I
REBEEERNETRAEETENRBBER
HERTE » BIFEFS%MEETRIN IR EK

M-S - "HF+_RB=+—H wERLE
& 7E AP Pu 3t LRV B B8 A B B AR B 2R F)
CESMTEINR) B TEINREDIRILR
Ho-BEERA ZEWBABERRERAR
AAEDERMN MR _E - _FKr_F
T —F+Z A =1+—HU R HERIELER
BHaE RN _E-__fF#+-/A=+—H#&
A R B P I B B A B Y B B R AL A ALt
IR IEE BN R ERRES L
A FR1899,203,0007t (CE—_—F: AR
756,158,0007T) ©
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—E-Z&+ZA=+—8°
30.SHARE CAPITAL 30. iz
Shares B& 17
2022 2021
g BT —F
Authorised: ETE
10,000,000,000 (31 December 2021: 10,000,000,000 (Z&E - —%F+_
10,000,000,000) ordinary shares of H=-+—H :10,000,000,000)
HK$0.1 each (HK$'000) REREELIBTHNEBER
(F%E7T) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
1,357,954,666 (2021: 1,357,854,666) 1,357,954,6660% (&2 - —14F .
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 1.357,854,6660%) S ISEE0.1
(HK$'000) BITHBBR (BT 135,775 135,785
Equivalent to RMB’000 HERARETT 116,250 116,241
A summary of movements in the Company’s share KNI EEN AU T -
capital is as follows:
Number of
shares in Share
issue capital
BRITROEE Rz
Note RMB’000
B 5% ANERETT
At 1 January 2021 A —F—HF—H 1,357,644,666 116,224
Exercise of share options 1TERE R (i 210,000 17
At 31 December 2021 A ZET—F+"HB=+—H
and 1 January 2022 E_E-__F#—H—H 1,357,854,666 116,241
Exercise of share options TIERER 100,000 9
At 31 December 2022 NS _F+_B=+—H 1,357,954,666 116,250
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30.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

31

Shares (continued)

()  The subscription rights attaching to 100,000
share options were exercised at subscription
price HK$1.02 per share, resulting in the issue of
100,000 shares of HK$0.10 each for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of RMB91,000.
An amount of RMB54,000 was transferred from
the share option reserve to the share premium
account upon the exercise of the share options.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option schemes and

the share options issued under the schemes are
included in note 31 to the financial statements.

.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a pre-IPO share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible persons who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Eligible persons of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme include the Company’s directors
and other employees of the Group. The Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme became effective on 1 June 2010 and
expired on 31 May 2020.
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31.

17 ()

()  100,00017 B ARG HEBE M ISR B E 3%
SR1.02BTHRBEETHE ENE
17100,0008% = B& I {E0. 1078 T8I %
P RNBFREZMNRBSREAAR
#91,0007t - BEICEET R > ARTE
54,000cEl BB IR REERERMD
EEIRA o

RBhE

KNAEERE B RIRBEZ S 8T 2B
Rtz s IFBU I B R AR MY EE31

fshctEstEl
BERAREERBIRESE

KFABBITERAREEREREE (M
RARMBERBRESE) SEAEER
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is available to the
directors and employees (whether full time or part time)
of any member of the Group.

The maximum number of the shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be 60,000,000 shares,
representing approximately 4.5% of the total issued
share capital of the Company immediately after the
completion of the global offering, taking no account of
the exercise of the over-allotment option.

The subscription price in respect of each share under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is determined by the
board of directors at its discretion and set out in the
relevant offer letters provided that it should not be less
than the nominal value of the shares.

After 28 October 2010, no further options will be
offered or granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme but in other respects the provisions of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any options granted prior thereto or
otherwise as may be required in accordance with the
provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, and
options which are granted on or before 28 October
2010 may continue to be exercisable in accordance
with their terms of issue.

Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

JEiRESTE (B

BRAREEMBRESE (@)

BRAREERBRETEBRHTER
ERRERENEERES (TmEREFR
B o

Adiss s =R YNESE: e LT g e
H R AR HEBI B9 81 B L BR#§ %360,000,0008%

R BERARBNEEEINEETRE
(REt RATHEBERICRE) NE TR A
RE494.5% °

BRAREENBRIES B TSREKRN
ESERE 2 EEE%%‘%&EE’]IMHQE’E%Z
REREBARGRN BEFBOIRRANE
=0

RIZ—ZFF+A-+/\B%& ~TEBHRE
BRAREERBRES SR EEM
Hithfgheté  BER R ERBREE
AU RSCE R A S ERARB + R IMIER
MEEIE 2 Bt MRV BB AR R Ty Rl 1T 3k
RIEERAFREENBRESZFURE
mAiTiTeE MR —E—2F+HB=+/\H
S AR BB AR 1 > 19 P IR IR I SR T
IRRAEE T LUIT
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

Any exercise of an option granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is subject to conditions as may
be specified in the offer letter in respect of the grant of
options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year:

31.

BicEstE ()

BRAREEMBIRESE (@)

TEREERARE SRR RIE LAY
FERR ELUR L BB AR I Y B AT BRI 1 P 51 BR 2 A%
o

Rt I TR AR UZAR
BRRRKRERG LRE-

RENBRAREERIERESEITE N KR
TTEREEAR LT

2022 2021
g —EC—F

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options

miEFS TS
17EE BREHE TEE BREHE

HK$ HK$
per share ’000 per share '000
BRET Fi5 BKRET )
At 1 January w—A—H 1.19 5,942 1.17 6,490
Exercised during the year FRTH - - 0.20 (80)
Lapsed during the year RPN 1.28 (5,692) - -
Forfeited during the year FRRIK 1.36 (250) 1.03 (468)
At 31 December BR+ZA=+—H - - 1.19 5,942
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31. BB HEETE) (B)

(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BRAMBEFBRESS &)

(continued)
Movements in the Company’s share options under the TR ARBN B R MAEEFEREE
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year are as IETNREREESINT
follows:
Number of share options
BRiEYE
At Lapsed  Forfeited At31 Date of Exercise Exercise
Name or category of 1January duringthe  duringthe  December grant of share period of  price of share
participant SRERLNER) 22 period period 202 options  share options options  Vesting period
i
it k- St
kSt +2B BRE
-B-B EA%R  ERRM  =t-B RHAE BRECES BRECER  BEE
HKS per share
shiEn
Director i3
Ms. Yin Haiyan mEELt 150,000 (150,000) - - 1Jwne2010  1June2012to 1.200 () agrantee s enifled to exercise 25% of the total number of options granted at any time during
Z2-2F  31May 202 the 10 years after the second anniversary of the date of offer (the “Offer Date”) of the options
7~A-H 5% with the relevant vesting period from the Offer Date up to the date immedately before the second
7~A-HE amiversary of the Offer Date;
3% () FRAEENBRERODS(BMRM) ST EEL T ERRBORCERRRESYZ
1A %% MEEEREREA N ERRENBNE_BENERL
=t-B
(i) a grantee s entitled to exercise an additional 25% of the total number of Options granted at any
N time during the 9 years after the third anniversary of the Offer Date with the relevant vesting period
Other employees in HitfEg 5792000 (55420000 (250,000) - 1Jne2010  1Jue2012to 04002000 from the Offer Date up to the date immediately before the third anniversary of the Offe Date;
aggregate SEORE Sl My 222 i) RRABRRES EENENERTERRERRBE B TR
AA-B & RRPNEANBEIRRENANEZREEAEAL,
7A-BE
:§::5f (i) a grantee is entilled to exercise a further aditional 25% of the total number of Options granted at
B 1A any time during the 8 years after the fourth anniversary of the Offer Date with the relevant vesting
=t-B period from the Offer Date up to the date immediately before the fourth anniversary of the Offer
Date; and
i) ZRABRNENRRELAES\ERRRTECERBRELH BRI 5% M
FRRML RN REERERONEEMERAEAL R
(1v) a grantee s entifled to exercise the remaining 25% of the total number of Options granted at any
time during the 7 years after the ffth anniversary of the Offer Date, with the relevant vesting period
from the Offer Date up to the date immediately before the fth anniversary of the Offer Date.
W) ZRARRRENRAEIRFR L FRBRTEDERBRRER K% ER
BN RN R R RN O SRS EAL
5042000 (5,692,000 (250,000) -
At 31 December 2022, the Company had no share RWIE - _F+-HB=+—H xR EIrH
options outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option RAGIEREFIBRESTEI T W EARITHIEE
Scheme. &1 o
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continued)
Share Option Schemes

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“2010 Share Option Scheme”) which was approved
and adopted by the written resolutions of all the
shareholders of the Company passed on 14 October
2010 (as amended at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 18 May 2018) for the purpose
of providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons
for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of, the Group and for such other
purposes as the board of directors may approve from
time to time. Eligible persons of the 2010 Share Option
Scheme include any director or employee (whether full
time or part time), consultant or advisor of the Group
who, in the sole discretion of the board of directors, has
contributed to or will contribute to the Group. The 2010
Share Option Scheme expired on 13 October 2020.

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“New Share Option Scheme”) which was approved
and adopted by the written resolutions of all the
shareholders of the Company passed on 30 October
2020 for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards
to eligible persons for their contribution to or potential
contribution to the Group and to enable the Group to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group, and
for such other purposes as the board of directors may
approve from time to time. Eligible persons of the New
Share Option Scheme include any executive or non-
executive director including any independent non-
executive director or any employee (whether full-time
or part-time) of any member of the Group, any trustee
of a trust (whether family, discretionary or otherwise)
whose beneficiaries or objects include any employee
or business associate of the Group, any adviser or
consultant (in the areas of legal, technical, financial or
corporate management) to the Group, any provider of
goods and/or services to the Group who the Board
considers, in its sole discretion, has contributed to the
Group.
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continued)
Share Option Schemes (continued)

The 2010 Share Option Scheme and the New Share
Option Scheme are available to the directors and
employees (whether full time or part time) of any
member of the Group.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting and certain disclosure and reporting
requirements.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the 2010
Share Option Scheme, the New Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes, must not, in
aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the 2010 Share Option
Scheme and the New Share Option Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting and certain
disclosure and reporting requirements.
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continued)
Share Option Schemes (continued)

The subscription price of share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
() the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii)
the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company'’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company. A consideration of
RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of the offer of an
option or options.

After 13 October 2020, no further options will be
granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme.
However, the provisions of the 2010 Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of any options,
which were granted during the life of the 2010 Share
Option Scheme, and may continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue.

The New Share Option Scheme became effective
on 30 October 2020, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the
date of adoption of the New Share Option Scheme by
shareholders by resolution at a general meeting.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31. lER TR (&
(continued)
Share Option Schemes (continued) FBRREETE (8B)
The following share options were outstanding under the MU A5 R2010F A ST 8 Aot ig AL i st
2010 Share Option Scheme and the New Share Option SIE T BRI TIEREARAE -

Scheme during the year:

2022 2021
—g-C TET—F

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options

T T
1fEE fEREHE 71eE fElREHE

HK$ HKS
per share ’000 per share '000
SHET Fig SRAET T
At 1 January K—B—H 1.09 53,030 1.27 38,080
Granted during the year ERRE 0.57 37,500 0.82 20,450
Exercised during the year FRTE 1.02 (100) 1.02 (130)
Forfeited during the year FRRI 1.23 (8,950) 1.30 (5,370)
At 31 December K+ZB=+—H 0.84 81,480 1.09 53,030
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continued)

Share Option Schemes (continued)
Movements in the Company’s share options under the

2010 Share Option Scheme and the New Share Option
Scheme during the year are as follows:

31

BikEstE (B

RERRHESTE ()

FR2010F BRS8NI ESTEIIE T

AT T ¢

Number of share options Closing price
e of the shares of
the Company
Date of Exercise immediately
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant of Exercise price of before the date
category of SHEHAT 1 January during during during 31 December share period of share on which options
participant 4] 2022 the year the year the year 2022 options  share options options  Vesting period were granted
| Bk Tl BlkiE 588
| - a3 RHiBH s 1 ZRERERY
- S +2B REAAAT
-B-B FREH  FAGR FARM =1-A i zBHHE
HKS per
share
SRR
Directors E £
Mr.Cao Yidong Aan BTt 4 300,000 = - - 300,000 22 November 1 December 1.020 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 1020
2016 201710 exerciseble at any ime on or after 1 December 2017;
ZZ-RE 21 November () EEEREAH =97 -IR_B-tE+A-BZE
+-B 200 EARERGE;
Z+ZH Btk (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
+-A-RE exercisable at any time on or after 1 December 2018; and
3 i) EEEREAH =92 -IR_E-\F+_A-BHzE
+-A FAREAGE &
Zt+-8 (i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any ime on o after 1 December 2019.
i) EREREAR B T=02- TR F-NET2A-RY
ZBARRBAGE
M. Cao Yixong Aln ~ BTRERSE 200,000 = = - 200,000 19July2019 1 August 2020 1.280 () One-third of the total number of the share opfions granted are 0610
ZZ-AE 018 July 2029 exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2020;
tAthE ZE0%E () EREREER2=HZ-TIR_F_FE\B-BAZEE
NA-BE ARERTE;
ZEIhE (i) One-third of the total number of the shere options granted are
tB+NB exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2021; and
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i) EREREER2 =2 -TIR_F_—E\B-BAZEE
ARRERTE; &

(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2022.

(i) ERBEREERZET=02— IR _F__E)\F-Raz
BERREATE
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continueqd)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

L

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

31. B #EsTE (@)

st (@)

Number of share options Closing prce
MERRE of the shares of
the Company
Date of Exercise immediately
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited A grant of Exercise price of before the date
category of SHENAY 1 January during during during 31 December share period of share on which options
participant Eh 2022 the year the year the year 2022 options  share options options  Vesting period were granted
y Bk fakiE kg SEH
| o RHAH 18 i ZRERERY
- S +ZA REMEAT
-A-H FRELH AR FREN =t+-A R ZUHE
HKS per
share
ShREn
Directors (contiveg) — E% (4
M Cao Yixong Aln ~ BTRELE 300,000 - - - 300,000  3Apr 2020 16 Aprl 2021 0600 () One-third of the totel number of the share options granted are 0480
“ET%E fo exercisable at any time on or after 16 Apri 2021;
BEZH  2Api 2030 () ERERELSZ =D -AR"F_-EMAtABAZE
ZE-& FAREAGE;
nA+/BE (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
“E-%E exercisable at any fime on or after 16 Apr 2022; and
mAZH i ERBEREARZ =2 -IR-F__ERET/ARGZE
FAREAGE &
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 16 April 2023,
(i) EEEREAR BT -TR_EZENA+AAY
2&ERREAGE.
M. Cao Yixong Aln ~ BTRERSE - 300,000 - - 300000 24 October 1 November 0520 () One-fourth of the total numboer of the shere options granted are 0530
2022 202310 exercisable at any time on or after 1 November 2023;
ZIE 23 0ctober () ERBRELEZDGZ-IR-F_=E+-F-Ba2k
+AZ+0A EAREAGE;

(i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or aftert November 2024;

) BEBRELYZ NGNS RE+-F-B2E
EAREAGE;

(i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after November 2025; and

i) EREREAR DA -IR_F_RE+-E-AdzE
FAREAGE &

() The remaining one-fourth of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 November 2026.

() ERBREAR S TOAZ - TR B AET-A-HY
ZEEARERGE.
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continued)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

Number of share options

31.fEfieiEst 8 (@)

Rz EstE (@)

Closing price
WERRE of the shares of
the Company
Date of Exercise immediately
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant of Exercise price of before the date
category of SHEHAY 1 January during during during 31 December share period of share on which options
participant Bh 2022 the year the year the year 2022 options  share options options  Vesting period were granted
| Bk Tl fkE SEH
| o RHiBH 18 i ZRERERY
- S +2B REMEAT
-A-H FRELH ERfE FREN =t+-f R ZUHE
HKS per
share
SREL
Directors contive) &% (4
Mr. Lau Chi Kit i 300,000 - - - 300,000 2 1 December 1,020 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 1,020
November 201710 exercisable at any time on or after 1 December 2017;
2016 21 November () EREREARZ=AZ-IR-F-tE+E-AdzE
IB-pE 2026 EARERGE;
TR it 3
Z+IH  ftIR-BE (i) One-third of the total number of the shere options granted are
ZIIRE exercisable at any ime on or after 1 December 2018; and
+-A i) EREREER2 =2 -IR_F-\E+E-AdzE
-8 FABEAGE &
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 December 2019.
(i) ERBREAH BT =D -TR_F-NE+-A-AY
ZEEARERTE
Mr. Lau Chi Kit fRREE 200,000 - - 200,000 19 July 2019 1 August 1.280 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 0610
o Sy iK:3 20201 exercisable at any fime on or after 1 August 2020;
tA+hA 18 July () EEBRESH =92 -TR_E2_FF\F-RYZEE
209 ARERGE;
3
NB-BZ (i) One-third of the total numboer of the shere options granted are
“EThE exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2021; and
tA+NE i ERBEREARZ =D -TR-F_-F\B-RAZkE
ARERGE; &
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2022.
(i) EREREERZET=22-IN_F__E)\F-Raz
BEREENTE.
1
-
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continueqd)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

L

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

31. B #EsTE (@)

st (@)

Number of share options Closingpice
WA of the shares of
the Company
Date of Exercise immediately
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited A grant of Exercise price of before the date
category of SHENAY 1 January during during during 31 December share period of share on which options
participant Eh 2022 the year the year the year 2022 options  share options options  Vesting period were granted
S Bk Bk Bk 588
| o RHiBH 18 i ZRERERY
- S +ZA REMEAT
-R-8 ERiRH ERfTfE FREN EiaH i zHE
HKS per
share
S
Directors (contiveg) — E% (4
Mr, Lau Chi Kit i 300,000 - - - 300000 3Ap2020 16 Apil 2021 0600 () One-third of the total number of the share options ranted are 0480
ZEIZE to2Api 2030 exercisable at any time on or after 16 Apr 2021;
mA=H  EI-£ () EREREARZ =2 -IR-F_-ERET/RLZE
mA+ABE FAREAGE;
e =t 2
mAZH (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 16 April 2022; and
) BERBRESSZ=02-TR"F__ENA+RAAE
FAREAGE R
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 16 Apri 2023,
(i) ERBRESH BT =0D2-TR R =FNA+ AN
ZEEARERTE
Mr. Lau Chi Kit i - 300,000 - - 300000 24 Ociober 1 November 0520 () One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are 0530
2022 20230 exercisable at any ime on or after 1 November 2023;
Z5IIE 23 October () EEBREAH/ND 2 -AR B =F+-F-Bz%
TEZtmE 032 EARERGE;
3
+-A-B% (i) One-fourth of the total number of the shere options granted are
-3 exercisable at any time on or after November 2024; and
TAZt=8 i) EEEREAR NS 2R B_ME+-A-BH2E

ERBREATE; &

(i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after November 2025; and

i) EREREAR DA -IR_F_RE+-E-AdzE
FAREAGE &

() The remaining one-fourth of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 November 2026.

() ERBRESH B TONZ-TR R RE+-A-AY
ZEARRBATR
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continued)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

31.fEfieiEst 8 (@)

Rz EstE (@)

Number of share options Closingpice
MRS of the shares of
the Company
Date of Exercise immediately
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant of Exercise price of before the date
category of SHEHAY 1 January during during during 31 December share period of share on which options
participant Bh 2022 the year the year the year 2022 options  share options options  Vesting period were granted
| Bk Tl Bk SEH
o RHiBH 18 i ZRERERY
+ZR REMEAT
ERiRY ERfTfE FREN Shr=f i zBHE
HKS per
share
&R
Directors contive) &% (4
Mr. Lu Znijang EFA%E - 300,000 - - 300000 24 October 1 November 0520 () One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are 0530
202310 exercisable at any time on or after 1 November 2023;
23 October () ERBEREARZ A2 -IR-F_=F+-F-Adz%
203 EARERGE;
a3
+-B-BE (i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are
ZESCF exercisable at any time on or after November 2024; and
TEZt=8 ) BEBRESYI NG -TN B RE+-F-BE2E
EARERGE R
(i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after! November 2025; and
i) BRERRERRAZ AN _F_RE+-E-AYzE
HARERGE; &
(1v) The remaining one-fourth of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 November 2026.
Y2 B TRAZ- AR R EH—-B-BY
T
Ms. Yin Haiyan g%t 150,000 - - - 150,000 22 November 1 December 1020 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 1.020
2016 2017021 exercisable at any time on or after 1 December 2017;
ZZ—RE  November 2026 (| ERBRESSZ =D -AR-F-tETE-BEZE
- E-tE FAREAGE;
ZtZB  tZA-BE
ZETRE (i) One-third of the total number of the shere options granted are
+-A exercisable at any time on or after 1 December 2018; and
Z+-H i) EREREER2 =2 -IR_F-\E+E-AdzE
EARERGE R
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 December 2019.
(i) ERBREAH BT =D TR F-NE+-A-AY
ZEEARERTE
1
-
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ZEZHE+ZR=+—H
st S (&)
31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31. M e st &l (4%
] - A 3 = —
Share Option Schemes (continued) B EETE (8B)
Number of share options Closingpice
WA of the shares of
the Company
Date of Exercise immediately
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited A grant of Exercise price of before the date
category of SHENAY 1 January during during during 31 December share period of share on which options
participant Eh 2022 the year the year the year 2022 options  share options options  Vesting period were granted
y Bk Bk kg SEH
| o RHiBH 18 i ZRERERY
- S +ZA REMEAT
-A-H FRELH AR FREN =t+-A R ZUHE
HKS per
share
ShREn
Directors (contiveg) — E% (4
Ms. Yin Haiyan Ryt 150,000 - = - 150,000  4December 16 December 1442 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 1430
2017 201810 exercisable at any time on or after 16 December 2018;
ZE-tE 3 December () EREREAEZ=HZ-IR-F-\E+ZE+RRGZ
+ZEmE 2027 BEARERITE;
“E-\F
+ZA+/E (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
EIECtE exercisable at any time on or after 16 December 2019; and
+tZE=H ) BERBRESEZ=02-TR"F-AETZE AL
BERRENGE; &
(ii|The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 16 December
2020.
(i) EEBREAH BT -TR_B_EF+2A1/A
2 EEARERTE.
Ms. Yin Haiyan Ryt 900,000 - - - 900,000 19y 1 August 2020 1.280 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 0610
2019 018 exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2020;
2 3 July 2029 () EREREAEZ=NZ-TR-F_FE\B-RAZEE
tAthR  CE2EE ARERGE;
NB-BZ
“EThE (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
tAtNE exercisable at any fime on or after 1 August 2021; and

) EREREASZ =2 IR"F—%/\B-REZ&E
ARERGE; &

(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2022.

(i) ERERERB BT 02 IR-F__EN\A-Ruz
BATEEATE
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31. BB EEtE (&)

(continued)

Share Option Schemes (continued) FBRREETE (8B)

Number of share options Closingpice
WERRE of the shares of
the Company
Date of Exercise immediately
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant of Exercise price of before the date
category of SHEHAY 1 January during during during 31 December share period of share on which options
participant Bh 2022 the year the year the year 2022 options  share options options  Vesting period were granted
| Bk Tl Bk SEH
o RHiBH 18 i ZRERERY
+ZR REMEAT
ERiRY ERfTfE FREN Shr=f i zBHE
HKS per
share
&R
Directors (contineq)
Ms. Yin Haiyan 300,000 - - - 300,000 SApr 16 Aprl 2021 fo 0600 () One-third of the totel number of the share options granted are 0480
200 2 April exercisable at any time on or after 16 Apri 2021;
k- 2 2030 () ERBRELSZ =D -AN"F_-EMA+ABAZE
WMA=R & EARERGE;
MA+7BE
“E-%E (i) One-third of the total number of the shere options granted are
mAZH exercisable at any fime on or after 16 Aprl 2022; and
i) EREREER2=H2-TIR_F__EME+ A%
EARERGE R
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 16 Apri 2023,
(i) ERBREEH BT =0D2-TR_E=FNA+AY
ZEEARERTE
Ms. Yin Haiyan PERLE 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 13 January 16 January 0560 () One-fith of the total number of the share options granted are 0560
2021 202210 exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2022;
I3I-f 12 January () EEBRESH BN -AR_B__F-B+/B2E
—-A+=H 2031 EAREAGE;
“ECCE
—B+/EE (i) One-fitth of the total number of the share options granted are
5= exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2023;
-At+ZA i BRERELSZ 1D -AN"F_=E-B 1Bk
FAREAGE;
(i) One-fith of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2024;
i) ERBRESEZ 102 -TN "S- NE-B+rB%
EAREAGE;
(1v) One-fith of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any ime on or after 16 January 2025; and
() BRERBERZEAZ TR _F_RE-F+/BAZE
HARERGE; &
v} The remaining one-ffth of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2026.
() BEBREAH BTN - TR B AE-A+1AY
ZAARRBAGE
1
-
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31.BBIGEETE (B)

(continueqd)

Share Option Schemes (continued) B EETE (8B)

Number of share options Closingpice
MERRE of the shares of
the Company
Date of Exercise immediately
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited A grant of Exercise price of before the date
category of SHENAY 1 January during during during 31 December share period of share on which options
participant Eh 2022 the year the year the year 2022 options  share options options  Vesting period were granted
y faliE Bl kg SEH
| o RHiBH 18 i ZRERERY
- S +ZA REMEAT
-A-H FRELH AR FREN =t+-A R ZUHE
HKS per
share
ShREn
Directors (contiveg) — E% (4
Ms. Yin Haiyan Ryt - 1,000,000 - - 1,000000 0 1 October 0572 () One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are 0540
September 20231030 exercisable at any time on or after 1 October 2023;
2002 September () EREREARZEAZ-IR-F_ZE+E-AAZEE
IEIIE 2082 ARERGE;
AA=1H . 3
+5-BE (i) One-fourth of the total number of the shere options granted are
ZE-CE exercisable at any fime on or after 1 October 2024;
nA=+H i) EREREARI NS —AR S MEHA-HEZRE
ARRERTE;
(i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or aftert October 2026; and
i) BREREERZ A2 AR _S_RETE-BAZEE
ABERTE &
() The remaining one-fourth of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 October 2026.
(V) ERBREEH BTN TR B2 AFTR-HEZ
BERREATE.
4,100,000 1,900,000 - - 6,000,000
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31. BB EEtE (&)

(continued)

Rz EstE (@)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

Number of share options Closingpice
WERRE of the shares of
the Company
Date of Exercise immediately
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant of Exercise price of before the date
category of SHEHAY 1 January during during during 31 December share period of share on which options
participant Bh 2022 the year the year the year 2022 options  share options options  Vesting period were granted
| Bk Tl Bk SEH
o RHiBH 18 i ZRERERY
+ZR REMEAT
ERiRY ERfTfE FREN Shr=f i zBHE
HKS per
share
S
Other employees AhES A
in aggregate
5,030,000 - (100,000) (150,000) 4,780,000 22 Novernber 1 December 1020 () One-third of the total number of the shere options granted are 1020
2016 201710 exercisable at any time on or after 1 December 2017;
ZE-RE 21 November () ERBRBEUZ=HZ-TR_T-tE+25-B2%
+-B 2026 EARERGE;
sy = It
+ZB-BE (i) One-third of the total number of the shere options granted are
ZE/E exercisable at any time on or after 1 December 2018; and
+-A i) BRERRER2=H2-AR_F-\E+E-BdzE
—+-8 HARERGE; &
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 December 2019,
TBRERH BT =D - TR E-NETZA-RY
1,500,000 - - (1,500,000) - 16 May 1 June 2018 1822 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 1840
2017 10 15 May exercisable at any time on or after 1 June 2018;
IB-tE 2007 () ERERELRZ=DZ-AN"F-N\EAB-BAZEE
fiz R i= - -3 ARERGE;
~A-BE
ZETtE (i) One-third of the total number of the shere options granted are
1ATEH exercisable at any time on or after 1 June 2019; and
i) EREREERZ =2 -TIR_F-NERE-BAZER
ARERTE &
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 June 2020
(i) ERBRESH BT =02 -TR_F-EFRA-AAZ
BATEEATE
1
-
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continueqd)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

L

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

31. B #EsTE (@)

st (@)

Number of share options Closingpice
MERRE of the shares of
the Company
Date of Exercise immediately
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited A grant of Exercise price of before the date
category of SHENAY 1 January during during during 31 December share period of share on which options
participant Eh 2022 the year the year the year 2022 options  share options options  Vesting period were granted
| faliE Bl kg SEH
| o RHiBH 18 i ZRERERY
- S +ZA REMEAT
-A-H FRELH AR FREN =t+-A R ZUHE
HKS per
share
ShREn
Other employees AhEE A
in aggregate (contiueq) (5
2,100,000 - - (650,000) 1,450,000 25 May 1 June 2018 1.760 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 1690
2017 1024 May exercisable at any time on or after 1 June 2018;
Itk 207 () ERBRELEZZH2-TN"F-\EAB-BIZEE
EAZTEA “E-\F ARRERTE;
~A-BE
ZEItE (i) One-third of the total numboer of the shere options granted are
AAZ+MA exercisable at any time on or after 1 June 2019; and
i) BREREER2 =2 -AR_F-NERE-BAZEE
ABERTE &
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 June 2020,
(i) EEBREAH BT -TR_E_EERA-HAZ
BERREATE.
4,050,000 - - (650,000) 3400000 4 December 16 December 1442 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 1430
2017 201810 exercisable at any time on or after 16 December 2018;
ZE-tE 3 Decomber () EREREAEZ=Z-TR-F-\E+ZE+ARLZ
+ZEmE 2027 BEARERITE;
“E-\F
+ZA+/E (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
EIECtE exercisable at any time on or after 16 December 2019; and
+2A=H i) EREREERZ =2 -IR_F-NE+E ARG

BERRENGE; &
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 16 December

2020.
(i) ERERERE BT 02— IRF_FETAT/A
G REARERGE
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31. BB EEtE (&)
(continued)

Share Option Schemes (continued) FBRREETE (8B)

Number of share options Closingpice
WERRE of the shares of
the Company
Date of Exercise immediately
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant of Exercise price of before the date
category of SHEHAY 1 January during during during 31 December share period of share on which options
participant Bh 2022 the year the year the year 2022 options  share options options  Vesting period were granted
| Bk Tl Bk SEH
o RHiBH 18 i ZRERERY
+ZR REMEAT
ERiRY ERfTfE FREN Shr=f i zBHE
HKS per
share
S
Other employees AhES A
inaggregate (continued) ()
15,300,000 - - (2,700,000 12,600,000 19July 1 August 2020 1.280 () One-third of the total number of the shere options granted are 0610
2019 1018 July exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2020;
“INE 2029 () EREREER2=HZ-TR_F_FE\B-BAZEE
tAthE  I3IB%E AREATE;
NB-BE
“EThE (i) One-third of the totel number of the shere options granted are
tAtNE exercisable at any time on or affer 1 August 2021; and
i) BRBRELEZ=H2-TN-2_-F)\F-BZEE
ARERTE R
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2022.
(i) ERBREAH HT=D-TR_E__F)\A-AEZ
BRAEEATE
1,800,000 - - (600,000) 1,200,000 Shprl 16 Aprl 2021 0600 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are: 0480
200 102 Aprl exercisable at any time on or after 16 Apri 2021;
k- 2 200 () ERERELSZ =D AR5 -EMAtABZE
WmA=R & EARERGE;
MA+7BE
“E-%E (i) One-third of the total number of the shere options granted are
mAZH exercisable at any time on or after 16 Aprl 2022; and
i) EREREER2=H2-IR_F__EME+/HAZE
EARERGE R
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 16 Apri 2023,
(i) ERBREAH B T=0D2-TR_F_=FNA+AY
ZEEARERTE
1
-
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31 December 2022

—E-_F#+-R=+—H
ILds 42)
31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31. FERRHEET 8 (B
(continueqd)
. . AL E
Share Option Schemes (continued) FElietestal (@)
Number of share options Closingpice
WA of the shares of
the Company
Date of Exercise immediately
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited A grant of Exercise price of before the date
category of SHENAY 1 January during during during 31 December share period of share on which options
participant Eh 2022 the year the year the year 2022 options  share options options  Vesting period were granted
| Bk Bk Bk 588
| o RHiBH 18 i ZRERERY
- S +ZA REMEAT
-R-8 ERiRH ERfTfE FREN EiaH i zHE
HKS per
share
&Rin
Other employees AhEE A
in aggregate (contiueq) (5
4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000 13 January 16 January 0560 () One-fitth of the total number of the share options granted are 0560
2021 202210 exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2022;
“EC-f 12 January () ERBRBEUZADZ-IR_S2E-A+RBTZE
-Bt=H 23t EARERGE;
ZEIE
-B+ABE (i) One-fith of the total number of the share options granted are
5 exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2023;
-At+ZA i ERBRESH BN -AR-E_=F-B+/A92%
HRERTE;
(i) One-fith of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2024;
(i) EEBREAH BN 2 -AR_E_ME-B+/BH2%
EAREAGE;
(1v) One-ffth of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2025; and
v ERERELSZ 102N -F_RE-AtrBAE
FAREAGE &
v) The remaining one-ffth of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2026.
() EREREARZETRAZ IR _EAE-R 1R
ZEEARERGE.
15,150,000 - - (21000000 13,050,000 2 September 16 September 0910 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 0840
2021 202210 exercisable at any ime on or after 16 September 2022;
ZRT-E 1 September () ERBRESHZ=DZ-AR-E__FARTARIZE
NAZH 2031 HRERTE;
51
nA+REE (i) One-third of the total numboer of the share options granted are
“E--E exercisable at any time on or after 16 September 2023; and
hA-8 i EREREARZ =D -TIR-F_ZEABTARAZE

e

EARERGR R

(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 16 September
2024,

i) ERBEREARZET=02- IR _E_REAR /Y
ZEEARERGE.
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2+ H=+—H

31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31. BB tEEtE) (&)
(continued)

Share Option Schemes (continued) FER TR (88)

Number of share options Closingpice
WERRE of the shares of
the Company
Date of Exercise immediately
Name or At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant of Exercise price of before the date
category of SHEHAY 1 January during during during 31 December share period of share on which options
participant Bh 2022 the year the year the year 2022 options  share options options  Vesting period were granted
| Bk Tl Bk SEH
| o RHiBH 18 i ZRERERY
- S +2B REMEAT
-R-8 ERiRY ERfTfE FREN Shr=f i zBHE
HKS per
share
SREL
Other employees AhES A
inaggregate (continued) ()
- 35,600,000 - (600,0000 35,000,000 30 September 1 October 0572 () One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are 0540
2022 202310 exercisable at any time on or after 1 October 2023;
ZECZE 30 September () ERBRBEU A Z-TR_S=F+A-BU2kE
nA=+H 2082 AREATE;
TRk
+B-B% (i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are
“E-CE exercisable at any ime on or after 1 October 2024; and
AA=1A i) BRERRERZ A2 -TN_F_OE+E-BAZEE

15 &

(i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or aftert October 2025; and

(i) EREREAH D2 AR B REHA-AYZRE
ARERTE R

() The remaining one-fourth of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any ime on or after 1 October 2026.

(V) EEEREAR B TOAZ-TR_EAETA-HZ
BAPBHAGE

48,030,000 35,600,000 (100,000)  (8,950,000) 75,480,000

53,030,000 37,500,000 (100,000)  (8,950,000) 81,480,000
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continueqd)

Share Option Schemes (continued)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding at 31 December 2022 are as

follows:

Exercise price

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

FRieEStE ()
AR E ()

WEBT T A =+— B MRAT R
R B1T R RA TR T ¢

Number of options per share Exercise period
B ERE SRITEE 171EHA
5,530,000 HK$1.020 1 December 2017 to 21 November 2026

1.02078 7T Z—tF+_B—HE_ZE-_XF+—B-+—H
1,450,000 HK$1.760 1 June 2018 to 24 May 2027

1.76078 7T —E-N\EFERE—RHEZE"t+tH#HFBA_+mWH
3,550,000 HK$1.442 16 December 2018 to 3 December 2027

1.44278 7 —E-N\EF+ZB+ARBEZZEtHF+H=H
13,900,000 HK$1.280 1 August 2020 to 18 July 2029

1.2808 7T “ETEFENB—HEZZE-AZtEtA+/\H
2,100,000 HK$0.600 16 April 2021 to 2 April 2030
5,000,000 HK$0.560 16 January 2022 to 12 January 2031

0.5607%# 7T B CF—HA+tAHEZIZE=—%—AF+IH
13,050,000 HK$0.910 16 September 2022 to 1 September 2031

0.910E 7T —ECTFABRB+AHBEZZE=—%NH—H
36,000,000 HK$0.572 1 October 2023 to 30 September 2032
900,000 HK$0.520 1 November 2023 to 23 October 2032

0.520% 7T —EC-HF+—B—HBEZZE="#+B=+=H
81,480,000
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2+ H=+—H

31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31. BB EETE (BB)
(continued)
Share Option Schemes (continued) BiEtE B)
On 30 September 2022, 36,600,000 share options N_E__FNA=1+H REHERE
under the New Share Option Scheme were granted 5121 > 36,600,00017 Bz E E M AEE 118
to 118 employees of the Group. The fair value of Y EERE ZEERENLIABES
these options was HK$13,144,000 (equivalent to 13,144,000t (FBE 5 AR 111,888,000
RMB11,888,000), of which the Group recognised a 70) B AEBEBER AT ERDER R
share option expense of HK$3,338,000 (equivalent to 323,338,000/ 7T (HE 1 AR 12,879,000
RMB2,879,000) in the current year. 7T) ©
On 24 October 2022, 900,000 share options under RS- —F+8 -+ A  BIEEELE
the New Share Option Scheme were granted to 3 51 &> 900,0001p I E M AEEIRER
employees of the Group. The fair value of these options F - ZEREREN R NEER3150008 7T
was HK$315,000 (equivalent to RMB286,000), of (BB A RIE286,0007T) > B AEET
which the Group recognised a share option expense of R A EHER AL HEFE 280,000/ 7T (HEBE
HK$80,000 (equivalent to RMB69,000) in the current 7 AR #£69,0007T) ©
year.
The fair value of the share options granted under the RIEFT AR ST 2R BB A R B(E
New Share Option Scheme was estimated as at the RiFEHRESIEREIRE BN MERE
date of grant by management, using the binomial lattice & 815 B B A PIT A 3R BV IR SR B AR 1R T
model, taking into account the terms and conditions TS e PREGIRBZERFHANE
upon which the options were granted. The following e
table lists the inputs to the model used:
Grant date =H BEA 30 September 24 October
2022 2022
g =SS
hB=+H +AZ+mHmAB
Exercise price (HK$ per share) T1HEE (EREBT) 0.572 0.520
Expected dividend yield (%) FEHR AR B2 (%) - -
Expected volatility (%) FEHR R (%) 73.35 74.87
Risk-free interest rate (%) 41 [ B 1) 22 (%) 3.40 3.86
Expected life of share options (years) TEHBBE AR RERV R HR (5) 10 10
Weighted average share price at grant 7338 H B HBR9 NN F 15 AR E
date (HK$ per share) (EHBT) 0.572 0.520
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continueqd)
Share Option Schemes (continued)

The expected life of the share options is not necessarily
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility may not necessarily reflect the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

The 100,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 100,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$10,000
(equivalent to RMB9,000) and share premium of
HK$92,000 (equivalent to RMB82,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had outstanding share options for the subscription
of 81,480,000 shares under the New Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 6.00% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at that
date. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 81,480,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$8,148,000 (equivalent to
RMB7,278,000) and share premium of HK$60,295,000
(equivalent to RMB53,860,000), before related issuance
expenses.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 78,024,000 share options
outstanding under the New Share Option Scheme,
which represented approximately 5.73% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

1.8 iEstE (@)

RERRtEStE ()

BRENTRRATHRSEEEENTTE
RIVHVIEIR - FREAR I8 AR — TE R BRE R4S
o

EROBRENEMBFHBTERMAANE
BERETEA -

REMRITEE100,0001 B IR BB 317
100,000 A B Z /A% > UK EBINR K
10,0007 7t HEE I AR 19,0007T) K15 H
892,000/ 7T (HEEH ARHES82,0007T) °

RBBERR X ABHEBERTHERBRE
A 5% B8 H BB AR A 51 81 15 81,480,0008% %
7 EERAATNRERNEHTRALN
6.00%  RIEARABNIRBEREE > 2@
ITEARITEREIRE S B 81781,480,000
RARNBIREINS B IRD - U BBIMNE A
8,148,000/ 7t (1BE 1 AR #7,278,0007T)
T2 B& 15 3% /860,295,000 7T FBER AR
53,860,0007T) (GOPRIERAZETTRISZAD ©

R EMHRAEMS B REFMERES
2 AR BEIHEFT78,024,00000 RITIEFEAIE
HERARTNE BB #ETRALS.73%-
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2+ H=+—H

32.RESERVES 32.f# A

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity in the financial statements.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the capital
contributions by Dr. Dong Li, a director and controlling
shareholder of the Company, to the subsidiaries directly
held by Dr. Dong Li before the group reorganisation
on 8 June 2010 and, in the case of an acquisition
of an additional equity interest in a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary, the difference between the cost of
acquisition and the non-controlling interests acquired.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to allocate 10%
of their profit after tax to the reserve fund until this
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
PRC subsidiaries. Subject to certain restrictions set out
in the Company Law of the PRC, part of the reserve
fund may be converted to increase paid-up capital/
issued capital of the PRC subsidiaries, provided that
the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less
than 25% of the registered capital. The reserve fund of
the PRC subsidiaries amounted to RMB229,229,000
and RMB183,520,000 as at 31 December 2022 and
2021, respectively.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of companies outside the
PRC. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2.4.
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32.RESERVES (continued)
Share option reserve

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and
the share options issued under the schemes are
included in note 31 to the financial statements.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the fair value
differences arising from the revaluation for the
equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income and debt investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

33.NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of RMB22,706,000 (2021: RMB17,089,000)
and RMB22,706,000 (2021: RMB17,089,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for
property, machinery and other equipment.

32

33

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H
fHE (&
B EGE
BERAABNERES 8 R 83178
B HEEEIE > BN S ERERMIEE31 0
NAEEFE

AnBERFEHREEGEER AN EEE
st AHthEER@mIEE R ERIEER

R REEETRERM

SRARERERMEE

(@) FEIFRERH

TR REBMYE KB REMEE
HMEZHzFAREEREESEN
IERERE DR A ARTE22,706,0007T

—E-—4 . AR17,089,0007T) &
ANE#22,706,00070 (CEZ—F: AR
#17,089,0007T) °
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

33.NOTES TO THE B.ixeRERNERM:E &)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) MEEFHEEZEREH
financing activities

2022 2
Bank and Lease
other loans liabilities

RITR
Hth&Em HEARE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2022 W_E__&#—H—H 2,372,206 20,468
Changes from financing cash flows BREIR %7 S EE) 241,980 (6,517)
Acquisition from a subsidiary B—XME R B UE

(note 36) (F35X36) 1,740 -
New leases MHEE - 22,706
Foreign exchange movement G BE 52 ) 94,161 249
Interest expense MERX - 1,597

Revision of a lease term arising from 8 & “~ 5] #5154 HA RS A B4 B PRy
a change in the non-cancellable & BBIFEHAIEET
period of a lease - (9,332)

At 31 December 2022 A S—
+=-B=+—AH 2,710,087 29,171
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31 December 2022

" H#+”"A=+—H

33.NOTES TO THE B.ixaHRER=ERMTE &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) MEEFHEEZEREH
financing activities (continued) (#)
2021 BT
Bank and Lease
other loans liabilities
RITR
HtER HESE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
At 1 January 2021 RW_Z—_—4F—HF—H 2,303,284 11,131
Changes from financing cash flows BRE IR %7 & & 5 109,330 (8,975)
Waived by the bank EIRTTEH R (3,856) -
New leases HHEE - 17,089
Foreign exchange movement CAN L) (36,552) (725)
Interest expense FEX - 1,980
Revision of a lease term arising & PIHEE AR R R 4 B PR
from a change in the SR BVTERREET
non-cancellable period of a lease - (32)
At 31 December 2021 W& —F
+ZA=+—4H 2,372,206 20,468
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

33.NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

JRERERERME B

(c) HERERHLEE

The total cash outflow/(inflow) for leases included SARESREXRZBAERESRE, (R
in the statement of cash flows is as follows: A) 4BZEINE ¢

2022 2021

k= =S - 3 2 —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AR¥TF T

Within operating activities STAKEEE) 14,028 8,832

Within investing activities FTAKEED 81,555 7

Within financing activities STAREEH 6,517 8,975

102,100 17,814
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31 December 2022

2 _F+”"H=+—H

34.PLEDGE OF ASSETS 34. BEEEF

Prepaid Property,

land lease plant and Pledged Trade

payments equipment deposits Inventories receivables Total
L ERY BakY
HERE RikfE EREHER 78 M At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AEEFT AEEFT AREFT ARETT NS AEEFT
(note 16) (note 14) (note 25) (note 20) (note 21)

(Hfz16) (MzE14) (Myz£25) (Mf5£20) (Myz2r)

31 December 2022 —E-"FE+ZA=+-AH
Interest-bearing bank it BIRITEE (Fi3k28)
borrowings (note 28) 45,859 734,964 5,397 100,000 407,147 1,293,367
Bllls payable (note 26) FEZ4E (MizE26) - - 415,947 - - 415,047
Issue of letters of credit HHERE - - 372,462 - - 372,462
45,859 734,964 793,806 100,000 407,147 2,081,776
31 December 2021 “Z--E+THA=1+-H
Interest-bearing bank it ERITEE (3R28)
borrowings (note 28) 38,998 800,281 4,269 100,000 365,908 1,309,456
Bllls payable (note 26) e Z4E (MzE6) - - 440,448 - - 440,448
Issue of letters of credit FHEEE - - 157,796 - - 157,796
38,998 800,281 602,513 100,000 365,908 1,907,700
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

35.COMMITMENTS 35. 5
(@ The Group had the following capital commitments @ MPHRERFR AEBBUTEREG !

at the end of the reporting period:

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AREF T
Contracted, but not provided for: [EHESEESZ -
Land and buildings T R AR T 2,866 999
Capital contribution for investments 5§ E&A A BEZEIHAH
in equity investments designated 2 EWREMNERZHERERN
at fair value through other RETE
comprehensive income 2,500 22,500
5,366 23,499
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36.ACQUISITION OF A

SUBSIDIARY
Leoch Iberia SL.

On 31 December 2020, Leoch International Holding
Pte. Ltd. (“Leoch International Holding”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an agreement with three independent individual
shareholders to acquire a company called Material
Electric | Bateries, S.L in Spain, the name of which was
changed to Leoch Iberia SL. (“IBERIA”) on 15 April
2022. The consideration for acquiring the IBERIA is four
times average EBITDA from FY2021 to FY2023. Leoch
International Holding paid the first cash consideration
of EUR499,000 (equivalent to RMB3,467,000) on
7 March 2022. As at the date of acquisition and as
at 31 December 2022, the fair values of contingent
consideration was nil. Leoch International Holding
acquired 100% of the equity interest. As a result of
the above transactions, Leoch International Holding
obtained control over IBERIA, which then became a
subsidiary of the Company on 15 April 2022.

Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

36. U Eg— MMt B A =)

Leoch Iberia SL.

N_E2ZEF+ZA=+—H > &ARE—MH
2EMB/ABlLeoch International Holding Pte.
Ltd. ("Leoch International Holding |) £2=
LB ERRET I H®E WE—EES
Material Electric | Bateries, S.LASTRHIF /AT »
ZANTEHBENR S _FNB+HEAELA
Leoch Iberia SL. (TIBERIA ) o Y% IBERIARY
HEA S _—HEE_Z-_=-0FHNF
HIEBITDARIPIE o Leoch International Holding
RIEZTHE=RFBtHIZNEEREHE
499,000BR 7T (FHEH A R #3,467,0007T) © it
WERAKRNR -2 —_F+_-_B=+—H %
BEHENRMEEEARZ Leoch International
HoldingUg f&100% My & o RS 432 53
Leoch International HoldingEX/ZIBERIARYIZE
> mBERAEZBN _E__FMWA+AH
A AR B AT
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

36.ACQUISITION OF A

SUBSIDIARY (continued)

36. WIE—ENEB AT (#8)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of loeriait Wi H AR A M RIB ER BB Z AR
Iberia as at the date of acquisition were as follows: BETT
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
FR UL RE B R DAY
NREE
RMB’000
AREFTT
Property, plant and equipment Y - WE REE 671
Customer relationship EFPBR 2,384
Inventories T8 2,441
Trade and bills receivables = %FELBZ WY E S 4,403
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables SEANE S ?ﬁé‘c\&
Hﬁﬂﬁ Wk 1,373
Cash and cash equivalents EE e hkBFEeE ff ) 147
Trade and bills payables Z SN RIE R ENEE (5,760)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings qu IRITIEE (1,740)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIB A& (644)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BEAREBEEYERNER
BEFEERE 3,275
Goodwill on acquisition W EAMEE 192
3,467
Satisfied by: ATH AR -
Cash Re 3,467
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31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H
36.ACQUISITION OF A 36. WEE—RIM B AT (B
SUBSIDIARY (continued)
An analysis of the cash flows for the year ended 31 HEAFE+ A =+—HIEpUE—EN
December in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary is BABIMIRERESMWT !
as follows:
RMB’000
ARETT
Cash consideration He ¥ E (3,467)
Cash and bank balances acquired R & RiRTT &4 147
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents AAREESMBHESRAEN
included in cash flows from investing activities BebkReEEYRL FHE (3,320)
Since the acquisition, IBERIA contributed BWEBLKR 8 E T " F+_HA=4+—
RMB19,302,000 to the Group’s turnover and net profit HIEEE  IBERIAAKREB SR EH£EE A
of RMB1,140,000 to the consolidated profit for the year EE#£19,302,0007c K &r & m F 5] A R
ended 31 December 2022. 1,140,0007¢ °
Had the combination taken place at the beginning HMEHRETET AEEREBERMNKE X
of the period, the revenue and the profit before MRAnEFM gD RIA A REE12,850,410,0007T
tax of the Group for the period would have been AR #532,013,0007T ©
RMB12,850,410,000 and RMB532,013,000
respectively.
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

37.RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the
following material transactions with related parties
during the year:

37.FAEANLTR S

(a) BRZEFBHHRREMM A FABZ
S0 AEEEFEATEENEUT

TERXS
2022 2021
—E-= —E—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

PY5E AREBTRE ARBTT

Purchases of raw materials [FIEATES RHAE

from related companies

Related companies owned by ~ EZFtE - R EBIEE A L+

Dr. Dong Li and his associates A RIEAE 36,357 18,056
Sales of products to related FIRAEATHEER

companies (i)
Related companies owned by EZELTRHEBE AT

Dr. Dong Li and his associates ~ #A RIEIE A T 100,635 116,796
Interest expense to related FEFEATZGHE

parties 53 37(0)()
Non-controlling shareholders M@ AR 2 IEEERRARER

of a subsidiary 307 183
Note: MIsE -

(i) The purchases of raw materials and sales of
products with the related companies were made
according to prices mutually agreed between the
parties on terms not less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties.

The related party transactions in respect of the
purchases of raw materials and sales of products
above also constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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37.RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continueqd)

37.F

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

BANLRS (&

(b) Outstanding balances with related (b) BARAEANTHIKREZLEER !
parties:
Due from related parties Due to related parties
FEMRRREA LFIE FEIREALFIE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C - IBZC “EC-F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
M EE ARBTRE AR®BTR ARETR ARETR®
Current: TRE
Non-controlling —EBABRIE 0]
shareholders of a IR ER
subsidiary - - 72,371 52,064
Related companies BT REBE (i)
owned by Dr. DongLi ~ ATHEAEMNEE
and his associates NE] 26,028 87,677 44,833 28,525
26,028 87,677 117,204 80,589
Notes: Mok -

(i

As at 31 December 2022, a loan amounting to
RMB4,000,000 (2021: RMB4,000,000) from
non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary was
unsecured, bore interest rate at 6.60% (2021:
4.35%) per annum and had no fixed terms of
repayment. A loan amounting to RMB67,200,000
(2021: RMB47,200,000) from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary was unsecured,
interest-free and had no fixed terms.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all balances
with the related companies owned by Dr. Dong
Li and his associates were traded in nature,
unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of
repayment.

() WRIZEZZE+ZB=+—H %8
—EB AT ZIFERREZERA
R 4,000,000t (ZZEZ—F: AR
#4,000,0007T) % HEALIF R EH] K
6.60% (ZZT-—4 :14.35%) 5tE X
HEEEER UK E B EA
BZEERREZ—FEERARE
67,200,0007C (ZBE-—F : AR
47,200,0007T) % IKIF - 2 B R EE
TEERH

iy MIBEZZFRZIZZ—F+IA
=t—H FEHREFHLIREHRE
ALTHEENBEARNGEREAES
HEEmIEF R EREEEIERER
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37.RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continueqd)

(c) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group:

37.FEANLRS (&)

c) =EEFEEBRASHME

2022 2021

—E-C 2 —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREF T

Basic salaries and other benefits EXF e REMEH 9,225 9,571
Equity-settled share option expenses A ME %5 45 & 19 BE IR AE R X 778 862
Pension scheme contributions RIKEEEIER 174 177
10,177 10,610

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 9 to the financial statements.
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31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY  38.1#%#$E5| 0N ERM T A
CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of ZHpER T ARRSIARNEEmENT !
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

2022 -
Financial assets EHMEE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Financial assets
profit or at fair value through
loss other comprehensive income
AREE
ZEA

Hml AREEEFHHFA
THEE Ht2ER=ENZREE

Financial

Mandatorily assets at

designated Debt Equity amortised
as such investments investments cost Total

BEEm A

CeG HEZ
LYy BHEE EEURE ERHEE 1zt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFT ARETRT ARBTR ARBTR ARETR

Equity investments designated 15 TEHA A BEEE
at fair value through other HAHEM2ENE
comprehensive income HEEERE - = 255,044 = 255,044

Debt investments at fair value NABEEH AR
through other comprehensive e ENES

income K& - 161,405 - - 161,405
Trade receivables BAEWHIE - - - 2736224 2736224
Financial assets included in SFATBATIE EfE

prepayments, other receivables  WERIBRHMEBE

and other assets NEMEE - - = 125,487 125,487
Financial assets at fair value NRBEEHA

through profit or loss BaleHE 51,951 - - - 51,951
Pledged deposits BIREER - - - 793,806 793,306
Cash and cash equivalents RERBREEEY - - - 436,194 436,194

51,951 161,405 255,044 4,091,711 4,560,111
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38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY  38.1%4ERIDTHNERTA
CATEGORY (continued) (&

Financial liabilities ERaE

Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or
loss
AREE
ZEEA
B
EMaf

Financial

Mandatorily liabilities at

designated amortised

as such cost Total
B HEm A
SR HER
MILIsE EHaE st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR

Trade and bills payables BSRNTIBERECER - 2361,044 2,361,044
Financial liabilities included in AR AR &

other payables and accruals =L - 322,700 322,700
Lease liabilities HEAR - 29,171 29,171
Financial liabilities at fair value NABEES ABENE/RARE

through profit or loss 13 - 13
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHERITIEE - 2,710,087 2,710,087

13 5,423,002 5,423,015
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38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY  38. 14850 ERM T A

CATEGORY (continued) (#&)
2021 BT —F
Financial assets EHMEE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Financial assets
profit or at fair value through
loss  other comprehensive income
rAfBE
ZITA

By AREEEH A
tHMEE HteERzNEREE

Financial

Mandatorily assets at

designated Debt Equity amortised
assuch  investments  investments cost Total

A

Gl HEZ
il BBERE #EzilRE TRHEE st

RMB'000 ~ RMBO00 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT AREBTT AREBTR AREBT:

Equity investments designated ~ 15TEIA A EEEE

at fair value through other AEtZ2EKED

comprehensive income BatRE - - 182,680 - 182,680
Debt investments at fair value AREEEE AEM

through other comprehensive LEBENEBTKRE

income - 106,349 - - 106,349
Trade receivables B EWTIE - - - 2725702 2725702
Financial assets included in HABARIE HithfE

prepayments, other receivables  WFUB R A ME ER

and other assets SHEE - - - 33,403 33,403
Financial assets at fair value NRBEEEZFH ARG

through profit or loss NemEE 67,798 - - - 67,798
Pledged deposits BIHER - - - 602,513 602,513
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY - - - 349,229 349,229

67,798 106,349 182,680 3,710,847 4,067,674
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38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

Financial liabilities

38. AR DT ER TR

(#8)

THaE

Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or
loss
NAEE
SEEtA

Bmh

Eata=E

Mandatorily
designated
as such

Gl
MILIEE
RMB’000

ARBTT

Financial

liabilities at

amortised
cost Total

B E A

STEM
EHERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT

Trade and bills payables
Financial liabilities included in

B RNNERENRE
STAEMENRIERES BB

2,319,251 2,319,251

other payables and accruals SHBE - 308,176 308,176
Lease liabilities HEaE - 20,468 20,468
Financial liabilities at fair value NABEEEFABENERMEE

through profit or loss 851 - 851
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHERTTEE - 2,372,206 2,372,206

851 5,020,101 5,020,952
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39.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments approximate to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of
cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets and financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals, approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values.

Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

V.TRTEAABERAR

BEREK

FEESRTANKREERAADBEREER
MBERLT-

BEECHAEREKRIBELEEY BRAT
M BRRWEIR B BRI RIAREMNR
B StATR AR s At GRIE R E M E
ENEREE LUkt AE MBI RIAR &

BE TE2RRZETABEMTE

FAEBERMHEIEAENRMENFIREFE
TRIERANEESENBRKEZER U
KEEROEEUBENEZEZEGER
RE®RS A MHEPI DR TABE
WEEIER WEELEMBIERRA
ZEEHERMBESRARE - BREE
EEEMIA AT IRRFEEMFRENG
BBERERAERET R

THEERERNAAEENZTABRR
575 (RFISUEEHERIN ER135 TAIR
FEREAR U A ERBRREDARGER
AEE
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39.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings approximate to their
amortised costs which have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair
value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance
risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31
December 2022 were assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss have been estimated
using a market-based valuation technique based on
assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the
directors to determine comparable public companies
(peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy,
and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such
as enterprise value to earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation (‘EV/EBITDA”)
multiple and price to earnings (“P/E”) multiple, for
each comparable company identified. The multiple
is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the
comparable company by an earnings measure. The
trading multiple is then discounted for considerations
such as illiquidity and size differences between the
comparable companies based on company-specific
facts and circumstances. The discounted multiple is
applied to the corresponding earnings measure of
the unlisted equity investments to measure the fair
value. The directors believe that the estimated fair
values resulting from the valuation technique, which
are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related changes in fair values, which
are recorded in profit or loss, are reasonable, and that
they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.
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BEREHR (&

SHRIRTRESFRBE N Z ANEERES

HA AR Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁfﬁ@ﬁﬁ BLURRT

B2 BRTHEEE BB AR T ?ﬁfﬁﬁ

HARRIRERAE - ANEERN T "

F+A=+—HEtRETEREESTE
NEBRERN LA DEEEHRTESMAE
o

RABEEEFTABTIIFLHER RS
ZRAMEEEENTEIBEMENEERE
AEBENBRRA T ISERGERITEE
HEERESFRITE RE BRREE
ERELER EHAT (A1) » U E#A
AELERAB G EBESERGE NTtEE
EHFRAERIE TE AR &R (TEV/
EBITDA ) Z# &= (TP/E)) B8 &
U ELER ARz hEEERUBN G E
HESAE B EHBERRATREZEE
R BB M R A B LA B 2
RIS ERNIR - BITIREHERLIE LmiE
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39.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income have been estimated using the asset-based
approach. The assets of the unlisted company
include cash and cash equivalents, short-term
principal-protected investment and investments in
portfolio companies. Management has assessed
that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
the short-term principal-protected investment and
the liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts
with consideration of the nature and the short-term
maturities of these instruments. The fair values of the
investments in portfolio companies is estimated using
different valuation methodologies according to the
nature of individual investments, such as the trading
price of listed shares, price of recent investments,
market multiples and the discounted cash flow method.

The fair values of debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, which are bills receivable,
have been estimated using a discounted cash flow
valuation model based on the interest rate yield curve.

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

V.TRTEAARAEBERAR

BEREHR (&

BEERAANBEEF ST AEMEEIAITIE
EhEmMEREN AN EEERAEEAET
BE - FFETRAEESERENIAEEE
YRR AR EREERFRE - EEE
BiHERE RIS EEY  RAREKRER
BENANEER NEZSFTAMENERK
TR EIHARVEREE - A S A BRI ER
AABEREENKRENEERBAR
HEREGE B LETROPNZZER
ITHRR BERER B EERIREREITR
e

ARBEZFFAHMEER@ENERRE
(BNEWRE) A RBEMERAERFERI
mERMENREERBITRAEENEE

T CEFR - BIEBRRMGERAS 273



Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

39.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 390.£RITEARABEEASR
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL BEEBHkK (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group invests in other unlisted investments, which AEBGERHEMIE LHRE  ZERET
represent the right to receive the proceeds from future URER SR 2R YD 2 TH E FTS FUBRI R o AEE
sales of the properties. The Group has estimated the BEEATMSERGERMER B LB
fair values of these unlisted investments by using a ZEBMHAZEFELTREZADBE

market-based valuation technique based on the selling
price of comparable properties.

The Group enters derivative financial instruments AEBERLHFH (FEAEETREYE
with various counterparties, principally financial ZERIER) I TTE SR T R T4 &/l
institutions with good credit ratings. Derivative financial TEEEERMEREZERAEHPES
instruments, including commodity future and option #o

contracts, are based on quoted market prices.
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39.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

-t

Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

39.

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

instruments:

Assets measured at fair value

SRTH
BERBR

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

AARBERAR
#)

DREERR

"F%%%Z%ﬁ%%%nﬁlﬁﬂ’]’&ﬁfﬁﬁ SEE

BASIEEENEE

Fair value measurement using

AREEFEFMARR
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EAHRE EAFITER
TERTIRERE BAEE BAZE
(B1E) (52R) (3) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT ARETTT ARETFT
2022 g
Equity investments BEERAAEBEED
designated at fair StAHMPE
value through other D MERE
comprehensive income - - 255,044 255,044
Debt investments at fair ARBEEEA
value through other Hth2 ks
comprehensive income REKRE - 161,405 - 161,405
Financial assets at fair value =~ AR EEEEE A
through profit or loss BREMERMEE 136 51,815 - 51,951
136 213,220 255,044 468,400
2021 T
Equity investments designated EERANEEES)
at fair value through other STAEMEEm G
comprehensive income NRERERE - - 182,680 182,680
Debt investments at fair value RABEEEA
through other comprehensive Hit2mElE
income BHEE - 106,349 - 106,349
Financial assets at fair value NABEEEAR
through profit or loss aNERMEE 134 67,664 - 67,798
134 174,013 182,680 356,827
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39.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL BEEBHkK (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

[REERSR (&)

V.ETEHRITEAARABERAR

The movements in fair value measurements within Level FREIBADEEFT2EIUT :

3 during the year are as follows:

2022 2021

k=St 2 BT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®B T ARBTFT

At 1 January n—B—H 182,680 151,590
Total gains recognised in other EREMEEREERZ

comprehensive income U T 4B EE 50,939 8,736

Total losses recognised in profit or loss EREmER 2 51845 - (8,563)

Additions E 20,000 40,500

Disposals HE (468) (9,004)

Exchange realignment PE A 1,893 (579)

At 31 December R+-A=+—H 255,044 182,680
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39.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value

inancial Statements BAFEIRFV M

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

V.ETHRITEAABERAR
BERR &)

R[REERR &)

BARIEEEIERE

Fair value measurement using

AREEFEFMBER

Quoted

prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EXTBRRE EATITHZ

EETHIGRE BAHE BAHE
(FE1/E) (82/8) (383JE) st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARET:

2022 —EBCCF
Financial liabilities at fair NAEEEE T ABRN
value through profit or loss EHMEE 13 - - 13
2021 EC—F
Financial liabilities at fair NRAEELZEF ABaN
value through profit or loss Eay =X 851 - - 851

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1
and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities.

R_E - R E_—F+_A=+—
B AnBEFIEMETE EBANEZE
Rz BREER KEREERSREED
BREEAREHE=ER-
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40.FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings,
and cash and pledged deposits. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out
in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term
debt obligations with floating rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and the
Group’s equity.
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40.FINANCIAL RISK
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2+ R=+—H

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continueqd)

Cfﬁs)

Interest rate risk (continued) MERE (8)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity”
EHEs AR i
wm, GEA) s GRd) i G~
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEEBTT AEETT
2022 —EICHF
RVMB AR 50 (314) -
RMB AR (50) 314 -
SG$ N TT 50 4 -
SG$ SN TT (50) 4 -
uss e 50 (155) -
uss 257 (50) 155 -
MYR BERATLE 50 () -
MYR EXRAELE (50) 3 -
VND R E 50 2 -
VND HrE (50) 2 -
2021 BT —F
RMB N 50 (232) -
RMB AR (50) 232 -
SG$ HH T 50 (105) -
SG$ N3 7T (50) 105 -
Us$ g7 50 (1,276) -
uss £ (50) 1,076 -
MYR ERALRLH 50 (15) -
MYR ERALELH (50) 15 -
VND WrEE 50 (20) -
VND WrEE (50) 20 -
Excluding retained profits FEERB &

T2 TFFR - BXEBRRNERAR
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40.FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continueqd)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. The Group operates in Hong Kong, the
United States, Singapore, Malaysia and Mainland
China. For companies in Mainland China, their principal
activities are transacted in RMB. For other companies
outside of Mainland China, their principal activities are
transacted in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Approximately 42% (2021: 38%) of the
Group’s sales were denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the operating units
making the sales, whilst approximately 58% (2021:
62%) of costs were denominated in the units’ functional
currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities) and the Group’s equity.
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40.FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continueqd)

Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

40. & Rl B IR B A R BUR

Foreign currency risk (continued)

(#8)

S mBR ()

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in exchange in profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity”
Ex Al F i
L3k (FEO 1800, GA) 180 GRa)
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% AREFT ARETR
2022 —E-C
If RMB weakens against US$ ARG ETEE 5 17,887 -
If RMB strengthens against US$ MARMRETHE (5) (17,887) -
If RMB weakens against HK$ A RIS TE 5 (15,377) -
If RMB strengthens against HK$ MARMEETIE (5) 15,377 -
If RMB weakens against EUR$ ARG TTEEE 5 260 -
If RMB strengthens against EUR$ MARERBITHE (5) (260) -
2021 2
If RMB weakens against US$ AR ZE T (E 5 2,816 -
If RMB strengthens against US$ MARERETHE 5) (2,816) -
If RMB weakens against HK$ ARG EITEE @ 5 (18,771) -
If RMB strengthens against HKS$ AR ETIHE (5) 18,771 -
If RMB weakens against EUR$ AR REN T @ 5 1,659 -
If RMB strengthens against EURS ARG TTHE (5) (1,659) -
FEERZ SN

Excluding retained profits
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31 December 2022
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40.FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continueqd)

Credit risk

Management has made a detailed analysis of the credit
risk of different customers and divided the customers
into two classes, i.e., type A customers, which have
good credit ratings or have coverage by letters of
credit or other forms of credit insurance, and type B
customers, which are the other diversified customers.
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis, and therefore, the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BAFE R TR Mz
31 December 2022
—®-—f#+ZA=+—H
40.FINANCIAL RISK 40. Rt R fE B IE I REER
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (#&)
AND POLICIES (continueqd)
Credit risk (continued) EERME (8)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) RAE SR O R FAR B 748 (B
As at 31 December 2022 RZE__F#+"HA=+—8
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 B 78
FEBE 2PEREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
F1PEER HoBEER FIPER  MEAE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TR ARETRT ARETRT ARETR
Trade receivables* B HEEE - - - 2,736,224 2,736,224
Financial assets included SFATBARIE A fth
in prepayments, other FEWFE R Efth
receivables and other assets BEENGHEE 125,487 - - - 125,487
Pledged deposits BIEEER 793,806 - - - 793,806
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY 436,194 = = = 436,194

1,355,487 -

2,736,224 4,091,711
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

40.FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continueqd)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continueq)

As at 31 December 2021

40. & Rl E B 1R B A R BUR

(4

EEEE &)
BRABBHOIREFIEEDE (&

R_Z_—F+-HB=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 B 8
FEBE 2 PEREERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
B HoMEER B BEAE st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTR ARBETR AR®TR AR®TR
Trade receivables* B 5 e - - - 2725702 2,725,702
Financial assets included STATEMFUE HAth
in prepayments, other FEFE R HAth
receivables and other assets BENSREE 33,403 - - - 33,403
Pledged deposits BERER 602,513 - - - 602,513
Cash and cash equivalents RE&RREEEY 349,229 - - - 349,229
985,145 - - 2725702 3,710,847

*

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the

simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 21.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are

disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.
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40.FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continueqd)

Credit risk (continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases
of the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed in
different sectors and industries.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of bank borrowings and lease liabilities. In addition,
banking facilities have been put in place for contingency
purposes.

Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

40.FINANCIAL RISK 40. TR AR EIEEH N KRR
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (&
AND POLICIES (continueqd)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBEZER (48)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities, AEENEME BN RELRAIR
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as IRAET -
follows:
Less than 1to5
1 year years Total
DR1E 1E55 Mt

RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR AR®ETR ARETR

2022 —E”C
Lease liabilities HEans 7,871 23,095 30,966
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STEIRTTEE 2,706,391 72,527 2,778,918
Trade and bills payables B RENFIEMRENEE 2,361,044 - 2,361,044
Other payables and accruals HnENRIaMEER 322,700 = 322,700
5,398,006 95,622 5,493,628
Less than 1t05
1 year years Total
DME 1255 1mat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFRT AREFT
2021 —EC—F
Lease liabilities HEasE 6,175 18,537 24,712
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHERTEE 1,793,978 642,301 2,436,279
Trade and bills payables B ENTIERENEZE 2,319,251 - 2,319,251
Other payables and accruals HihENZIEREER 308,176 - 308,176

4,427,580 660,838 5,088,418
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40.FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continueqd)

Interest rate benchmark reform

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had certain
interest-bearing bank borrowings denominated in
United States dollars. The interest rates of these
instruments are based on the LIBOR with a tenor of
six months or twelve months, which will cease to be
published after 30 June 2023. Replacement of the
benchmark rates of these instruments from LIBOR to
an RFR has yet to commence but it is expected that
there will be renegotiations of terms in the future. During
the transition, the Group is exposed to the following
risks:

° Parties to the contract may not reach agreement
in a timely manner as any changes to the
contractual terms require the agreement of all
parties to the contract

o Additional time may be needed for the parties
to the contract to reach agreement as they
may renegotiate terms which are not part of the
interest rate benchmark reform (e.g., changing
the credit spread of the bank borrowings due to
changes in credit risk of the Group)

° The existing fallback clause included in the
instruments may not be adequate to facilitate a
transition to a suitable RFR

The Group will continue to monitor the development of
the reform and take proactive measures for a smooth
transition.

Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE
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31 December 2022
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40.FINANCIAL RISK 40. TR AR EIE BN REER
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (&
AND POLICIES (continueqd)
Interest rate benchmark reform MERENE (B)
(continued)
The information about financial instruments based on ERIRTRIZEFREE R R EEDBREER
an interbank offered rate that has yet to transition to an ENEMTEANEREHTINOT

alternative benchmark rate is as follows:

As at 31 December 2022 WZE--F#+=-HB=+—H
Non- Non-
derivative derivative
financial financial
assets - liabilities - Derivatives
carrying carrying - nominal
value value amount

JEiTE JEfiTE
EMEE- SMERFE- T£IR
RE(E BREE -RE%H
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR ARETR

Interest-bearing bank and other SERTREMBEE
borrowings
- United States dollar LIBOR —%7TLIBOR - 471,432 -
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31 December 2022
—E-C&+-RB=+—8
40.FINANCIAL RISK 40. & Fh 2 fs B 1 B B R IR
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (%)
AND POLICIES (continueqd)
Interest rate benchmark reform MERENE (B)
(continued)
As at 31 December 2021 N2 —F+"A=+—H
Non- Non-
derivative derivative
financial financial
assets — liabilities — Derivatives
carrying carrying - nominal
value value amount
IETTE JETTE
THMEE- SHaE- ETAR
REE REE —2LESHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT AREFTT ARETT
Interest-bearing bank and other STERTREMES
borrowings

- United States dollar LIBOR —%7tLIBOR - 537,692 -
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40.FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continueqd)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and a healthy capital ratio in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is interest-bearing bank borrowings divided by total
assets. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

40. & Rl E B 1R B A R BUR

(4

BEAXER

FEBEAEENTRERARFRIERE
R M5 BT R A R BRI B AN EE RS
FHED URRKRRNEBERAZERS

FEBRBEERREESEERELRE
RAFL A - REEPRB S FRENR
BmRRESEANETHRES A 4
FUHREELRB - BE"_T__FK"F
T —F+ZR=1+—HLFER BEEX

FEBUEEBRILREESR  ZERS
SHRIRTTIEERUEERE - RS HRNE
ESELERNT

2022 2021

—E-C T —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T AREFT

Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHEIRITEE 2,710,087 2,372,206
Total assets BERE 10,494,395 9,596,131
Gearing ratio BEBEILXE 26% 25%
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41. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL

ASSETS

Transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety

As part of its normal business, the Group entered
into a trade receivable factoring arrangement (the
“Factoring Arrangement”) and transferred certain
trade receivables to banks. The Group is exposed to
default risks of the trade debtors after the transfer.
Subsequent to the transfer, the Group did not retain
any rights on the use of the trade receivables, including
the sale, transfer or pledge of the trade receivables to
any other third parties. The original carrying value of
the trade receivables transferred under the Factoring
Arrangement that have not been settled as at 31
December 2022 amounted to RMB407,147,000
(2021: RMB365,908,000). The carrying amount of
the assets that the Group continued to recognise as
at 31 December 2022 was RMB407,147,000 (2021:
RMB365,908,000) and that of the associated liabilities
as at 31 December 2022 was RMB300,102,000
(2021: RMB303,376,000), which were recognised as
collateralised bank advances, secured (note 28).

Financial assets that are derecognised
in their entirety

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, the Group factored trade receivables to
a bank on a non-recourse basis for cash. In the
opinion of the Directors, the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards associated with the
factored trade receivables. Accordingly, the Group
derecognised the full carrying amount of the trade
receivables factored. The carrying amount of the trade
receivables derecognised as at 31 December 2022 was
RMB61,056,000 (2021: RMB85,167,000).

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

A EETRIEE

AREPRILEDNVEEREH
BE

EAEREBN D AEEEIILE
%TH&?KIET?IE%?EF(ré?ﬁiiﬁﬁh) ) i

ETEZREWARIBEETIRT  AEEK
TREZEEREZEBANENRR -NE
TEER AERTEREEREZER
B (BEREAEMB=HHE  EEg
BB S REWRIE) NEMEF R IE
T IF+ZA=+—HB REZRELZH
EEM A ENE S REREIENRRR
B4 AREE407,147,0007 (CTEZ—F : A
R 1365,908,0007T) M ZEZZF+8
=B AERSERINEENER
EA AREE407,147,0007T (ZB - —4F :
AR #365,908,0007T) * M & -
+ZA=+—HEMEaENREEAA
R 1300,102,0007T (Z2Z—F : AR¥
303,376,0007T) * M HESR A H KR RIE IR
BISRTTEARR (Ff5E28) ©

Eégﬂﬁgtﬁﬁwum@ﬂmﬁé

REEZSEZFRZITEZ—F%+ZA
=+ —HIEFE  AEBERIFBERELER—
BiRTTRIEZESEBIFGEBEUERES EF
A NEBORFIEE ZEBGIERNBE X
B> BB Kz [C13R$558 o (RlItE » AREE AR IEE
RREBEEZEWRIBZ 25 REE B4R LE
RNEZERFIEBRN S __F+_4
=t+—HZEREER AR61,056,0007T (=
—£ : AR#85,167,0007T) °
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

42.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of

42. KRB Z A FFAR IR

BRARABNBEHARZHBIRNRRZER

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as wr:
follows:
2022 2021
—s-C —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries NN = 1,492,181 1,731,966
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Cash and cash equivalents BEKRIBEEEY 6,333 5,368
Financial assets at fair value through RABEEHtAEGN
profit or loss THMEE 136 134
Total current assets MEEEEE 6,469 5,502
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENaE
Other payables and accruals HMEAIB R EETE R 377 403
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRIRITEE 276,843 188,539
Total current liabilities MBI BEARE 277,220 188,942
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REamEEE (270,751) (183,440)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEMRERTSHER
LIABILITIES 1,221,430 1,548,526
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRIBTTEE - 251,385
Net assets BETE 1,221,430 1,297,141
EQUITY HEm
Issued capital BE&ITRAS 116,250 116,241
Reserves (note) EE (BsH) 1,105,180 1,180,900
Total equity M esE 1,221,430 1,007,141

292 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2022



s

Notes to the Financial Statements BAF&$R RMIEE

42.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Share

31 December 2022
2+ R=+—H

42. KRB Z MBI RR (&)

premium Shareholders’

PY5E -

FABZEFERENT

Share Exchange
option fluctuation Accumulated

account  contribution reserve reserve losses Total
EREE
R fER BRRHE  BREHE & RitiE @zt
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR®TR ARETx ARETRT ARETx ARETR
At 1 January 2021 RZ2Z—-%—F—H 1,149,002 337,830 35,167 (14,654) (312,308) 1,195,127
Gain and total comprehensive  EEE U K&
income for the year FHNEEE - - - - 12,394 12,394
Exercise of share options fIfbREmRE 273 - (167) - - 106
Exchange differences on MBIRINEBN
translation of foreign ERER
operations - - - (29,659) - (29,659)
Equity-settled share option ~ LUEZAEER
arrangements ERET - - 2,932 - - 2,932
At31December 2021and ~ RZFEZ—F+_F
1 January 2022 =+—-Bk
“E-"F—-RF—H 1,149,365 337,830 37,932 (44,313) (299,914) 1,180,900
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEER
loss for the year FHEEEEE - - - - (196,577) (196,577)
Exercise of share options TR 136 - (54) - - 82
Lapse of the share options ~ BE PR3 - - (25,745) - 25,745 -
Exchange differences on BRERNEBN
translation of foreign ERER
operations - - - 115,859 - 115,859
Equity-settled share option LI HAER
arrangements ERETH - - 4,916 = = 4,916
At 31 December 2022 A —
+-A=+—H 1,149,501 337,830 17,049 71,546 (470,746) 1,105,180
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31 December 2022
2+ H=+—H

42.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 42 AT Z A FEAR AR (#B)

POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for share-
based payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
The amount will either be transferred to share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related options
expire.

BRERBOEDREMARITEABRERN
NRBE BRFBIRMBEREWNT2.45R
DR n A ERB R E St BERPE—D R
Be-zeRTtAMBREETERIBERE
i ERNER R EE R SR ER
B o

43.EVENTS AFTER THE 43. J[{EHABE
REPORTING PERIOD
On 9 January 2023, the Company issued unlisted RIEZ=F—BNH > NABEITAEEE
convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”) in principal #%91,800,00078 T2 FFZ5.5%51 5 BN
amount of HK$91,800,000, carrying interest at the rate —ﬁ NERTtAABRSFESMN WHER
of 5.5% per annum, payable semi-annually on January ZETRFE HH MIE LRI ERE (M9
9 and July 9 in arrears, and will mature in 2026. The HRES ) - BEEA TR ATEEN
offering price was at 100% of the principal amount of 100%-°
the Convertible Notes.

44.APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 44 #iLEMFERE
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised ZEMBEHRREN _E_=F =B "+ H
for issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2023. EEEEHEWRRET]E-
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* Five Year Financial Summary

LEMBREE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and % B BT EEEBZM BRERNWAERNBTRH
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial B BEENEE R EE BB R IEEREE
years, as extracted from the published audited financial ~Z#&ZWNT :

statements is set out below:

Year ended 31 December
HE+-A=+-BLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“§-=F "E-& CE"%F CFNE ZF30\E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTR ARETRT AR®Tx ARETR

RESULTS ES |
REVENUE W 12,845,859 11,303,125 9,631,362 8,362,722 9,544,418
Cost of sales SHERA (11,251,085) (0793419 (8443083  (7,347,336)  (8,489,39)
Gross profit EF 1,594,774 1,509,706 1,188,279 1,015,386 1,065,022
Other income and gains Hit A &z 241,727 84,221 108,360 173,784 118,326
Selling and distribution HERDHERS

expenses (389,151) (586,076) (481,179) (392,009) (408,667)
Administrative expenses  TEEI (333,676) (306,212) (266,359) (273,530) (269,719)
Research and development  FF Al 2

costs (382,868) (239,446) (172,720) (119,347) (111,005)
Impairment losses on assets & E BB 2 (27,516) (28,761) (20,675) (6,013) (3,266)
Other expenses Hihpas (14,443) (102,594) (35,874) 41,717) (35,329)
Finance costs B (156,222) (143,874) (158,180) (197,772) (202,356)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX el 532,625 191,964 161,652 158,762 142,986
Income tax expense FremBY (68,184) (25,235) (23,688) (31,229) (15,846)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EEEHH 464,441 166,729 137,964 127,533 127,140
Profit for the year UFATEEAEE

attributable to: pevil
Owners of the parent ISUNCIEZZ=PN 442,772 136,126 123,732 132,586 106,418
Non-controling interests IR 21,669 30,603 14,232 (5,053) 20,722

464,441 166,729 137,964 127,533 127,140

T CEFR - BIEBRRMGHERAS 295



Five Year Financial Summary AEMEEE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

BEE - BRRIFERER

As at 31 December
®+ZB=+—-H
2021 2020 2019 2018
T —F “ETEF ey s “E-)\F
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETRT AREBTRT AR®TH

9,596,131 9072832 8671526 9,032,055
(6,017,086)  (5672,89)  (5397,337)  (5,858,151)

(192,428) (160,310) (156,443) (196,977)

2022
b St

RMB’000

ARETT

TOTAL ASSETS BEME 10,494,395

TOTAL LIABILITIES BEEE (6,458,160)

NON-CONTROLLING e[
INTERESTS (213,957)
3,822,278

3,386,637 3,239,626 3,117,746 2,976,927
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